NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING
March 27, 2018
MONTGOMERY CITY COUNCIL

STATE OF TEXAS AGENDA
COUNTY OF MONTGOMERY
CITY OF MONTGOMERY

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a Regular Meeting of the Montgomery City Council will be held
on Tuesday, March 27, 2018 at 6:00 p.m. at the City of Montgomery City Hall, 101 Old Plantersville
Road, Montgomery, Texas for the purpose of considering the following:

CALL TO ORDER

INVOCATION

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO FLAGS

VISITOR/CITIZENS FORUM:

Any citizen with business not scheduled on the agenda may speak to the City Council. Prior to
speaking, each speaker must be recognized by the Mayor. Council may not discuss or take any action
on an item, but may place the issue on a future agenda. The number of speakers along with the time
allowed per speaker may be limited.

CONSENT AGENDA:
1. Matters related to the approval of minutes for the Regular Meeting held on March 13, 2018,

2. Consideration and possible action regarding completion of a one-year warranty period and
release of maintenance bond for Hills of Town Creek Section 2.

CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION:

3. Consideration and possible action to receive the Annual Audit for the year ending September
30, 2017 as prepared by Belt Harris Pechacek, LLLP.

4. Consideration and possible action on Department Reports.

Administrator’s Report
Public Works Report

Police Department Report
Court Department Report
Utility/Development Report
Water Report

Engineer’s Report
Financial Report

ZomEUOwy

5. Consideration and possible action regarding an Encroachment and Maintenance Agreement by
and between the City of Montgomery and Montgomery SH 105 Associates, LLC regarding a
storm sewer line easement located at FM 2854 and SH 105.




6. Consideration and possible action regarding an Encroachment and Maintenance Agreement by
and between the City of Montgomery and BW Montgomery Investment, LL.C regarding the
encroachment of a proposed private storm sewer within a public utility easement located at SH
105 and Gardner Drive,

7. Consideration and possible action regarding Samdana Investments, LP request for variance
from 35 feet to 25 feet along SH 105 and from 15 feet to 10 feet along John A. Butler Street
all within the property bounded by John A. Butler Street to the north, SH 105 to the south, and
Prairie Street to the east.

8. Consideration and possible action regarding approval of the proposed Montgomery EDC
funded sidewalk project on Clepper Street.

9. Consideration and possible action regarding Madsen and Richards, LLC variance request
regarding the rear building line from the required 15 feet to 5 feet and the vegetative setback
from the required 15 feet to 5.8 feet at 610 Liberty Street.

10. Consideration and possible action regarding adoption of the following Ordinance:

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS,
AMENDING ARTICLE TII, "IMPACT FEES" OF CHAPTER 90 "UTILITIES" OF THE
CITY CODE OF ORDINANCES BY DECREASING THE IMPACT FEES FOR WATER
AND WASTEWATER IMPROVEMENTS THAT ARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO NEW
DEVELOPMENT IN THE CITY'S WATER AND WASTEWATER IMPACT FEE
SERVICE AREA WITHIN THE CORPORATE BOUNDARIES OF THE CITY;
AMENDING CITY ORDINANCE NO. 2016-21, DATED DECEMBER 13, 2016;
PROVIDING A TEXAS OPEN MEETINGS ACT CLAUSE; PROVIDING A
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE AFTER
PUBLICATION,

11. Buffalo Springs Bridge Report by City Engineer.

12. Reckless Driving Report.

EXECUTIVE SESSION:

The City Council reserves the right to discuss any of the items listed specifically under this heading or
for any items listed above in executive closed session as permitted by law including if they meet the
qualifications in Sections 551.071(consultation with attorney), S51.072 (deliberation regarding real
property),551.073 (deliberation regarding gifts), 551.074 (personnel matters), 551.076 (deliberation
regarding security devices), and 551.087 (deliberation regarding economic development negotiations)
of Chapter 551 of the Government Code of the State of Texas. (There are no items at this time.)

COUNCIL INQUIRY:

Pursuant to Texas Government Code Sect. 551.042 the Mayor and Council Members may inquire about
a subject not specifically listed on this Agenda. Responses are limited to recitation of existing policy
or a statement of specific factual information given in response to the inquiry. Any deliberation or
decision shall be limited to a proposal to place on the agenda of a future meeting.

ADJOURNMENT







MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING
March 13, 2018
MONTGOMERY CITY COUNCIL

CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Kirk Jones declared a quorum was present, and called the meeting to order at 6:03 p.m.

Present: Kirk Jones Mayor
Jon Bickford City Council Place # 1
John Champagne, Jr.  City Council Place # 2

T.J. Wilkerson City Council Place # 3
Dave McCorquodale  City Council Place # 5

Absent: Rebecca Huss City Council Place # 4
Also Present: Jack Yates City Administrator
Larry Foerster City Attorney
Susan Hensley City Secretary

Chris Roznovsky City Engineer

INVOCATION

T.J. Wilkerson gave the invocation.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO FLAGS

VISITOR/CITIZENS FORUM:

Any_citizen with business not scheduled on the agenda may speak to the City Council. Prior to

speaking, each speaker must be recognized by the Mayor. Council may not discuss or take any action

on an _item, but may place the issue on a future agenda. The number of speakers along with the time

allowed per speaker may be limited.

There were no comments made during this item,




CONSENT AGENDA:

Matters related to the approval of minutes for the Public Hearing and Regular Meeting held on

February 27, 2018.

Consideration and possible action regarding completion of one vear warranty period and release

of mainfenance bond for Lake Creek Village Section 2.

Consideration and possible action regarding completion of one year warranty period and release

of Letter of Credit for Terra Vista Secfion 1.

Consideration and possible action regarding completion of one year warranty period and release

of maintenance bond for Waterstone Section 2.

Mr. Yates asked that Item 3 on the Consent Agenda be pulled for discussion. Mr. Roznovsky
advised that Item 3 was ready for discussion today, but asked that the item be approved
conditionally, because there are a few items that were discovered earlier today that will need to be
addressed. Mr, Roznovsky advised that the developer has sent a crew out to address; all but one
of the items, which is a small leak that they need fo locate, so they are recommending conditional
approval of Item 3, pending them getting that item addressed. Mayor Jones said that they will

address Item 3 separately, since it might involve conditional approval.

Dave McCorquodale advised that he had a question regarding Item 4, and said that the information
in the letter from the developer, which was included in the Agenda pack, stated that there would
be funds deposited by Monday. Mr. Yates advised that a cashier’s check had been received by
the City.

Dave McCorquodale moved to approve Consent Agenda Items 1, 2 and 4, as presented. Jon

Bickford seconded the motion, the motion carried unanimously. (4-0)

Jon Bickford moved to accept Item 3 conditionally, pending the final repair. John Champagne

seconded the motion, the motion carried unanimously. (4-0)

CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION:

5.

Report regarding LDC Recovery Charges.

03/13/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 2




Mr. Foerster stated that he has had a number of very good conversations with the LDC
representative, Mr. Mike Swaim, who is present tonight. Mr. Swaim asked to address City
Council. Mr, Swaim advised that he had visited with Mr. Corley, President of LDC, and they have
decided, in the interest of good relations with the City and its residents, that they are going to
refund to the residents, it the form of a credit on their next bill, the amount of the relocation costs
that were recovered from the City of Montgomery residential customers. Mr. Swaim said that he
did not think that this would require any City Council action, since this would just be an action by
LDC on the bills. Mr. Swaim also stated that he agreed with Mr. Foerster that the conversations

have been very good.

Mr. Foerster said that he wanted to add that he knows there has been some confusion about the
issue of the petition that came from the City Council’s disapproval of the relocation charges, which
were appealed to the Railroad Commission. Mr, Foerster said that it appears that the Railroad
Commission concluded on their own that it did not have jurisdiction over the appeal because the
City, as was mentioned in a previous meeting, did not make one of the necessary findings by the
statute. Mr. Foerster said that in talking with Mr, Swaim, apparently they did not know it either,
and it only came to their attention when the petition went to Austin. Mr. Foerster said that because
of the confusion, Mr. Swaim contacted him a couple of weeks ago stating that they wanted to try
and resolve this in a way that would satisfy the City Council and the people that are served by

LDC. Mr. Swaim said that he agreed with Mr, Foerster’s statement,

Mayor Jones said to Mr. Swaim and Mr. Corley, that the City really appreciated them working
with the City on this and really appreciate the final outcome on behalf of the citizens. Mr. Swaim
and Mr. Corley said that they were happy to do that. Mr. Swaim said that he had also discussed
with Mr, Foerster the possibility of conducting a Workshop regarding natural gas service, LDC,
and the Railroad Commission, to which the City Council members and residents of the City would
be welcome to attend. Mr. Swaim said that if a Workshop would be something that might be of
an interest to the City, he could arrange that with Mr. Yates and Mr. Foerster. Mr. Swaim said
that they want communication with the City and do not want to have a lack of communication
cloud their relationship. Mr. Swaim thanked the City of Montgomery, Mayor Jones thanked Mr.,

Swaim. Mayor Jones stated that there was no action required by the City.

Consideration and possible action regarding Samdana Investments, L.P. request for variance from

35 feet to 25 feet along SH 105 and from 15 feet to 10 feet along John A. Butler Street all within

03/13/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 3




the property bounded by John A. Butler Street to the north and SH 105 to the south and Prairie

Street to the east.

Mr. Yates presented the information to City Council, advising that this item was first presented to
City Council at the February 27, 2018 meeting, with a concern about the driveway being shared
by the Samdana property and the property to the west. Mr. Yates said that what has happened
since that meeting is the Samdana property owner has agreed to widen the driveway between his
building and SH 105 to allow a 20-foot wide driveway that will allow two lanes of traffic. Mr,
Yates said that Mr. Samdana also provided a copy of the access agreement with the property owner
to the west. Mayor Jones asked if the property owner to the west agreed that would work for them.

Mr. Yates said that was correct,

John Champagne asked if this item had gone before the Planning and Zoning Commission. Mr.
Yates advised that it had, and said that the Commission approved the variance request, thinking
that the driveway was wider and that the property to the west had direct access onto SH 105, Mr.
Yates said that was his fault for not checking the property in advance of the meeting, but what he
told the Commission was that there was a wider opening onto SH 105 so the western property
would have direct access to SH 105, but they do not because there is only one curb cut onto SH
105, which goes to the Samdana property. Jon Bickford asked whether the Commission has seen
this request. Mr. Yates said that the Commission did see the request, but they received different
information. Jon Bickford asked why this is coming to City Council for approval if the Planning
and Zoning Commission did not approve the right information. Jon Bickford said that he did not
want to override any confusion on the part of the Commission, because they still do not know

what they are getting, from what he has heard.

Dave McCorquedale asked the engineers about a concern he had about there not being a realistic
way for traffic heading out of this driveway to go west on SH 105. Dave McCorquodale said that
if they look at the site plan, regarding the setback lines in relation to where the driveway needs to
go, and said that when you look at the turning radius, it looks like there is about a five foot radius
on that turn to go west bound and the general rule of thumb is around a 30 foot radius. Mr.
Roznovsky said that was a tight radius turn, and said that he wanted to make sure that everyone
understands that they are not approving the site plan, because construction plans have not been
submitted; this is approval of the variance for the setback lines. Mr. Roznovsky said that the other
option is that they still can go through the neighboring property to get to McCown and use

McCown to go west on SH 105, Mayor Joses asked if the turning radius could be addressed when

03/13/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 4




the site plan is submitted. Mr. Roznovsky said that they can work with them to see what options
are available to improve that turn and make it a smoother transition to get out of the property. Mr.
Roznovsky said that this action is just to approve the variances, which is what was presented to
the Planning and Zoning Commission and they approved, thinking there was a second access on
SH 105, and said that in his mind it does not change the heart of the variance request. Jon Bickford
said that it is going to be pretty hard to say that the site plan isn’t conducive to turning left at this
corner. Mr, Roznovsky said the only reason that this variance came up was because this is a
unique shaped tract. Jon Bickford asked how large the building was that was in there previously.
Mr. Roznovsky said that there were two and they were smaller and across the building lines,
because the property had not been platted, and they were closer to Butler Street than SH 105. Jon
Bickford said that at least they could get out to SH 105 when you went into the property. M.
Roznovsky said that the drive thru makes it more difficult, unless people go to McCown to turn

onto SH 105,

Dave McCorquodale said that he tended to agree with Jon Bickford and he does not see how
approval of these variances is not a defacto approval of a site plan that does not look like it meets
the minimum standards for a drive thru. Dave McCorquodale said that he does not see a vehicle
making it through the drive thru without real issues, Jon Bickford said he did not feeling right
about doing something without the Planning and Zoning Commission having a clear picture of

what they approved.

Jon Bickford moved to revert this item back to the Planning and Zoning Commission and that
someone make it clear to them what they are approving, so that they understand what they are

doing prior to it coming before City Council. John Champagne seconded the motion.

Discussion: Mayor fones said the variance has to be granted before the site plan can move forward,
so at some point they will have to make a decision before they can draw the site plan. Jon Bickford
said that there are two pieces to this item, one being he does not want to override the Planning and
Zoning Commission and the other thing is if they are trying to fit an 8,000 square foot building
into a 6,000 square foot spot, that’s probably not the right thing to do, but designing was not their
place, Jon Bickford said that if they approve the building liues, then they are well within their
right to build right up to those lines, so there will not be another chance to say they can’t do that.
Mayor Jones said that someone would either approve or deny the site plans, Jon Bickford asked
Mr. Roznovsky if he would approve the site plan that had this turning radius. Mr. Roznovsky said

that they were really just looking at the information on the variances, but said that the limitations

03/13/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 5




of the site and having access to McCown is what makes a difference to him, but he will do some

more research on the information.

Dave McCorquodale said that he would offer a Snggestion that it would be very helpful for the
Planning and Zoning Cotnmission and City Council, even if it is just a sketch of the adjacent lot,
to show where that building is so they get the context of the lot, which would help to clarify the
information. Mr. Yates said that he thought there was a drawing that showed the adjacent property,
which was included during the first meeting. Mr. Yates said that they could add the driveway to

the drawing for clarification.
The motion carried unanimously. (4-0)

7. Consideration and possible action to scheduling a Public Hearing regarding the initial zoning of

newly annexed 3.22 acres (property located south of SH 105 across from Stewart Creek Road)

known as the Peter Hill property, to be zoned as District “B” Commercial, to be held on April 24,

2018 at City Hall at 6:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers.

John Champagne moved to hold a Public Hearing regarding the Peter Hill property, to be zoned as
District “B” Commercial, to be held on April 24, 2018 at City Hall at 6:00 p.m. in the Council

Chambers. T. J. Wilkerson seconded the motion.

Discussion: Jon Bickford asked that staff would make sure that they bring the definition of what
District “B” Commercial is to the Public Hearing. Mr. Yates advised that would be provided at the
Public Hearing,.

The motion carried unanimously. (4-0)

8. Consideration and possible action regarding lease agreements with Mr. Larry Jacobs, Trustee and

Betty Rose for parking lot improvements in north downtown, north of Jacobs Real Estate building

and South of College Street.

Mr. Yates advised that this was a proposal to accept both of these offered agreements from Larry
Jacobs and Betty Rose. Mr. Yates said that the estimated cost of the parking lot improvements
was $22,000 for the paving. Mr, Yates said that MEDC allowed $6,000 for street scaping and

plantings. Mr. Yates advised that the drawing that was provided showed where the parking spaces

03/13/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 6




10.

would be located. Mr. Yates said that the landscaping would be on the north side of the parking
area, Mr, Yates stated that Mrs. Rose, who owns the northwest 55 feet, offered a five-year lease,

and the rest is owned by Mr. Jacobs.

Mr. Yates advised that Mr. Jacobs wanted the parking spaces to be 113 inches wide versus the
normal parking space requirement of 108 inches, so he wants the parking spaces to be five inches

wider, which will not be a problem.

Mayor Jones said that this particular item is for City Council action to approve the lease
agreements, and the next item addresses approval of the project. Mayor Jones said that these lease
agreements are similar to the ones that they did on the south end of the block with the Laughter
family and Tom Cronin. Jon Bickford asked if Mr. Foerster had reviewed the leases. Mr. Foerster
advised that Mr, Yates had sent the leases to him to review. Jon Bickford asked to confirm that
the City had no exposure or problems. Mr. Foerster advised that they were standard leases, with

modifications for these particular circumstances.

Jon Bickford moved to accept the lease agreements as presented. John Champagne seconded the

motion, the motion carried unanimously. (4-0)

Consideration and possible action regarding MEDC recommendation to pave the north downtown

parking fot with asphalt,

Mr. Yates presented the information to City Council, advising that MEDC has offered to pay
$22,000 to pave the parking lot and $6,000 for street scaping on the notth side.

Jon Bickford moved to accept MEDC’s gracious offer to pave the downtown parking lot, as
discussed, with asphalt and the associated landscaping. Dave McCorquodale seconded the

motion, the motion carried unanimously. (4-0)

Consideration and possible action regarding an Encroachment and Maintenance Agreement by

and between the City of Montgomery and Montgomery SH 105 Associates, LL.C regarding a storm

sewer line easement located at FM 2854 and SH 105.

Mr. Yates advised that this item was to revisit the CVS easement question regarding who pays for

repairs of the parking surface if repairs are needed at a later time due to relocation of the utilities.

03/13/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 7




Mr. Yates said that the issue at the last City Council Meeting was that the water and sewer lines

were inside the property of the CVS store, and they questioned who would pay for the pavement

if it were torn up. Mr. Yates advised that City Council had stated that, just as at every other

focation, it would be the property owner’s responsibility. Mr. Yates said that CVS has come back

and stated that this was strong enough of an issue with CVS that they are asking for the City

Council to reconsider,

Mr. Yates said that there were the three folirowing options:

b

2)

3)

take the same action that City Council took at the previous meeting, which would require
the water/sewer lines within the property and pavement replacement cost be borne by CVS,

which is what City Council determined at the last meeting;

Require the water and sewer lines to be placed within the property and pavement
replacement would be at the cost to the City of about $50,000 to $75,000 per repair. Mr.
Yates said that was a very high estimate, in his opinion, by the Engineer, because this
assumes the entire length and width of the easement to be torn up and repaved. Mr. Yates
said that the right of another utility to use the easement is a legal question that he had
discussed with the City Attorney. Mr, Yates stated that Mr. Foerster advised that wording
on the plat regarding the easement could be written so that if another utility wanted to use
the easement, inside the property, they could be required to pay the repair. Mr. Yates said
that would get it down to a question of whether or not the water and sewer location would

be required.

Mr. Yates said that he thinks that the engineer and CVS are saying that is a remote
possibility, but even it if were to happen, worse case is $50,000 to $75,000, which in his
mind, would be one years” worth of sales tax from CVS. Mr. Yates said that if they are
thinking that they might regret this decision 20-30 years from now, they will be 20-30 years
ahead on sales tax. Jon Bickford said that the repairs won’t be $50,000 to $75,000 any
more either. Mr, Yates said that a repair could be in one particular place that might only
require one parking space to be torn up, so $50,000 to $75,000 really is a worst-case

scenario,
Mr. Yates said that option three would be to locate the water and sewer facilities within the

right-of-way of FM 2854, which exposes the City to relocation should future expansions

of FM 2854 require one or both of those lines to be relocated for a possible cost of $175,000

03/13/18 Councii Meeting Minutes - Page 8




to $200,000, which he felt was a very realistic estimate, Mr. Yates said that if they did not
have an easement on the CVS property, they might have to go to CVS to relocate the lines,
then they would have the $50,000 to $75,000 repair costs plus the cost for replacement of

the lines.

Mayor Jones said that in Option 3, the City would keep the easement that they currently have, but
they could place the lines outside the easement and into the TxDOT right-of-way. Mr. Yates said

that was correct. Mayor Jones asked the people from CV S which one of the options they preferred.

Mr. Jonathan White, with L Squared, advised that CVS has looked at this information and it comes
to the point that it is so severe that it could be a deal killer. Mr. White said that they have done
this several times and submitted to other entities, and the fear is that in the future somebody can
come and rip up their parking Iot, so what they were hoping is that they could actually shift the
utilities inside the public right-of-way, placing the water line directly ou the right-of-way line and
the have the sanitary sewer 10 feet off of that line. Mr. White said they tried to look at what the
future intersection will be, and it is completely conceptual, but it appears that there is sufficient
right-of-way at FM 2854, and possibly less of a risk that the City would have to relocate the lines
in the future. Mayor Jones asked if that was because of the way that the road presently lines up
with Lone Star Parkway. Mr. White said that the pavement has actually shifted much further west
and is not centered on the right-of-way, so he wouid.expect that FM 2854 would actually expand
east. Mr. White said that there are plenty of hardships on this tract, which has a 160-foot drainage
easement on the west side of the tract, with 80 to 100 feet that encroaches into the subject property
substantially. Mr, White said that more was given to the City than what the ordinance required,
which pushes the site pretty far east, with no ability for them to get outside the 26-foot utility
easement. Mr. White said that even if they did shift their site west, they would be coming directly
into the parking spaces, and would not allow an 18-wheeler to go around to have access to the
CVS site. Mayor Jones asked Mr. White to clarify ahout the lines. Mr. White said that the sewer
line could be 10 feet into the TxDOT right-of-way and the waterline would line up with the
driveway and property line. Mayor Jones said that there is a slight risk that the City would have
to move that if TxDOT expanded. Mayor Jones asked if that would be more or less risk than
having to dig up the parking fot. Mr. White said that the likelihood of a line break happening

where the parking ot would have to be torn up would be very slight.

Jon Bickford asked if there was anyone from CVS present. Mr. Jonathan Bellock, representing

CVS, was present. Jon Bickford said that from what he understood, he thought that what he was

03/13/18 Councii Meeting Minutes - Page 9




saying is that CVS would prefer Option 2 or 3. Mr. Bellock said not necessarily, they would take
either option, but CVS will not close on that property unless there is some sort of restoration

agreement, and CVS will not close on the property with Option 1.

Jon Bickford asked if CVS and the City split the cost and picked the option that would have less
risk, and asked if Mr. Bellock thought that CVS would consider that. Mr. Bellock said that he
thought so, which is how they proposed it to him. Mr. Bellock said that it was not only the risk of
cost down the road, it was also an operational risk. Mr. Bellock said that CVS has had instances
where municipalities have come in and torn up their parking lot for any number of reasons, and
there is no time line or guarantee that the repairs will be made. Mr. Bellock said those were the
main issues, and said CVS was closing on the propetty, but they will not close without some sort
of agreement in place. Mr. Yales said that what they are saying is to split the cost of the repairs.
Jon Bickford said that they will need to determine what would be the best option for the City,
either 2 or 3. Mr. Yates said that Option 2 was the best because with the worst-case scenarto, it is

tess money and the City has control of the property.
Jon Bickford said that he would propose that they go back to CVS with Option 2.

Mr. Bellock said that he would state that there were additional comments to that encroachment
agreement, other than simply the restoration, but that was the key issue. Mr, Yates said that he
would add that they should instruct the City Attorney to word the utility easement for Option 2,
and that it requires the City’s permission for any other utility to use that easement, and the City
could require that the utility going in would be responsible for the repair of the line. Mayor Jones
asked whether that needed to be part of the motion. Mr. Yates said that they could have the City
Attorey prepare the information and approve it on the final plat. Mr. Foerster said that they need
to reference the information on the plat itself, because years from now somebody will be looking
at the recorded agreement, and he would think that CVS would be a lot more comfortable if there
was something on the plat that states this is an exclusive easement for the City of Montgomery
and the City of Montgomery would have to grant permission to allow any other utility in the
easement. Mr. Roznovsky said that on the construction plans they would reference this agreement,
and on the plat. Mr., Foerster said that the agreement would be recorded so the recording

information could also he referenced on the plat.

Mr. Bellock said that there were other comments to the encroachment agreement that they also

have to get through, so that CVS will be comfortable. Jon Bickford asked if everyone was aware

03/13/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 10




of the other issues with the agreement. Mr. Roznovsky said that they were mainly wording
language. Mr. Bellock said that it was addressing someone coming in and tearing up the entire
parking lot and not fixing the parking lot. Mr. Roznovsky said that with Option 2, the City would

be responsible, and asked if CVS was also asking for a timeline for the repairs.

Jon Bickford said that the timeline information would need to be worked out as part of the
agreement, but the issue that is at hand with the City is how do we resolve who is going to pay for

the repairs, if the easement has to be torn up.

Jon Bickford moved to go forward with the idea that the water and sewer for this property will be
placed within the property, Option 2, and payment replacement will be borne 50/50 between CVS
and the City of Montgomery. Mr. Bellock said that CVS will not accept that, and said that CVS
will not be utilizing the sewer that is coming through their property, so they have no interest in it.
Jon Bickford said that they might not pay for the sewer, but they would split the cost of the water
repairs. Mr. Bellock said that CVS will not accept any costs. Jon Bickford said that was the
question that he had asked earlier. Mr. Bellock said that CVS would not accept splitting the cost
of the repairs. Jon Bickford said that CVS would bear no responsibility for the repairs and costs

whatsoever. Mr. Bellock said that was correct.

Mayor Jones asked if that would make Option 3 more viable. Mr, Yates said not to his mind. Mr.
Foerster said that he agreed that the only way that this will work, is to do Option 2. Mr. Foerster
said if they do Option 3, then the City will be putting it in the right-of-way, and if for some reason
TxDOT has to take that partial driveway where the utilities are, then the City has to bear the
expense of moving the entire line, which is a lot more expensive than patching pavement, Jon
Bickford asked if CVS could do 25 percent match. Mr. Bellock said that they would do absolutely
zero percent, because if they were utilizing a utility it would be one thing, but they are not. Mayor
Jones said that at this moment, CVS does not need the utility, but it will be needed for whatever
develops to the south. Mr. Roznovsky said that the two utilities being installed and the waterline,
which CVS will use, will be extended down to their southern houndary, which is not CVS, but the
entire property is served in the Montgomery Shoppes. Mr. Roznovsky said that the sewer line will
be extended also to serve that same tract, as well as being located so that they can extend it to FM

2854 in the tuture,

Dave McCorquodale asked about the variances that they granted for this property, and asked if it
was strictly on SH 105, Mr. Roznovsky said that the first time that CVS came to City Council, it

03/13/18 Councit Meeting Minutes - Page 11




was an encroachment agreement request for a sign only on SH 105, within an existing easement.
Mr. Roznovsky said that the second time that CVS came to City Council, when they got the site
plan it also showed a storm sewer line within the existing and proposed easement. Mr. Roznovsky
said that the storm sewer portion was approved, but the language that CVS wanted to add was the
pavement, and when it came before City Council the last time, City Council decided to approve
the agreement, subject to removing the pavement language, which is what they are revisiting
today. Mr. Bellock said that typically they would just shift the site to put all the improvements
outside the easement, but in this case, they ran out of room. Mayor Jones said that both parties
are fighting over a very low risk scenario. Mr. Foerster said that the upside is that CVS comes in,
the sales tax that they will generate, plus the additional draw of other retail sales tax businesses

could be significant.

Jon Bickford said that they gave CVS the sign, the sewer and the City is asking for a little help to
share the cost, which he felt was fair, and said that CVS will be using the water. Mr, Bellock said
that was correct, CVS would be using the water. Mr. Roznovsky said that CVS’s sewer will go

to the front of the property.

Jon Bickford had a inotion on the floor, as follows:

Jon Bickford moved to go forward with the idea that the water and sewer for this property will be
placed within the property, Option 2, and payment replacement will be borne 50/50 between CVS
and the City of Montgomery. John Champagne seconded the motion.

Discussion: Mayor Jones stated that this was approving a 50/50 split on any damages.

The motion carried unanimousty. (4-0)

Presentation of Reckless Driving Repoit.

M. Yates presented the report, stating that the Mayor, Chief of Police and he had met with the
School Superintendent, Dr. Beau Rees and discussed this issue. Mr. Yates advised that Dr. Rees
was very receptive to the removal of the parking privileges by those students who received two or
more tickets. Mr, Yates stated that the Chief of Police and Dr. Rees are going to be working out
the details. Mr. Yates advised that they had discussed that a second citation would get parking
privileges removed for one month, a third citation would result in parking privileges being taken

away for an entire semester. Mr. Yates said that when a reckless driving citation is issued it would

03/13/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 12




result in their parking permit being taken away for an entire semester, Mr, Yates explained that
this would involve certain roads at certain times, and within the next two weeks there will be an
announcement and information to be distributed at the school regarding this matter. Mr. Yates
stated that Dr. Rees said that he was agreeing to this in the interest of public and student safety

and the program would be administered by the school.

John Champagne asked the City Attorney if it was legal for the school to insert themselves in a
civil offense by a student and have the school have some remediation or punishment in regard to
that. Mr. Foerster said that he does not represent the school district. Mr, Yates advised that he had
asked Dr. Rees that very same question and whether they had to wait for adjudication before they
could impose a penalty. John Champagne said that in his mind, it was tantamount to a child not
going to bed on time and getting reported to the school, and then they take away the student’s
parking privileges for a month, and asked what would be the difference. Mr. Yates said that Dr,
Rees said in response to his question was that he was interested in the public and school safety.
John Champagne said that he understood that point, but asked if the action was Constitutional and
was it legal. Mr. Foerster said that he would answer that question this way; what John Champagne
just said is the City gives the student a privilege to be here, not a right but a privilege. Mr. Foerster
said that he has not spoken to Dr. Rees about it, but he thinks that their position is because it is a
privilege, so they can withdraw that privilege for any reason. Mayor Jones said that was the way
that Dr. Rees had worded it. Mr, Yates said that was correct; Dr. Rees said it was a privilege, not

a right,

Mr. Foetster stated that he had also spoken to the City Judge about this and he said that any traffic
violation involving a student requires at least one parent or guardian of a student to appear at the
court hearing. Mr. Foerster said that by the parent or guardian having to appear in court, they are
inconvenienced. John Champagne said that he was fine with the information; he just wondered
how an independent school district can insert themselves that way, and if you say that they give a
privilege for parking, then he guessed that they could take away the parking privilege for anything,
Mr. Foerster said that was exactly correct. John Champagne said that it would be interesting if

someone wanted to challenge it in court how that would turm out,
Jon Bickford asked if we have any idea how many citations for this have been written. Mr. Yates

said that the Chief has said that he thought it would probably get to two or three people that would

actually lose their parking privileges, but they felt that the threat of it was enough.

03/13/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 13




12.

Jon Bickford said that this is something that they can do right away and prevent another child from
getting injured, and he felt that it was important to do it. Mr. Yates said that the Chief will put
some thought into this and will recommend certain times and roads; this does not mean that, if on
a Saturday afternoon you are caught speeding on Caroline that your privileges will be lost, because

they are talking about specific times and locations.

Dave McCorquodale asked about the timing of the traffic signal at FM 149 and SH 105. Mr. Yates
said that TxDOT is looking at this because they had planned on widening the road and adding
more turn lanes there, and as they do that, they will affect the timing. Mr. Yates said that the Chief
said that he would try to control the operation of the traffic light at FM 149 and SH 105 to help
fessen congestion on SH 105, Mr. Yates said that Dr. Rees said that next year there will be plenty
of parking on the campus because of the splitting of the schools. Mayor Jones said that it will
change the traffic patterns a lot at Montgomery Elementary School, which is currently doubled up
and they will be splitting in half, and put them back where the old Middle School is located on
MLK. Mayor Jones said that would be mostly people from Bentwater and they will be poing the

other direction instead of through town, so that should help.

Jon Bickford asked that they get a report from the Chief as time goes on as to whether that program

is helping or not,

Buffalo Springs Bridge Report by the City Engineer.

Mr. Roznovsky advised that, overall, the progress on the bridge is proceeding and they have
completed the first section of the concrete bullchead in the canal and they should be doing another
footing tomorrow. Mr. Roznovsky said that they have been finding that there is a lot of
groundwater coming up, so they have a lot of pumps trying to keep up, but by the next morning
the groundwater is back. Mr. Roznovsky said that they are still on scheduie for completion mid-
June 2018. Mayor Jones said that he went out and looked at the bridge a few times. Mr.
Roznovsky said that the concrete will be going in during the next two weeks, along with the storm
sewers being placed on the site. Mr, Roznovsky said that if the weather can hold out like it has

been, they should be able to proceed.
Jon Bickford asked if they have recovered on schedule from the bad weather. Mr. Roznovsky said

that the original schedule had them finishing mid-June and they are still on schedule, even though

there were about 14 weather days.

03/13/13 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 14




EXFECUTIVE SESSION:

The City Council reserves the right to discuss any of the items listed specifically under this heading or for

any items listed above in executive closed session as permitted by law including if they meet the

qualifications in Sections 551.071{consultation with attorney), 551.072 (deliberation regarding real

property),551.073 (deliberation regarding gifts), 551.074 {personnel matters), 551.076 (deliberation

regarding security devices), and 551.087 (deliberation regarding economic development negotiations) of

Chapter 551 of the Government Code of the State of Texas,

13. Convene into Closed Executive Session as authorized by the Texas Open Meetings Act, Chapter

551 of the Government Code, in accordance with the authority contained in the following:

a) 551.071 (confidential consultation with the City Attorney); and

b) 551.072 (deliberation regarding real property}).

Mayor Jones convened into Closed Executive Session at 6:57 p.m.

14. Convene into Open Session,

Mayor Jones reconvened the regular meeting at 7:20 p.m.

POSSIBLE ACTION FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION:

15. Consideration and possible action, if necessary, on matters deliberated on during Closed Executive

Session with the City Attorney,

Jon Bickford moved to authorize the City Administrator, Jack Yates, to continue the
discussions/negotiations on said property. Dave McCorquodale seconded the motion, the motion

carried unanimously. (4-0)

COUNCIL INQUIRY:

Pursuant to Texas Government Code Sect. 551.042 the Mavyor and Council Members may inguire about

a subiect not specifically listed on this Agenda. Responses are limited to recitation of existing policy

or a statement of specific factual information given in response to the inguiry. Any deliberation or

decision shall be limited to a proposal to place on the agenda of a future meeting.,

There were no inquiries,

03/13/18 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 15
















Montgomery City Council
AGENDA REPORT

Meeting Date: March 27,2018 Budgeted Amount:

Prepared By: Jack Yates
City Administrator Exhibits: Draft Audit

Date Prepared: March 22, 2018

This is to hear the presentation of the audit by the Auditor and to approve the
audit.

Description

The audit is the review of all the financial transactions of the city and presents
the position.

The City received a “Clear Finding” with no recommendations for procedural
changes.

Recommendation

To accept the Audit.

Approved By
City Administrator | Jack Yates Date: March 22, 2018




CITY ADMINISTRATOR REPORT — March, 2018

e Met with Planning Commission at two meetings. Prepared information
flashing electronic sign ordinance revision.

e Met, took minutes, of one MEDC meeting.

e Appointed, wrote guidelines for Technical and Operations Review Committee,
met with Committee members (attached, all in agreement about parameters
guide).

e Attended two Chamber events- Coffee Club and Bd. Of Directors meeting,.

* Attended one Montgomery County Leadership Class activity regarding health
care in the County.

e Met with city engineers, city attorney and GrantWorks representatives several
times regarding; plats, system management, upcoming projects, bridge
improvements, developments throughout the city, TXDOT 149 planning, well
placement at Memory Park, FEMA, State Dept. of Emergency Management
(DEM), CDBG grants, LDC billing issues, General Land Office grant
possibility and billing for Escrow Accounts. Worked with Building
Inspector/Code Officer regarding dilapidated housing found unfit for
habitation. Prepared HOME grant information for open application period.

* Met with several developers during the month regarding: Villas of Mia Lago,
Kenrock property west of Pizza Shack, Waterstone, Exxon Convenience
Store, Shoppes of Montgomery, and other development possibilities meetings
and Jacobs/Rose parking area. Met with School Superintendent regarding
reckless driving activity.

* Made several decisions during month as Zoning Administrator, including
signs, coordinating variance requests, code enforcement, Historic District
activities, land use plan, and working on Zoning/Corridor Enhancement Area
changes

» Worked with City Council individually and City Staff on a variety of
administrative, personnel and coordination efforts. Including budget line item
review w/department heads. Including review of possible new software for
Court, Utility Billing, Finance but did not work out due to poor references.
With Cathy Branco transferred $125,717.85 to cover first Bridge pay request,






















Parameters regarding Technical and Operations Review Committee

- Committee is to work on assignments as given by the City Administrator and
accepted by the TORC. Assignments are to be made in writing from the City
Administrator. City Engineer and Staff can also recommend TORC assignments.

- TORC is to have access to any and all records, reports and data of the city
regarding their assignments. Staff is to respond promptly and thoroughly.

- Reports to the City Council can be presented by City Administrator or the TORC
as the TORC determines. The TORC is requested to as often as possible put their
recommendations and determinations in writing.

- TORC has access to consulting engineers as needed, keeping in mind, the cost
and the ultimate determination that the City Engineer is the ultimate adviser to
the City Council. Disagreements, either partial or in full of the City Engineer’s
recommendation should try to be worked out in advance of the Council meeting.
If a disagreement ultimately exists it shall be noted by the City Administrator or
the TORC by either a written report or verbal to the City Council—after a
discussion with the City Administrator regarding the disagreement.

-City Staff may be contacted directly by the TORC, keeping in mind, the staff’s
time and ultimate determination that the Staff is the person(s) to perform the
city’s work under the direction of their department head and/or the City
Administrator. The TORC is not to direct staff to perform any specific service
without agreement from the department head or City Administrator.

- The TORC is not to make direct contact with the City Council as a body, only
through communication and in agreement with the City Administrator. All TORC
presentations to the City Council are to be placed on the agenda just as any other
item, through the City Administrator. This means that the City Administrator does
not have to agree with the TORC presentation, just that he knows the about
presentation in advance of the meeting.

-Any expenses proposed by the TORC must be approved by the City
Administrator prior to being incurred. Failure to gain approval, could mean the
individual pays the cost of the expense.

- All TORC members are volunteers, and will not be paid for their involvement.







City of Montgomery — Public Works Department
February 2018 Monthly Report

General

- Attended second water and sewer facility walkthrough tour

- Installed lighting inside information kiosk at Caroline and McCown

- Started on water line verification project at 105/Louisa and Berkley/149

- Repaired hole in concrete on Harley from damaged street light moved by
Entergy

- Repaired electronic gate at sewer plant

- Repaired several small potholes throughout city

- Replaced photocell for street lights on McCown

- Re-grouted several manhole lids throughout city

- Replaced broken ball valve at dead end blow off on King’s Ln

- Assisted Gulf in pulling pump at Lift Station 1 for repairs

- Replaced several damaged street signs in Historical District

- Removed dead tree from fence at Sewer Plant 1 (Old Sewer Plant)

- Repaired leaking water service line at 1860 MLK

- Replaced leaking ball valve for water meter at Lincoln Elementary

- Excavated ditch in front of new Pizza Shack

- Purchased new crew truck and outfitted with equipment and tools needed

- Continued fire hydrant tagging project

- Removed debris from ditches during rain throughout city

- Weekly pre-trip inspections of crew trucks

- Weekly conference call with engineer and utility operator

- Weekly leak notification list from Beacon website

- Weekly pumping of manhole in Terra Vista

- Daily removal of bandit signs as necessary

- Daily utility locates as necessary

- Monthly air filter and light bulb check at all facilities

- Monthly AED inspections

- Monthly door hangers and cutoffs



- Monthly safety meetings with safety officer and department
- Continue performing “on the job” safety inspection reports
- Monthly idle meter list checked for consumption

- Monthly weed killer list

- Monthly grease trap inspections

- 6 water leaks

- 4 water taps

- 4 sewer taps

- 1sewerstop up

Parks and Recreation

- 6 month interval spray for crazy ants at Memory Park

- Repaired irrigation zone valve at Cedar Brake Park

- Replaced interior restroom lights at Cedar Brake Park to brighter LED strip
lights to increase visibility and safety

- Installed automatic door closers at Community Center

- Repaired asphalt from water leak repair at Memory Park

- M/W/F cleaning of all park facilities

- Weekly check of Memory Park irrigation system with repairs as needed

- Monthly irrigation system checks at all other facilities with repairs as
needed

- Weekly cleaning of Community Center building

The docents at Fernland Park reported a total of 410 visitors for the month and
provided 28 tours.

Report prepared by:
Mike Muckleroy
Director of Public Works
March 21, 2018









_MVA

2/12 Thompson - 21100 Eva 5T

2/13 Carswell - 22111 FM 1097

2/16 Thompson - 20100 Eva 5T

2/17 Carswell - 14200 FM 149

2/21 Thompson - 105 / Lone Star PKWY

2/21 Thompson - FM 2854 / Eva ST

Theft / Forgery/Burglary

2/17 Carswell - 22870 HWY 105 W #321

Other
2/3 Thompson - 729 DR Martin Luther King JR DR (Criminal Trespass)
2/22 Carswell - 300 CB Stewart {Disorderly Conduct - Foul Language)

2/23 Thompson - 101 Old Plantersville DR {Found Property)

Arrests f Charges:

Misdemeanor Charges - 10

Felony Charges - 0

Traffic Enforcement
Citations Issued - 78

Warnings issued - 36

Belmares — 2 Citations / 0 Warnings
Thompson — 33 Citations / 21 Warnings
Hernandez — 0 Citations / 0 Warnings

Carswell — 43 Citations / 15 Warnings







Warrant Arrest
2/5 Rosario - 101 Old Plantersville RD
2/6 Aguirre - 21101 Eva ST

2/15 Aguirre - 300 Lone Star PKWY

MVA

2/11 Bracht - 700 Old Plantersville RD
2/14 Bracht - 21100 blk Eva ST

2/21 Aguirrie - 1900 Lone Star PKWY

2/25 Bracht - 23500 Old Plantersville RD

DWI
2/14 Riley - 100 Plez Morgan
2/20 Riley - 16800 FM 149

2/26Riley - 17100 FM 1097

Assault/Disturbance

2/15 Bracht - 21500 Eva 5T

Other
2/6 Aguirre - 101 Old Plantersvilie RD (Terroristic Threat)
2/12 Aguirre - 300 CB Stewart (UUMV)

2/14 Rosario - 26866 TXH WHY 105 W (Reckless Driving)

Arrests / Charges:

Misdemeanor Charges - 18

Felony Charges - 6




Traffic Enforcement
Citations Issued - 90

Warnings Issued - 119

Rosario — 13 Citations 16 Warnings
Aguirre — 16 Citations 22 Warnings
Bracht — 47 Citations 34 Warnings

Riley — 14 Citations 47 Warnings







Jan
Feb
Mar
April
May
June
July
Aug
Sept
Oct
Nov
Dec

Totals

Comparison Chart

Citations/Warrants/Revenue January 2016 - Present

2016

2017

2018

470 332 207
351 233 199
353 394

323 268

229 268

163 254

153 240

324 189

212 143

313 190

226 251

195 217

2164 2402 406

$44,702.82 | $41,830.44 $45,128.89
$67,466.54 | $67,937.61 $51,188.10
$86,201.43 | $62,992.57

$59,388.14 | $47,163.40

$50,854.90 | $47,225.90

$41,238.67 | $37,817.25

$42,990.97 | $43,405.62

$52,923.17 | $31,540.77

$44,256.40 | $24,281.60

$44,138.80 | $37,395.63

$55,221.23 | $35,410.95

$42,698.95 | $41,335.06
$632,082.02 $518,336.80 $96,316.99










UTILITY REPORTS - FEBRUARY 2018

TOTAL REVENU

Utilities $133,326.10
Permits $22,762.20
Community Building $1,805.00

New Water Accts. 17
Disconnected Water Accts. 8
Total Number of Active Accts. 634

PERMITS
Type Permit Total Revenue
Building - Residential 5 $3,602.00
Building - Commercial 6 $12,077.00




Cert. of Occupany 4 $240.00
Manufactured Home 1 $100.00
Special Use 1 $50.00
Irrigation 1 $142.20
Electrical 10 $1,846.00
Mechanical 5 $818.00
Plumbing 9 $3,687.00
Sign 4 $200.00
Total: 46 $22,762.20

COMMUNITY BUILDING

Type of Rental Number of Bookings Revenue
Profit 4 $600.00
Non - Profit 9 $0.00




DECEMBER JANUARY FEBRUARY

Community Building — Irrigation (01-8732-00) 14 18 15
Community Building (01-0130-00) 1 1 2
City Cemetery (01-1110-00) 0 0
City Welcome Sign Irrigation at HWY 105 & 0 5 0
Prairie — Rose Garden (01-8733-00)

North Liberty Sewer Plant 0 0 0
Cedar Break Park Irrigation (01-8736-00) 3 3 4
Cedar Break Park Restrooms (01-8735-00) 2 1 1
Fernland (01-8737-00) 6 1 1
Memory Park (01-5885-00) 50 15 34
Community Building Stage Irrigation — Rose 0 0
Garden (01-6180-00) 0

City Hall & Irrigation (01-6190-00) 34 15 20
Homecoming Park Restrooms (01-8820-00) 0 0 1
Homecoming Park Drinking Ftn (01-8738-00) 1 0 0
Buffalo Springs Sewer Plant (01-8821-00) 2 2 2




City of Montgomery

Operations Report

February 2018
1/18/17-2/17/18



Gulf Utility Services Operations Report
February 28, 2018

Dear City of Montgomery Council Members:

We are pleased to provide you with the monthly operations report. This report summarizes the
major events that occurred during the operating month. Our mission, as always, is to assist the
district in providing safe and reliable water to the residents.

The water plants, wastewater plant and drinking water quality is checked on a daily basis.
Wastewater collection system lift stations are checked three times a week. Alarms are
monitored, and our staff is on 24-hour call. Our construction crews are minutes away from the
City.

Our operators collect and enter all facility data into Kardia. Our operators note any issues or
problems that are observed during the day. Mission Control is instantly aware of the issue and
immediately begins the resolution process. This approach benefits our clients because decisions
can be made based on relevant data.

All the district’s data can be accessed on-line. The data is username and password protected.
The data is integrated with Kardia and updated daily. District alerts that are generated by Kardia
can be sent to board designated recipients. GUS appreciates the trust and confidence that the
board has in our team. We work diligently to provide our clients with accurate and useful
information.

Michael Williams

Vice President of Operations
Gulf Utility Service

Page 2 of 11



Gulf Utility Services Operations Report
February 28, 2018

SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS

District Alerts

01/31/2018 - Lift Station Issue

Upon arrival, both breakers were tripped. Wet well level was high. Breakers were reset, pumps started
pumping. Will continue to monitor. Alarm light was reset once the well was out of high level. Possible
power surge. Facility back to normal.

Page 3 of 11



Gulf Utility Services Operations Report
February 28, 2018

OPERATIONS DETAIL

February Daily Effluent Trend
250000

200000
150000
100000

50000

1/17/2018
1/18/2018
1/19/2018
1/20/2018
1/21/2018
1/22/2018
1/23/2018
1/24/2018
1/25/2018
1/26/2018
2 1/27/2018
1/28/2018
1/29/2018
1/30/2018
1/31/2018
2/1/2018
2/2/2018
2/3/2018
2/4/2018
2/5/2018
2/6/2018
2/7/2018
2/8/2018
2/9/2018
2/10/2018
2/11/2018
2/13/2018

(c0]
—
o
N
S~
(g}
—
S~
o
d

=}
=}
(o]

Daily Effluent o e @ @ Daily Tren

e Flow for the month of January - February was 2,133,000 gallons

e Daily peak flow January 28, 2017 was 202,000 gallons
0 51% of permitted value

e Average Daily Flow 106,650 gallons

0 27% of permitted value

The current permit expires 06/01/2022

Page 4 of 11

2/14/2018
2/15/2018
2/16/2018
2/17/2018
2/18/2018

1.5

(%]
Q
<
(s}
=
=
=
©
o

o B
(6]

o




Gulf Utility Services Operations Report
February 28, 2018

Discharge Limitations

= Daily Average Flow 400,000 gallons (0.4 MGD)
= 2-Hour Peak Flow 833 gpm

= CBOD daily average 10 mg/I

= Total Suspended Solids (TSS) 15 mg/I

=  Ammonium Nitrogen (NH3) 2 mg/I

= Chlorine Residual >1.0 mg/l < 4.0 mg/I

Effluent

TSS, DO, E.Coli, NH3N, PH sample results were all comfortable within the parameters set by the
State of Texas.

Buffalo Springs WWTP Effluent Monitoring Report

Average Monthly T.S.S. 15 MGD 5.70 no
Average Monthly NH3 2 mg/I 0.10 no
Minimal CL2 Residual 1 mg/I 1.05 no

Max CL2 Residual 4 mg/I 3.66 no

Rainfall for the Month \ 3.50 inches

There were no excursions for the month of February

Page 5 of 11



Gulf Utility Services Operations Report
February 28, 2018

Water Report

1/18/2017-2/17/2018

2018
Well Recorded % of Rating YTD YTD % Permitted | Remaining
Name Flow Total G/Day Pumpage Value Permit %
Well 2 0.418 6.64% 0.864 0.557 4.55% 47.551 [ 96.39%
Well 3 0.735 | 11.67% 0.864 1.158 9.46% 47,551 [ 96.39%
Well 4 5.146 | 81.70% 2.160 10.527 | 85.99% 75.100 | 85.98%
Total 6.299 | 100.00% 3.888 12.242 100% 122.651
Flushing 0.185
Subtotal 6.114
Sold 5.791
%
Accounted 95%
Accountability
Total Water Sourced 6.299
Flushing 0.185
Subtotal 6.114
Sold 5.791
Accountability % 95%

Page 6 of 11




Gulf Utility Services Operations Report

February 28, 2018

Well Motor Run Times

Well Total Hrs % Total Peak Day
Name
2 13.3 13.83% 01/31/2018
3 20.9 21.73% 01/25/2017
4 62.0 64.45% 01/19/2018
Total 96.2 100%
WATER PRODUCTION
CONNECTIONS
School 12
Commercial Inside 135
Commercial Outside 1
Residential Inside 530
Residential Outside 25
Church 15
City 15
Hydrant 5
Multifamily 11
Total 749

Page 7 of 11




Gulf Utility Services Operations Report
February 28, 2018

Ground Water Production
13
10
&
[ B CE]
[ "
& wen s
H & Wi d
3
o |I| B || (N | O O
= = = = = = = = = = = = =
I o®E ®@ 3 B ¥ @& ¥ B g B @ B
il ] = i o r= [ & o = | = M

DATE ™

] 8550 Q.000 [l -] 2433 5233
21318 62 Q000 Q418 avis 5146
11818 S843 Q000 RE -] 0423 53
121817 7251 Q000 1768 aza 5583
TMHTHT 253 Q000 amia Q28 L
1HENT a7 Q000 e T 10459
48T 1A Q000 i) a0 10733
aanT 12718 Q000 P T.080 47T
THENT 10006 Q000 o124 5213 4699
81817 e 3 0000 27X == 3sz
18T 2756 0000 40 2080 =
41817 TE36 0000 2E65 1865 ERE
a7 65T 0000 2438 1465 2617
21817 6415 0000 L= 3340 2162
TOTAL BT Q000 28245 22074 196015

Page 8 of 11



Gulf Utility Services Operations Report
February 28, 2018

Water Accountability

B Totsl Sourced
B e S0
i Uniolikzd ‘Waner

o n (=4
-
——
-
-
-
-
{
—
—
I ———

e/
Famr
WiamiT
ST
BEE01T
ez
1WMEET
N
1ZMEET

1162018
2182018

DATE™~™  TOTAL SOURL B UNBILLED WATER

21818 629 i 0505 RES] Q323 a5
11818 5943 S Q574 RES] ] e
18T 785 RE 1815 Q119 1705 ok
TMHTHT 2588 T.I6T 14921 0306 1615 8%
101817 1537 9355 1964 QEa0 1zm 8%
48T 1AGS Q628 1835 1564 056 5%
a1aT 12718 1127 1591 k] 1.388 8%
THENT 10036 9735 a5 e avez %
E1817 e R i 023 -0gE2 101%
a7 e arn 05es5 k-] Q315 7%
L1817 7686 6910 aTms Q457 38 5%
a7 B35 5626 0243 a1 Qs %
21817 E418 5626 aTaz 0421 a3 %

Page 9 of 11



Gulf Utility Services Operations Report
February 28, 2018

Water Sold vs. Treated Water

15

10

(=] wh
—
I

—
-
BHERN]  —

=2 2 = = = = = = = = =
= § 8B 8 8 B B E E § B
& = & £ =] o o = i e b

@ sourcen

B Wener S0

) Urislllsd ‘Watar

Tramsas

DATE * SOURCED WATER 300D UNBILLED WATER TREATED WATER

21818 62 e Q505 gm 6% 3500
11813 S943 53Ea Q574 3956 Ti% 2730
12M8MT T 6136 1815 s41z B5% 3740
MHTHT 9888 TIET 1821 5473 T 4130
101847 1337 9355 1984 e 5% 2730
BT 1 AE3 Q625 1835 7194 7% 1410
ananT 12713 11427 1591 ERLIN 45% 14160
THENT 10036 8235 iE: 4} a0ez 4% 6370
B1317 a9 2105 i 453 % 298]
a7 a2 arn Q585 4053 T £240
4EMT TEE 6910 aTre 415 E% 4730
a7 651 SE2 a243 a0z % 1420

*This data is available on our website. http://www.gulfutility.net/commercial-accounts/

Page 10 of 11



Contact Information

Michael Williams, Vice President of Operations — (B) Water, (B) Wastewater
Phone: (713) 494-1793 Email: michaelw@gulfutility.net

Anthony Freeman, Chief Operator — (B) Water, (B) Wastewater
Phone: (346) 300-5282 Email: anthony@gulfutility.net

Chuck Peterson, President, Owner & CEO
Phone: (832) 373-7276  Email: chuck@gulfutility.net

Julie Addison, Executive Vice President
Phone: (713) 357-4353  Email: julie@gulfutility.net

Lizet Ocampo, Billing Manager
Phone: (832) 497-1253  Email: lizet@gulfutility.net

Corina Swaim, Customer Service Supervisor
Phone: (832) 497-1253 Email: corina@gulfutility.net

Page 11 of 11



1575 Sawdust Road, Suite 400

The Woodlands, Texas 77380-3795

JONES|ICARTER Tel: 281.363.4039
Fax: 281.363.3459

www.jonescarter.com

March 21, 2018

The Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Montgomery

101 Old Plantersville Road
Montgomery, Texas 77316

Re: Engineering Report
Council Meeting: March 27, 2018
City of Montgomery

Dear Mayor and Council:

The following information summarizes our activities on your behalf since the February 27, 2018 Council Meeting:

Status of Previously Authorized Projects:

All projects discussed below are included on the enclosed master schedule and maps of active developments and
capital projects.

a)

b)

c)

d)

Joint Mobility Study

We are collecting previously distributed copies of the final report to exchange pages that have been
updated. Once all copies are collected and pages corrected, we will re-distribute final copies to all
recipients.

Buffalo Springs Drive Bridge Repair (FEMA)

The contractor has started construction on the concrete bulkhead and has completed the first two
sections of the wall and footings. The contractor continues to battle groundwater and storm water
runoff but is still on schedule for a middle of June 2018 completion.

Houston Street Rehabilitation

The contractor has substantially completed all punch list items identified at the final inspection. As you
are aware, Montgomery County Precinct 1 has completed the asphalt paving of the road and Public
Works has placed striping. Upon sufficient growth of vegetation in the roadside ditches, we will
recommend acceptance of the infrastructure.

FM 149 Sanitary Sewer Cleaning and Televising

The contractor has submitted the outstanding items and we are finalizing our review and
recommendations. We plan to present our recommendations at the April 10" meeting of the City
Council. We are continuing to work with the contractor and City staff to reach a resolution regarding
the damages to Lift Station No. 3.

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-438 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046106



City of Montgomery

JONES|CARTER Page 2
March 21, 2018

Status of Previously Authorized Projects (cont.):

e)

f)

g)

h)

i)

k)

Water Distribution System Analysis and Master Plan-CP No. 1, Water Plant No. 2 GST Backfill
As a reminder, this project will be rebid with the Water Plant No. 3 Improvements project.

Water Distribution System Analysis and Master Plan - CP No. 2, 12-inch Waterline Across Town Creek
Bridge

We continue to receive and review submittals from the contractor. It is our understanding the
contractor is prepared to begin construction once the bridge construction has progressed sufficiently.

Water Distribution System Analysis and Master Plan — CP No. 3 — Downtown and SH-105 Waterline
Replacement

As a reminder, this project is included in the TWDB Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (“DWSRF”)
loan. We expect to complete the design in April 2018 and receive plan approval in May 2018.

Water Distribution System Analysis and Master Plan — CP No. 9 - Water Plant No. 3 Improvements
As a reminder, this project is included in the TWDB DWSRF loan. We expect to complete the design in
May 2018 and receive all plan approvals in July 2018. We expect construction to begin in September
2018.

Sanitary Sewer System Analysis and Master Plan — CP No. 3b — Lift Station No. 1 Replacement
As a reminder, this project is included in the TWDB Clean Water State Revolving Fund (“CWSRF”) loan.
We expect to complete the design and receive plan approval by the end of May 2018

Sanitary Sewer System Analysis and Master Plan — CP No. 10 - Lift Station No. 3 Force Main Re-Route
As a reminder, this project is included in TWDB CWSRF loan. We expect to complete the design in April
2018 and receive plan approval in May 2018. We expect construction to begin in August 2018.

18” Gravity Sanitary Sewer Extension
We expect to complete the design in April 2018 and receive all approvals in May 2018. We expect
construction to begin in August 2018.

Baja Road (CDBG)
We expect to complete the design in May 2018 and receive all approvals in June 2018. We expect
construction to begin in August 2018.

GLO Projects

We submitted the required documentation to GrantWorks to complete the review package on March
15™. As a reminder, the projects submitted include the remaining estimated portion of the Buffalo
Springs Drive Bridge; sanitary sewer, drainage, and paving improvements along Martin Luther King. Jr.
and Baja Road including improvements to a tributary of Town Creek; the addition of a generator at
Water Plant No. 3; and improvements to Lift Station No. 3. It is our understanding funding for these
projects will not be available until May 2018 at the earliest.

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-438 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046106



City of Montgomery
JONES|CARTER Page 3

March 21, 2018
Existing and Upcoming Developments:
a) Feasibility Studies
There are no active feasibility studies at this time.
b) Plan Reviews

i. BlueWave Express Car Wash — We did not receive revised plans this month. We received a
request for an encroachment agreement, which is enclosed under separate cover.

Agenda Item - Consideration and possible action regarding an Encroachment and
Maintenance Agreement by and between the City of Montgomery and BW Montgomery
Investment, LLC regarding the encroachment of a proposed private storm sewer within a
public utility easement located at SH 105 and Gardner Drive.

ii. CVS Pharmacy — We received plans on February 7" and provided conditional approval on
February 15, subject to the execution of an encroachment agreement.

Agenda Item — Consideration and possible action regarding an Encroachment and
Maintenance Agreement by and between the City of Montgomery and Montgomery SH
105 Associates, LLC regarding a storm sewer line easement located at FM 2854 and SH105.

ili. The Shoppes at Montgomery — We returned comments to the revised plans on March 8.

iv. Montgomery First, Phase Il - We received plans for the Montgomery First, Phase Il development
on March 7" and returned comments on March 13,

v. Madsen & Richards — We received plans for the 0.28 acre Madsen & Richards tract on March 12t
and returned comments on March 21°%.

vi. State Farm — We received revised plans on March 13" and returned plan approval on March 20,
c) Plat Reviews
i. Samdana Investments — We did not receive a revised plat this month.

Agenda Item — Consideration and possible action regarding Samdana Investments, LP
request for variance from 35 feet to 25 feet along SH 105 and from 15 feet to 10 feet along
John A. Butler Street al within the property bounded by John A. Butler Street to the north,
SH 105 to the south, and Prairie Street to the east.

ii. Madsen & Richards Plat — We received a revised minor plat on March 8™ and plan to return plat
approval this week.

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-438 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046106



City of Montgomery

JONES|CARTER Page 4
March 21, 2018

d) Ongoing Construction

i. West Side at the Park — We provided comments to the as-built drawings and requested additional
information on May 3, 2017. Once all comments and punch list items are addressed we will
recommend the City accept the infrastructure.

ii. Villas of Mia Lago, Section 2 — It is our understanding the contractor has substantially completed
construction of water and sanitary utilities and is waiting for completion of the Lone Star Bend
extension before paving can begin.

e) One-Year Warranty Inspections

i. Hills of Town Creek, Section 2 — It is our understanding the contractor has substantially addressed
all punch list items identified during the one-year warranty inspection.

Agenda Item — Consideration and possible action regarding completion of one year
warranty period and release of maintenance bond for Hills of Town Creek Section 2.

ii.  Terra Vista, Section 1 — As a reminder, City Council authorized the release of the Letter of Credit
for Terra Vista, Section 1 conditional upon the repair of a waterline leak. It is our understanding
the waterline has not yet been repaired.

iiii. Lift Station No. 14 - It is our understanding the City has received funds from the developer for
the cost of repairs to the lift station. Upon completion and final inspection of the lift station, we
will recommend release of the remaining funds deposited with the City.

Meetings and Ongoing Activities:

a) Lone Star Bend Extension and Bois D’ Arc Bend Rehabilitation — It is our understanding construction
of Lone Star Bend is underway and should be complete by the beginning of April.

b) Lone Star Parkway Transportation Improvement Plan (TIP) — We are working with the H-GAC to discuss
planning for the possible acceptance by TxDOT in the future.

c) TxDOT FM 149 Widening — We walked through the downtown area on February 28™ with TxDOT to
visit with property owners and hear their individual concerns about the project. We are working to
schedule a meeting with residents along FM 149 north of the downtown area to discuss the project
and its impact on the residents. We are also working with TxDOT to enter into an Advance Funding
Agreement (AFA) to incorporate the City’s required utility relocation needs with TxDOT's project.

d) Development Handbook and Approval Process — We are working with the City Administrator to

compile a handbook for development in Montgomery. Once complete, the handbook will contain all
processes for development within the City from project initiation to close-out.

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-438 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046106



City of Montgomery

JONES|CARTER Page 5
March 21, 2018

Meetings and Ongoing Activities (cont.):

e) Weekly Operations Conference Call — We continue hosting a weekly conference call with
representatives from Gulf Utility Service, Inc. and City Staff. Items of note discussed during the previous
month included cooling tower operations at Water Plant No. 3, updates on various warranty
inspections, general updates on all active design and construction projects, coordination with ECB
Development and Montgomery County Precinct No. 1 to complete Houston Street, and general
operations of the City’s water and sanitary sewer facilities.

Please contact Ed Shackelford or me if you have any questions.

Sincerely,

Chris Roznovsky, PE
Engineer for the City

CVR/kmv
Enclosures: Project Master Schedule
Active Developments Map
Active Capital Projects Map
cc/enc.: The Planning and Zoning Commission — City of Montgomery
Mr. Jack Yates — City of Montgomery, City Administrator
Ms. Susan Hensley — City of Montgomery, City Secretary
Mr. Larry Foerster — Darden, Fowler & Creighton, LLP, City Attorney

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-438 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046106



City of Montgomery Capital Project Schedule

WBS  Project/Task (Funding) Predecessor Start End Cal. Days| Feb-18 Mar-18 Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19 Apr-19 May-19
Buffalo Springs Drive Bridge

1 Embankment (FEMA/CDBG)

1.1 Prepare Contracts Tue 11/14/17  Thu 11/23/17 10
Final FEMA and CDBG

1.2 Clearance Fri 11/24/17  Thu 12/14/17 21

1.3 Execute Contracts 1.2 Fri 12/15/17 Wed 12/20/17 6

1.4 Issue Notice to Proceed 1.3 Sun 12/24/17 Thu 1/04/18 12

1.5 Construction 1.4 Thu 1/04/18  Wed 7/04/18 180 (I e
Buffalo Springs Drive

2 Waterline (City/Developer)

2.1 Prepare Contracts Tue 11/14/17 Mon 11/27/17 14

2.2 Execute Contracts 2.1 Tue 11/28/17 Mon 12/11/17 14

2.3 Issue Notice to Proceed 2.2 Mon 12/18/17 Wed 12/27/17 10

2.4 Construction 2.3 Tue 1/02/18  Tue 5/01/18 120 (NI
Houston Street Rehabilitation

3 (MEDC/Developer)

3.1 Prepare Contracts Tue 11/14/17 Mon 11/27/17 14

3.2 Execute Contracts 3.1 Tue 11/28/17 Mon 12/11/17 14

3.3 Issue Notice to Proceed 3.2 Sun 12/24/17 Tue 1/02/18 10

3.4 Construction 3.3 Tue 1/02/18  Wed 1/31/18 30

3.5 County Complete Asphalt 3.4 Mon 3/05/18 Thu 3/08/18 4

3.6 City Completes Striping 3.5 Mon 3/12/18 Tue 3/13/18 2
2017 FM 149 Sanitary Sewer

4 Cleaning and Televising (City)
Review Videos and Prepare

4.1 Recommendations Tue 11/14/17 Mon 3/05/18 111
Contractor Address Punch List

4.2 ltems Tue 11/14/17 Tue 1/30/18 30
Present Report and

4.3 Recommendations 41,42 Tue 3/27/18 Tue 3/27/18 1
Lift Station No. 3 Force Main

15 Reroute (TWDB)

5.1 Design Tue 11/14/17 Thu 4/12/18 150

5.2 Approvals 5.1 Fri 4/13/18 Sun 5/27/18 45

5.3 Bidding 5.2 Thu 5/31/18 Wed 6/13/18 14

5.4 Award Contract 5.3 Tue 6/26/18 Tue 6/26/18 1

5.5 Prepare Contracts 5.4 Wed 6/27/18 Tue 7/03/18 7

5.6 Execute Contracts 5.5 Wed 7/04/18 Tue 7/17/18 14

5.7 Issue Notice to Proceed 5.6 Tue 7/24/18 Thu 8/02/18 10

5.8 Construction 5.7 Mon 8/06/18 Fri 10/19/18 75
Downtown Waterline

16 Replacement (TWDB)

6.1 Design Tue 11/14/17 Thu 4/12/18 150

6.2 Approvals 6.1 Sun 4/15/18 Mon 5/28/18 44

6.3 Bidding 6.2 Thu 5/31/18 Thu 6/14/18 15

6.4 Award Contract 6.3 Tue 6/26/18 Tue 6/26/18 1

6.5 Prepare Contracts 6.4 Tue 6/26/18 Mon 7/02/18 7

6.6 Execute Contracts 6.5 Tue 7/03/18  Mon 7/16/18 14

6.7 Issue Notice to Proceed 6.6 Mon 7/23/18  Wed 8/01/18 10

6.8 Construction 6.7 Thu 8/02/18 Tue 1/08/19 160
Water Plant No. 3

7 Improvements (TWDB)

7.1 Design Tue 11/14/17 Tue 5/15/18 182

7.2 Approvals 71 Wed 5/16/18 Sat 7/14/18 60

7.3 Bidding 7.2 Mon 7/16/18 Tue 8/14/18 30

7.4 Award Contract 7.3 Tue 8/14/18 Tue 8/14/18 1

7.5 Prepare Contracts 7.4 Wed 8/15/18 Tue 8/21/18 7

7.6 Execute Contracts 7.5 Wed 8/22/18 Tue 9/04/18 14

7.7 Issue Notice to Proceed 7.6 Tue 9/11/18 Thu 9/20/18 10

7.8 Construction 7.7 Thu 9/20/18 Fri 5/17/19 240




City of Montgomery Capital Project Schedule
WBS  Project/Task (Funding) Predecessor Start End Cal. Days| Feb-18 Mar-18 Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19 Apr-19 May-19
Lift Station No. 1 Relocation
18 (TWDB)
8.1 Finalize Developer Agreement Tue 11/14/17 Wed 12/13/17 30
8.2 Surveying 8.1 Thu 12/14/17 Sat 1/27/18 45
8.3 Geotechnical Analysis 8.1 Thu 12/14/17 Fri 1/12/18 30
8.4 Preliminary Design 8.1 Thu 12/14/17 Fri 1/12/18 30
TWDB Change in Scope
8.5 Approval 8.1 Thu 12/14/17 Sat 1/27/18 45
8.6 Design 8.1,8.2,8.3 Mon 1/15/18 Fri 3/30/18 75
8.7 Approvals 8.4 Fri 3/30/18 Tue 5/29/18 61
8.8 Bidding 8.5 Tue 5/29/18 Wed 6/20/18 23
8.9 Award Contract 8.6 Tue 6/26/18 Tue 6/26/18 1
8.10 Prepare Contracts 8.7 Wed 6/27/18 Tue 7/03/18 7
8.11 Execute Contracts 8.8 Wed 7/04/18 Tue 7/17/18 14
8.12 Issue Notice to Proceed 8.9 Tue 7/24/18 Thu 8/02/18 10
8.13 Construction 8.10 Fri 8/03/18 Thu 2/28/19 210
18" Gravity Sanitary Sewer
9 Extension (Developer)
9.1 Finalize Developer Agreement Tue 11/14/17 Wed 12/13/17 30
9.2 Surveying Thu 12/14/17 Fri 1/26/18 44
9.3 Geotechnical Analysis Thu 12/14/17 Fri 1/12/18 30
9.4 Preliminary Design Thu 12/14/17 Sat 1/27/18 45
9.5 Design 9.1,9.2,9.3 Mon 1/29/18 Fri 4/27/18 89
9.6 Approvals 9.4 Mon 4/30/18 Mon 5/21/18 22
9.7 Bidding 9.5 Tue 5/22/18 Thu 6/14/18 24
9.8 Award Contract 9.6 Tue 6/26/18 Tue 6/26/18 1
9.9 Prepare Contracts 9.7 Wed 6/27/18 Tue 7/03/18 7
9.10 Execute Contracts 9.8 Thu 7/05/18 Wed 7/18/18 14
9.11 Issue Notice to Proceed 9.9 Wed 7/25/18 Fri 8/03/18 10
9.12 Construction 9.10 Mon 8/06/18 Mon 12/03/18 120
Baja Road and Martin Luther
King Water and Drainage
10 Improvements (CDBG)
10.1 Finalize CDBG Contract Tue 11/14/17 Sun 2/11/18 90
10.2 Surveying 10.1 Fri 2/16/18 Sat 3/24/18 37
10.3 Preliminary Design 10.1 Sun 3/25/18 Sat 4/07/18 14
10.4 Design 10.2, 10.3 Sun 4/08/18  Mon 5/14/18 37
10.5 Approvals 10.4 Mon 5/14/18 Sun 5/27/18 14
10.6 Bidding 10.5 Fri 6/01/18 Fri 6/15/18 15
10.7 Award Contract 10.6 Tue 6/26/18 Tue 6/26/18 1
10.8 Prepare Contracts 10.7 Wed 6/27/18 Fri 7/06/18 10
10.9 Execute Contracts 10.8 Fri 7/06/18 Thu 7/19/18 14
10.10 Issue Notice to Proceed 10.9 Thu 7/26/18 Sat 8/04/18 10
10.11 Construction 10.10 Mon 8/06/18 Fri 10/19/18 75
Water Plant No. 2 Ground
11 Storage Tank Backfill (City)
11.1 Bidding Mon 7/16/18 Tue 8/14/18 30
11.2 Award Contract 11.1 Tue 8/14/18 Tue 8/14/18 1
11.3 Prepare Contracts 11.2 Wed 8/15/18 Tue 8/21/18 7
11.4 Execute Contracts 11.3 Wed 8/22/18 Tue 9/04/18 14
11.5 Issue Notice to Proceed 11.4 Tue 9/11/18 Thu 9/20/18 10
11.6 Construction 11.5 Fri 9/21/18 Fri 1/18/19 120




PECAN COVE W £

W FM 1097

ua SHMVO FOVIN

1.6-ACRE
SINGLE FAMILY DEVELOPMENT
(IN DESIGN)

HILLS OF TOWN CREEK
100 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS
(49 LOTS IN DESIGN
51 LOTS COMPLETE)

WEST SIDE AT THE PARK
11 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS
(UNDER CONSTRUCTION)

TOWN CREEK STORAGE
29,000 SF STORAGE FACILITY
(UNDER CONSTRUCTION)

1
0 o
PLanTERSVILLE T

SIMONTON ST

LAWSON ST

z
<
B!
)
P
U”\

LIVING SAVIOR
LUTHERAN CHURCH
EXPANSION AND REMODEL
(IN DESIGN)

LOUISA ST

HERITAGE PLACE
MEDICAL CENTER
18,000 SF MEDICAL
OFFICE BUILDING
(UNDER CONSTRUCTION)

0.28-ACRES COMMERCIAL

ALLEN MADSEN
(IN DESIGN)

FM 149

POND Sﬂ

6T N4

1S Aly3dai

MCCOWAN

N1 NIAIVN

o
2
b4
]
m
%)
1

@
o
X
< N
)
ISR
S <
SR
%)
APACHE WELL CONTROL "
EXPANSION 6’% WA TERSTO
(IN DESIGN) Y NE DR
%
o
P
2 ey
(0]
[
o
ps)

LAKE CREEK VILLAGE, SECTIONS

82 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS COMPLETE
22 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS UNDER CONSTRUCTION

ONE, TWO, AND THREE

22.3 ACRES COMMERCIAL

52-ACRES COMMERCIAL
125,000 SQ.FT. KROGER
ADDITIONAL MIXED
USE RETAIL
(UNDER CONSTRUCTION)

SAMDANA INVESTMENTS
MIXED USE COMMERCIAL
(IN DESIGN)

27-ACRES COMMERCIAL
MIXED USE RETAIL
(IN DESIGN)

FM 2854

ANVIO'M

¥a aNod

GRAND VIEW DR

? AISSANC/EDR

VILLAS OF MIA LAGO

SECTION TWO
42 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS
\© (UNDER CONSTRUCTION)
&
~
N
g
&

20-ACRES COMMERCIAL
MIXED USE RETAIL
(IN DESIGN)

13-ACRES COMMERCIAL
12,000 SQ. FT. PIZZA SHACK
(UNDER CONSTRUCTION)

5.70-ACRES COMMERCIAL

MIXED USE RETAIL
(IN DESIGN)

PO

MOYFOHINNOD)

VICINITY MAP

Scale: 1 inch equals 20 miles

LEGEND

D Active Developments

= City Limits

S Stanley Lake MUD
City ETJ

a City of Conroe ETJ

D City Limits

- Floodway

- 100-year

500-year

MCAD Parcels

User Name: CEH

Date: 1/11/2018

Project Number: 13300-0900-16

ACTIVE
DEVELOPMENTS
(MARCH 2018)
0 750 1,500 N
| ] |
Feet w E
1linch equals 1,500 feet S

Disclaimer: This product is offered for informational purposes and

may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering,

or surveying purposes. It does not representan on-the-ground
survey and represents only the approximate relative location of
property, governmental and/or political boundaries or related
facilities to said boundary. No expresswarranties are made by
Jones & Carter, Inc. concerning the accuracy, completeness,

reliability, or usability of the information included within this exhibit.

11x17.mxd

y\PRJTS\Overalls\D -

\Districts\CityOf

Path: E:\Proj;




SUNNYFIELD FARM

W FM 1097

PECAN COVE W

<
E CHICK LN
>
@ ARNSWORTH LN ;‘;
5 ES
% ot
= o
» z
3 3
Water Plant No. 3
Q Improvements
[TWDB]
(In Design) 2
~
=
w
Baja Road/MLK Drive
Improvements
£
[CDBG] 4
(In Design) o S
9
b
K \ :
b X ) / 4
X © 1 >
) N4 O «w
. ® P 4
44}7/4/( Y "A“ﬁ; EMAOOLs =
2 0 Loy
a U o
@ a () .
sf?K/N‘*iLG ‘ g LSy C'arsiLS No 310
R, ¢ 87 NN
P AR,
S o
v DR ERER
SIMONTONST . OGP\
) N’S;, /\>® = Plez Morgan Drive
LAWSON,ST - VE Rehabilitation
[FEMA]
(Approvals)
Sanitary Sewer
System Evaluation
(Under Review)
Houston Street
Rehabilitation
[MEDC/Developer] i
LS:NoX6 (Under Construction) <Y
? ; (r')é @
= ‘S m >
W52 Z 3T ®
m= T m v
{0 Ol
18‘, e O > @
(2= @Vs’oa- G :— P o Pr— X

2%

Water Plant No. 2
Ground Storage Tank
Backfill System
(On Hold)

0 OF
PLanTERsVILLE®

' 00 p
A | 4
2 I |
itV

: LS'NoY3
. /B
. P ) A

(]

4

&

Downtown and SH-105
Waterline Replacement
[TWDB] ®

(In Design)

&

6vT W4

2 ol

[TWDB]
(In Design)

Lift Station No. 3
Force Main Re-route

@qf\
&
N\
2
o)
x
>
z
o
Y
o
z
o [S]
3 v}
\S‘@Q& 4’V N X
Y/
VE 1y & V& DR
Buffalo Springs Drive %
Bridge and Waterline
Gl [FEMA/CDBG/GLO]
(Construction) GRAND VIEW DR
oR
GRAND VW

Lone Star Bend
[Montgomery County]
(Under Construction)

18" Gravity Sanitary
Sewer Line Extension
[Developer]

(In Design)

FM 2854

RENAISSANCE DR

HARBOR SIDE BLVD

BOIS D'ARC BEND RD

e
) v
¢ F
& @ "rn.
- TNy
§of e
S
o G )
DR g
NE S &
>
&
<
) -
& < -
@ ™
A\ ¥
g &
X0
o] t;ﬁ; 5 |
X3 -
) 4
Lo &
10 o CREEK RD
Cxm: Ir g 5
R ] =
ERNX) IR ey q/\“
QL) ~
2)
ot
SH 105,

Lift Station No. 1
Replacement
[TWDB]

(In Design)

&
3
$
o

E
CRAND pOND o

HARBOR SIDE LN

VICINITY MAP

Scale: 1 inch equals 20 miles

LEGEND

@) Blowoff/Plug
Flush Valve
®  Main Valve
< Reducer
Waterline

l.'___J WP Boundary
¢ Cleanout
Manhole
Lift Station
WWTP
Force Main
Abd Force Main
> Gravity Main
[ J LS/WWTP Boundary
n City Limits

MCAD Parcels

User Name: CEH

Date: 1/11/2018

ACTIVE CAPITAL
PROJECTS

(MARCH 2018)

Project Number: 13300-0900-16

0 750 1,500 N
| ] |

Feet w E
linch equals 1,500 feet S

11x17.mxd

Disclaimer: This product is offered for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes. It does not representan on-the-ground
survey and represents only the approximate relative location of
property, governmental and/or political boundaries or related
facilities to said boundary. No expresswarranties are made by
Jones & Carter, Inc. concerning the accuracy, completeness,
reliability, or usability of the information included within this exhibit.

PRITS\Overalls\ActiveCapProjects.

Y\

\Districts\CityOf

Path: E:\Proj;




CITY OF MONTGOMERY
ACCOUNT BALANCES
For Meeting of March 27, 2018

CHECKING ACCT

PRIOR MONTH END

TOTAL FUNDS

BALANCES INVESTMENTS AVAILABLE

GENERAL FUNDS
OPERATING FUND  #1017375 $ 598,868.04 $ 598,868.04
HOME GRANT FUNDS /COPS UNIVERSAL #103289¢ $ 10.00 $ 10.00
ESCROW FUND #1025873 $ - $ -
PARK FUND #7014236 $ - $ -
POLICE DRUG & MISC FUND  #1025675 $ 10,675.64 $ 10,675.64
INVESTMENTS - GENERAL FUND $ 300,000.00 $ 300,000.00
TEXPOOL - GENERAL FUND  # 00003 $ 208,279.39 $ 208,279.39
TEXPOOL - RESERVE FUND # 00005 $ - $ -
TOTAL GENERAL FUND $ 609,553.68 $ 508,279.39 $ 1,117,833.07
CONSTRUCTION FUND
BUILDING FUND  #1058528 $ - $ -
CONSTRUCTION ACCOUNT  #1058544 $ 188,610.95 $ 188,610.95
BOK Fnancial Series 2017A $ 1,009,884.22 $ 1,009,884.22
BOK Fnancial Series 2017BA $ 1,597,518.53 $ 1,597,518.53
TEXPOOL - CONST # 00009 $ 576.33 $ 576.33
INVESTMENTS - CONSTRUCTION $ - $ -
TOTAL CONSTRUCTION FUND $ 2,796,013.70 $ 576.33 $ 2,796,590.03
DEBT SERVICE FUND
DEBT SERVICE FUND  #7024730 $ 114,296.76 $ 114,296.76
TEXPOOL DEBT SERVICE # 00008 $ - $ 24,536.61 $ 24,536.61
TOTAL DEBT SERVICE FUND $ 114,296.76 $ 24,536.61 $ 138,833.37
COURT SECURITY FUND  #1070580 $ 6,254.48 $ - $ 6,254.48
COURT TECHNICAL FUND #1058361 $ 27,476.25 $ - $ 27,476.25
GRANT FUND
HOME GRANT ACCOUNT  #1059104 $ 9,081.85 $ 9,081.85
GRANT ACCOUNT  #1048479 $ 7,174.81 $ 7,174.81
TOTAL GRANT FUND $ 16,256.66 $ - $ 16,256.66
HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX FUND #1025253 $ 10,083.11 $ - $ 10,083.11
MEDC
CHECKING ACCOUNT #1017938 $ 112,538.25 $ 112,538.25
TEXPOOL - MEDC # 00003 $ 236,483.24 $ 236,483.24
INVESTMENTS - MEDC $ 250,000.00 $ 250,000.00
TOTAL MEDC $ 112,538.25 $ 486,483.24 $ 599,021.49
POLICE ASSET FORFEITURES #1047745 $ 4,272.25 $ 4,272.25
UTILITY FUND
UTILITY FUND  #1017383 $ 260,918.04 $ 260,918.04
CUSTOMER DEPOSITS FUND #1017417 $ - $ -
WATER WORKS & SAN SEWER  #7013840 $ - $ -
TEXPOOL - UTILITY FUND # 00002 $ 18,076.03 $ 18,076.03
TOTAL UTILITY FUND $ 260,918.04 $ 18,076.03 $ 278,994.07
TOTAL ALL FUNDS $ 3,957,663.18 $ 1,037,951.60 $ 4,995,614.78

INVESTMENTS
TEXPOOL - GENERAL FUND $ 208,279.39
INVESTMENTS - GENERAL FUND $ 300,000.00
TEXPOOL - CONST # 00009 $ 576.33
TEXPOOL - DEBT SERVICE # 00008 $ 24,536.61
TEXPOOL - MEDC $ 236,483.24
INVESTMENTS - MEDC $ 250,000.00
TEXPOOL - UTILITY $ 18,076.03
TOTAL ALL INVESTMENTS $ 1,037,951.60




' MUNICIPAL ACCOUNTS
A {* CONSULTING, L.P.

City of Montgomery

Bookkeeper's Report

March 27, 2018

611 Longmire Rd Suite 1 ¢ Conroe, Texas 77304 ¢ Phone: 936.756.1644 * Fax: 936.756.1844



City of Montgomery

Account Balances
As of March 23, 2018

Financial Institution Issue Maturity Interest Account

(Acct Number) Date Date Rate Balance Notes
Fund: Operating
Certificates of Deposit
GREEN BANK (XXXX0365) 12/18/2017 06/18/2018 0.95 % 100,000.00
TEXAS CAPITAL BANK (XXXX0242) 01/08/2018  07/07/2018 0.90 % 100,000.00
ALLEGIANCE BANK (XXXX3545) 02/06/2018  08/05/2018 0.85 % 100,000.00
Money Market Funds
TEXPOOL (XXXX0003) 08/01/2005 1.34 % 208,279.39
Checking Account(s)
FIRST FINANCIAL BANK (XXXX7375) 0.00 % 598,868.04 Checking Account
FIRST FINANCIAL BANK (XXXX5675) 0.00 % 10,675.64 Police Drug & Misc Fund
FIRST FINANCIAL BANK (XXXX5873) 0.00 % 0.00 Escrow
FIRST FINANCIAL BANK (XXXX2895) 0.00 % 10.00 Home Grant / COPS Universal
FIRST FINANCIAL BANK (XXXX42306) 0.00 % 0.00 Park

Fund: Capital Projects

Totals for Operating Fund:

$1,117,833.07

Money Market Funds
TEXPOOL (XXXX0009)

Checking Account(s)

BOK Financial (XXXX3014)

BOK Financial (XXXX4012)

FIRST FINANCIAL BANK (XXXX8528)
FIRST FINANCIAL BANK (XXXX8544)

Fund: Debt Service

12/27/2012 1.34 %

0.00 %
0.00 %
0.00 %
0.00 %

Totals for Capital Projects Fund:

576.33

1,009,884.22
1,597,518.53
0.00
188,610.95

$2,796,590.03

BOKF, NA Escrow - Series 2017A
BOKF, NA Escrow - Series 2017B
Building Fund

Const Ckg-W&S Proj 1058544

Money Market Funds

TEXPOOL (XXXX0008) 12/27/2012 1.34 % 24,536.61
Checking Account(s)
FIRST FINANCIAL BANK (XXXX4730) 0.00 % 114,296.76  Checking Account
Totals for Debt Service Fund: $138,833.37
Fund: CT Security
Checking Account(s)
FIRST FINANCIAL BANK (XXXX0580) 0.00 % 6,254.48 Cash In Bank
Totals for CT Security Fund: $6,254.48
Fund: CT Tech
Checking Account(s)
FIRST FINANCIAL BANK (XXXX8361) 0.00 % 2747625 Cash In Bank
Totals for CT Tech Fund: $27,476.25
Fund: Grant
Checking Account(s)
FIRST FINANCIAL BANK (XXXX8479) 0.00 % 7,174.81 Grant Account



City of Montgomery

Account Balances
As of March 23, 2018

Financial Institution Issue Maturity Interest Account
(Acct Number) Date Date Rate Balance Notes
Fund: Grant
Checking Account(s)
FIRST FINANCIAL BANK (XXXX9104) 0.00 % 9,081.85 Checking Account
Totals for Grant Fund: $16,256.66
Fund: Hotel Occupancy Tax
Checking Account(s)
FIRST FINANCIAL BANK (XXXX5253) 0.00 % 10,083.11 Cash In Bank
Totals for Hotel Occupancy Tax Fund: $10,083.11
Fund: MEDC
Certificates of Deposit
ALLEGIANCE BANK (XXXX2047) 12/17/2017  06/06/2018 0.85 % 100,000.00
ICON BANK (XXXX5334) 01/27/2018  01/27/2019 1.25 % 150,000.00
Money Market Funds
TEXPOOL (XXXX00006) 08/01/2005 1.34 % 236,483.24
Checking Account(s)
FIRST FINANCIAL BANK (XXXX7938) 0.00 % 112,538.25 MEDC Checking
Totals for MEDC Fund: $599,021.49
Fund: Policy Asset Forfeiture
Checking Account(s)
FIRST FINANCIAL BANK (XXXX7745) 0.00 % 4,272.25 Cash In Bank
Totals for Policy Asset Forfeiture Fund: $4,272.25
Fund: Utility
Money Market Funds
TEXPOOL (XXXX0002) 08/01/2005 1.34 % 18,076.03
Checking Account(s)
FIRST FINANCIAL BANK (XXXX7383) 0.00 % 260,918.04 Water & Sewer Fund
FIRST FINANCIAL BANK (XXXX7417) 0.00 % 0.00 Customer Deposit Acct
FIRST FINANCIAL BANK (XXXX3840) 0.00 % 0.00 Water Works
Totals for Utility Fund: $278,994.07

Grand total for City of Montgomery:

$4,995,614.78



City of Montgomery - General

Cash Flow Report - Checking Account
As of March 23, 2018

Num Name Memo Amount Balance
BALANCE AS OF 02/23/2018 $550,182.83
Receipts

Tax Revenue CLL2/18 137,136.04
P&I Tax Rev 2/18 1,308.80
Tax Revenue OS 2/18 750.65
Tax Revenue EOM 2/18 272.54
Court Revenue 37,614.95
Court Revenue - O/S 13,381.15
Miscellaneous Revenue CL 51,694.15
Misc. Revenue O/S 3,237.70
Interest 16.42
Sales Tax Revenue 3/6/18 149,964.30
Deposit for-Waterstone on Lake Conroe Sec 11 15,000.00
StyleCraft Bldrs - Escrow Pmt for Hills of Town Ck Sec 1&2 5,935.63
Total Receipts 416,312.33
Disbursements
27952 Card Service Center First Financial Credit Card Account XXXX 0869 - (3,805.96)
27953 City of Montgomery - Utility Fund Water Usage @ Parks, City Hall, Com Center - 1/1 (608.48)
27954 Ger Nay Pest Control Pest control INV 12380, 12383 (212.00)
27955 Houston Chronicle Advertising invoice 222716064 (36.00)
27956 Jim's Hardware Acct #102 - Invoices - 1/31 (885.86)
27957 Jones & Carter, Inc Engineering - W5841-0026-17 Living Savior Luther (230.00)
27958 Patricia Dugan Comm. Bldg. Deposit Refund (150.00)
27959 Pavers Supply Company Inv. 98415 Ty A Gr 2 Limestone Base (121.24)
27960 Perdue, Brandon, Fielder, Collins, & Mott Collections-Fines and Fees - 11/1/17 - 1/31/2018 (8,213.76)
27961 Personalized Communications, Inc. Answering Service - 18253-020718 (69.14)
27962 Rick Hanna, CBO Inv 17522, 17521 (4,508.50)
27963 Solomon Electric, Inc. INV 13587 CITY HALL - Replaced (1) wall pack o (248.00)
27964 Southwest Solutions Group Netlabels Inv 80791-1 (136.00)
27965 UBEO of East Texas, Inc. Invoice 57238773, 58049604 (2,104.74)
27966 Valero Marketing & Supply Company-2 Acct 7137-8863 for 1/18 (740.02)
27967 Office of the Attorney General 0012541428, 0012011313, 0013412154, 001180485 (2,583.78)
27968 Consolidated Communications Telephone Exp (870.70)
27969 Evident Crime Scene Products, Inc Invoice 128539A (114.01)
27970 Ewing Irrigation Products, Inc. Memory Patk - Order #7021546A (114.75)
27971 Gordon B. Dudley. Jr. Prosecutor Fee 2/22/18 (450.00)
27972 GTIN Fee per service agreement for 2/18 #6475 (3,360.50)
27973 Home Depot Credit Services Acct # #9951 Inv 6071235, 20811 (787.75)
27974 Jones & Carter, Inc Inv 261260,261110,117,116,115,114,113,112,107,10 (11,154.50)
27975 Loretta Burliegh Comm Bldg Deposit Refund (150.00)
27976 Michael Shitley Prosecutor Feel2/7,1/11,1/22/18 (1,350.00)
27977 Miguel Rosario Reimburse of expenses - TAMU TEEX Training F (60.00)
27978 Purchase Power Acct-8000-9090-1015-0170 - Initial Postage 2/18 (500.00)
27979 Rick Hanna, CBO Inv 17532, 33 (4,776.00)
27980 Ricks Auto Shop Auto Repairs - Inv 5579 (110.50)
27981 Stowes' Wrecker & Collision State Inspection Inv 2726 (25.50)
27982 T. Bryant Mather Comm Bldg Deposit refund (150.00)
27983 Texas Specialties/Lone Star Signs 3 Memory Park Signs/ 6 post/panel signs INV 116 (404.61)
27984 TML-Multistate Intergovernmental Health, Life & AD&D Insurance 3/18 - 55011803 (11,295.20)
27985 Tyler Technologies, Inc Monthly fee - Web Site and On Line Billing Compo (41.00)
27986 Valero Marketing & Supply Company Acct #6224 9487 - Fuel Thru 2/13/18 (police) (2,104.29)



City of Montgomery - General

Cash Flow Report - Checking Account
As of March 23, 2018

Num Name Memo Amount Balance

Disbursements

27987 Whitestone Printing Window Envelopes & secondary sheets Inv 2754 (177.00)
27988 Daspit, Laurence F Payroll 3/2/18 (36.94)
27989 Redman, Leslie A. Court Payroll 3/2/18 (106.14)
27990 TMRS 0877, 00877 (12,285.21)
27991 Autumn Redman Mileage reimbursement 12/5/17-3/5/18 (97.50)
27992 Consolidated Communications Telephone Setvice Per Spreadsheet 2/18 (829.00)
27993 Ditttert Rubber Stamp, Ltd. Inv 251050 (34.00)
27994 Entergy Part Utilities per spreadsheet -2/18 (1,464.03)
27995 Evident Crime Scene Products, Inc Invoice 1285398 (82.20)
27996 Ger Nay Pest Control 12581, 83 (212.00)
27997 Innovative Outdoors Inv 1017, 1069 (13,333.34)
27998 Iron Mountain Document Shredding PVX5881 (106.86)
27999 James Riley Travel and Training - for TCOLE Firearms Instruct (735.48)
28000 Jim's Hardware Acct #102 - Invoices - 2/18 (881.26)
28001 LDC CM100017 - Gas Service 101 Plantersville 2/18 (21.95)
28002 McCoy's Building Supply Corporation Acct - 0900-98046487-001 Invoice - 11307379 (112.73)
28003 Montgomery Central Appraisal District Share Funding 2nd Qtr Fees 2018 (1,904.00)
28004 Office Depot Business Credit Supplies 2/18 (651.47)
28005 Pavers Supply Company 98656, 98618 (409.92)
28006 Rick Hanna, CBO Plan Reviews Inv 17534 (1,747.00)
28007 Robert Rosenquist Municipal Court Judge - 2/18 (1,500.00)
28008 Sam's Club Acct #040241083268-7 Inv 07414, 9364 (132.31)
28009 Southwest Solutions Group Inv 1992, 78480 (250.00)
28010 Stowes' Wrecker & Collision Repairs - Police Inv 2717 (230.50)
28011 Thomas Lundsten Cedar Brake Park Garden Maintenance -2/18 (65.00)
28012 TMCCP 2017 Supplement Texas Municipal Law and Proced (47.00)
28013 TML-IRP Contract #6827 - Ins Premium 3/18 (4,505.53)
28014 Tyler Technologies, Inc Inv 025- 213678 Epson TM-H60001V Thermal Re (1,135.00)
28015 Weisinger Materials, Inc Wholsale Decomposed Granite Inv 63317 (68.00)
28016 Hensley, Susan L. 40 Hours Vacation (cash out) (981.37)
28017 Muckleroy, Micha D. 40 Hours Vacation (cash out) (1,053.04)
28019 American Tire Disttibutors Tires Inv. S103481385 Acct No. 216359 (1,426.02)
28020 Amy Sumner Deposit Refund - Community Center Rental 3/11/ (150.00)
28021 Cajun Ready Mix, Ltd. INV # 31748 Peagravel - Fernland (2,900.00)
28022 Christopher Carswell Reimbursement of Expense for - Jims Hardware 3 (14.06)
28023 City of Montgomery - Utility Fund Water Usage @ Patks, City Hall, Com Center - 2/1 (780.66)
28024 Darden,Fowler & Creighton, L.L.P. Legal Fees 2/18 (6,447.00)
28025 Easley Enterprises of Texas, Inc. City Hall General Cleaning Feb 1-28 (375.00)
28026 G & K Services, Inc. INV/REF# 6165236548 thru 6165297876 (1,350.38)
28027 Heartsmart.com Inv HS335106 - Police Supplies (248.00)
28028 Houston Chronicle Advertising invoice 222716065 & 222716067 (379.80)
28029 JK Graphics, Inc. PW Decals and install Inv 33611 (130.00)
28030 Laurel Paving Concrete Sidewalk / Bell Tower to House INV 119 (18,232.00)
28031 Miller Uniforms & Emblems, Inc. Uniforms Acct 299- inv 102606 & 102823 (337.44)
28032 Old Republic Title Co. File No. 1802144 Lot 1-4, of Montgomery Townsit (375.06)
28033 Omnibase Services of Texas, LP 4th Qtr Activity - 2017 PS ID # 417-114170 (326.00)
28034 Personalized Communications, Inc. Answering Service - 18253-030718 (52.26)
28035 Star Hand Car Wash, Inc. Public Works Pick Up - Package #2 Inv 1509 (35.00)
28036 Texas Specialties/Lone Star Signs INV # 11710 Three (3) Signs (36.60)
28037 The Mail Stop Statement Period thru 03/03/2018 (49.53)
28038 Thomas Printing & Publishing Police - Tow Books - Inv 9203 (917.00)
28039 TransUnion Acct 300819 -12/01-12/31/2017 (145.16)



City of Montgomery - General

Cash Flow Report - Checking Account
As of March 23, 2018

Num Name Memo Amount Balance

Disbursements

28040 ULINE, INC. Inv 95333284 Metal Smoke Recp. (370.13)
28041 USA Blue Book Prof Grade SS Probe 5' INV 500226 (121.76)
28042 Verizon Wireless 521590387-00001 (1,575.49)
28043 VPRO Tinters, LLC INV 1929 Tint 07 Honda Fit (135.00)
28044 Weisinger Materials, Inc INV 063397 Wholesale Topsoil (70.00)
28045 Office of the Attorney General 0012541428, 0012011313, 0013412154, 001180485 (2,431.64)
D/M Stop Pmt Fees (60.00)
D/M ETS Corporation Credit Card Fees 2/18 (577.74)
DD Aguirre, Abel Payroll 3/2/18 (1,652.53)
DD Bauer, Timothy M Payroll 3/2/18 (1,340.07)
DD Belmates, Jose N. Payroll 3/2/18 (2,006.16)
DD Bickford, Dana N Payroll 3/2/18 (88.65)
DD Bracht, James C. Payroll 3/2/18 (2,031.58)
DD Carswell, Christopher M Payroll 3/2/18 (1,466.56)
DD Duckett, Kimbetly T. Payroll 3/2/18 (1,408.87)
DD Dupree, April J Payroll 3/2/18 (1,216.86)
DD Hensley, Susan L Payroll 3/2/18 (1,795.03)
DD Hernandez, George J. Payroll 3/2/18 (1,201.08)
DD Kohl, Julic | Payroll 3/2/18 (228.11)
DD Menatd, Tara M Payroll 3/2/18 (1,187.38)
DD Muckleroy, Micha D. Payroll 3/2/18 (2,012.52)
DD Napolitano, James F Payroll 3/2/18 (2,626.95)
DD Raica, Carol D Payroll 3/2/18 (212.88)
DD Rather, Regina S. Payroll 3/2/18 (608.13)
DD Redman, Leslie A. Payroll 3/2/18 (1,228.68)
DD Riley, James A. Payroll 3/2/18 (1,805.94)
DD Rosatio III, Miguel A. Payroll 3/2/18 (1,130.48)
DD Rosendo, Jose A Payroll 3/2/18 (1,207.06)
DD Salas, Francisco A. Payroll 3/2/18 (1,257.06)
DD Standifer, Eric L. Payroll 3/2/18 (1,577.46)
DD Thomas, Ryan A Payroll 3/2/18 (1,294.64)
DD Thompson, Kevin A. Payroll 3/2/18 (927.42)
DD Yates, Jack R Payroll 3/2/18 (3,354.77)
DD Kowarsch, Robert D Payroll 3/2/18 (92.35)
DD Aguirre, Abel Payroll 3/16/18 (1,523.72)
DD Bauer, Timothy M Payroll 3/16/18 (1,331.92)
DD Belmates, Jose N. Payroll 3/16/18 (2,006.16)
DD Bickford, Dana N Payroll 3/16/18 (307.53)
DD Bracht, James C. Payroll 3/16/18 (1,973.27)
DD Carswell, Christopher M Payroll 3/16/18 (1,544.70)
DD Duckett, Kimberly T. Payroll 3/16/18 (1,408.86)
DD Duptee, April | Payroll 3/16/18 (1,180.18)
DD Hensley, Susan L. Payroll 3/16/18 (1,945.02)
DD Hernandez, George J. Payroll 3/16/18 (1,201.08)
DD Kohl, Julie J Payroll 3/16/18 (184.63)
DD Kowarsch, Robert D Payroll 3/16/18 (140.83)
DD Menatd, Tara M Payroll 3/16/18 (1,166.72)
DD Muckleroy, Micha D. Payroll 3/16/18 (2,012.51)
DD Napolitano, James F Payroll 3/16/18 (2,626.93)
DD Rather, Regina S. Payroll 3/16/18 (497.27)
DD Redman, Leslie A. Payroll 3/16/18 (1,221.65)
DD Riley, James A. Payroll 3/16/18 (1,899.99)



City of Montgomery - General

Cash Flow Report - Checking Account
As of March 23, 2018

Num Name Memo Amount Balance

Disbursements

DD Rosatio III, Miguel A. Payroll 3/16/18 (1,130.49)

DD Rosendo, Jose A Payroll 3/16/18 (1,582.48)

DD Salas, Francisco A. Payroll 3/16/18 (1,441.46)

DD Standifer, Eric L. Payroll 3/16/18 (1,577.46)

DD Thomas, Ryan A Payroll 3/16/18 (1,483.18)

DD Thompson, Kevin A. Payroll 3/16/18 (776.30)

DD Yates, Jack R Payroll 3/16/18 (3,514.70)

DD Raica, Carol D Payroll 3/16/18 (212.87)

POL EFTPS 74-2063592 (11,392.44)

POL EFTPS Payroll Liabilities 3/16/18 (11,948.40)

Transfer City of Montgomery- Capital Projects Tsf To Cover Pay Est #1 to Glen Fuqua, Inc -Proj (125,717.85)

Total Disbursements (367,627.12)

BALANCE AS OF 03/23/2018 $598,868.04

FIRST FINANCIAL BANK - #XXXX7375



City of Montgomery - General

Cash Flow Report - Police Drug & Misc Fund Account
As of March 23, 2018

Num Name Memo Amount Balance
BALANCE AS OF 02/23/2018 $10,675.64
Receipts

No Receipts Activity 0.00
Total Receipts 0.00
Disbursements

No Disbursements Activity 0.00
Total Disbursements 0.00
BALANCE AS OF 03/23/2018 $10,675.64

FIRST FINANCIAL BANK - #XXXX5675



City of Montgomery - General

Cash Flow Report - Home Grant / COPS Universal Account
As of March 23, 2018

Num Name Memo Amount Balance
BALANCE AS OF 02/23/2018 $10.00
Receipts

No Receipts Activity 0.00
Total Receipts 0.00
Disbursements

No Disbursements Activity 0.00
Total Disbursements 0.00
BALANCE AS OF 03/23/2018 $10.00

FIRST FINANCIAL BANK - #XXXX2895



8:00 AM City of Montgomery - General Fund

10

03/23/18 Profit & Loss Budget Performance-All
Accrual Basis February 2018
Feb 18 Budget $OverB.. Oct'l7-.. YTDBud.. $OverB.. AnnualB..
Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
14000.1 - Taxes & Franchise Fees
14103 - Beverage Tax 0.00 0.00 0.00 4,484.28 2,750.00 1,734.28 11,000.00
14111 - Franchise Tax 2,768.91 0.00 2,768.91 7,623.40 18,000.00 -10,376.60 72,000.00
14320 - Ad Valorem Taxes
14320.1 - PID Tax Revenue 0.00 35,775.81
14320 - Ad Valorem Taxes - Other 67,931.35 143,465.12 -75,533.77  381,728.10  339,440.34  42,287.76  402,412.00
Total 14320 - Ad Valorem Taxes 67,931.35 143,465.12 -75,533.77  417,503.91  339,440.34  78,063.57  402,412.00
14330 - Penalties & Interest on Adv Tax 643.50 208.33 435.17 1,058.05 1,041.69 16.36 2,500.00
14331 - Rendition Penalties 0.00 16.67 -16.67 0.00 83.31 -83.31 200.00
14600 - Sales Tax 201,476.98 153,004.68  48,472.30  750,678.71  722,061.81  28,616.90 1810800.00
Total 14000.1 - Taxes & Franchise Fees 272,820.74 296,694.80 -23,874.06 1181348.35 1083377.15  97,971.20 2298912.00
14000.2 - Permits & Licenses
14105 - Building Permits 19,789.10  19,822.38 -33.28 75,630.90 62,656.15  12,974.75  175,000.00
14146 - Vendor/Beverage Permits 80.00 8.33 71.67 2,116.00 41.69 2,074.31 100.00
14611 - Sign Fee 200.00 150.00 50.00 1,060.00 750.00 310.00 1,800.00
14612 - Misc Permit Fees(plats & Zoning 0.00 166.67 -166.67 -67.93 833.31 -901.24 2,000.00
Total 14000.2 - Permits & Licenses 20,069.10  20,147.38 -78.28 78,738.97 64,281.15  14,457.82  178,900.00
14000.4 - Fees for Service
14380 - Community Bldg Rental 1,205.00 458.33 746.67 2,940.00 2,291.69 648.31 5,500.00
14381 - Kiosk Revenue 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 30.00 -30.00 30.00
14385 - Right of Way Use Fees 1,506.20 175.00 1,331.20 5,431.38 875.00 4,556.38 2,100.00
Total 14000.4 - Fees for Service 2,711.20 633.33 2,077.87 8,371.38 3,196.69 5,174.69 7,630.00
14000.5 - Court Fines & Forfeitures
14101 - Collection Fees 4,234.39 2,000.00 2,234.39 14,678.14 10,000.00 4,678.14 24,000.00
14102 - Asset Fortfeitures 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 125.00 -125.00 500.00
14106 - Child Belt/Safety (Dedicated) 0.00 100.00 -100.00 46.33 500.00 -453.67 1,200.00
14110 - Fines 44,783.02  45,833.33 -1,050.31  181,081.50 229,166.69 -48,085.19  550,000.00
14118 - OMNI 279.49 166.67 112.82 992.53 833.31 159.22 2,000.00
14125 - Warrant Fees 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 50.00 -50.00 50.00
14126 - Judicial Efficiency (Dedicated) 143.76 145.83 -2.07 545.97 729.19 -183.22 1,750.00
14130 - Accident Reports 18.00 18.00 0.00 231.41 66.00 165.41 180.00
Total 14000.5 - Court Fines & Forfeitures 49,458.66  48,263.83 1,194.83  197,575.88  241,470.19 -43,894.31 579,680.00
14000.6 - Other Revenues
15380 - Unanticipated Income 144.72 10.00 134.72 722.56 30.00 692.56 100.00
15391 - Interest Income 16.42 71.88 -55.46 59.34 337.69 -278.35 707.47
15392 - Interest on Investments 1,964.04 150.00 1,814.04 3,411.74 750.00 2,661.74 1,800.00
Total 14000.6 - Other Revenues 2,125.18 231.88 1,893.30 4,193.64 1,117.69 3,075.95 2,607.47
15350 - Proceeds from sales 0.00 200.00 -200.00 0.00 200.00 -200.00 200.00
15352 - Proceeds from FEMA Dissaster Re 0.00 0.00 0.00 -5,718.73 0.00 -5,718.73 0.00
15393 - Police Grant Revenue 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 -500.00 500.00
Total Income 347,184.88 366,171.22 -18,986.34 1464509.49 1394142.87  70,366.62 3068429.47
Expense
16000 - Personnel
16353.1 - Health Ins. 9,904.70 8,460.51 1,444.19 43,519.90 44,162.22 -642.32  105,990.00
16353.4 - Unemployment Ins. 70.73 833.94 -763.21 198.76 2,095.90 -1,897.14 3,110.00
16353.5 - Workers Comp. 1,866.67 1,670.83 195.84 12,356.57 6,812.31 5,544.26 15,810.00
16353.6 - Dental & Vision Insurance 1,202.50 923.90 278.60 5,682.92 4,682.28 1,000.64 11,780.00
16353.7 - Life & AD&D Insurance 127.19 80.84 46.35 587.40 404.12 183.28 970.00
16353.8 - Crime-Ins 21.96 0.00 21.96 109.79 0.00 109.79 0.00
16560 - Payroll Taxes 7,049.35 7,495.82 -446.47 36,045.39 37,479.26 -1,433.87 89,950.00
16600 - Wages 88,742.14  98,279.17 -9,5637.03  435,213.99  491,395.81 -56,181.82 1179350.00
16600.1 - Overtime 3,156.66 1,443.67 1,712.99 20,825.70 7,704.77  13,120.93 20,000.00
16620 - Retirement Expense 5,580.86 4,216.66 1,364.20 26,478.71 21,083.38 5,395.33 50,600.00
Page 1



8:00 AM City of Montgomery - General Fund

03/23/18 Profit & Loss Budget Performance-All
Accrual Basis February 2018
Feb 18 Budget $OverB.. Oct'l7-.. YTDBud.. $OverB.. AnnualB..
Total 16000 - Personnel 117,722.76  123,405.34 -5,682.58  581,019.13  615,820.05 -34,800.92 1477560.00

16001 - Communications
16338 - Advertising/Promotion

16338.1 - Legal Notices and Pub 0.00 1,434.40
16338 - Advertising/Promotion - Other 124.00 468.92 -344.92 1,515.52 1,844.55 -329.03 4,626.98
Total 16338 - Advertising/Promotion 124.00 468.92 -344.92 2,949.92 1,844.55 1,105.37 4,626.98
Total 16001 - Communications 124.00 468.92 -344.92 2,949.92 1,844.55 1,105.37 4,626.98
16002 - Contract Services
16102 - General Consultant Fees 855.25 2,166.67 -1,311.42 9,942.46 13,833.31 -3,890.85 32,000.00
16220 - Omni Expense 0.00 291.67 -291.67 326.00 1,458.31 -1,132.31 3,500.00
16242 - Prosecutors Fees 2,250.00 958.33 1,291.67 4,950.00 4,791.69 158.31 11,500.00
16280 - Mowing 6,666.67 6,716.67 -50.00 33,333.35 33,583.31 -249.96 80,600.00
16281 - Records Shredding 106.86 213.32
16299 - Inspections/Permits 9,284.50 6,750.00 2,534.50 48,008.68 33,750.00  14,258.68 81,000.00
16310 - Judge's Fee 1,500.00 1,500.00 0.00 7,547.00 7,500.00 47.00 18,000.00
16320 - Legal
16320.1 - House Abatement Legal 36.00 36.00
16320 - Legal - Other 6,267.00 5,166.67 1,100.33 13,847.00 15,833.31 -1,986.31 34,500.00
Total 16320 - Legal 6,303.00 5,166.67 1,136.33 13,883.00 15,833.31 -1,950.31 34,500.00
16321 - Audit Fees 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 12,000.00 -9,000.00 14,000.00
16322 - Engineering 26,405.17 6,833.34  19,571.83 58,456.58 34,166.62  24,289.96 82,000.00
16326 - Collection Agency Fees 0.00 7,500.00 -7,500.00 14,261.93 23,000.00 -8,738.07 45,000.00
16333 - Accounting Fees 8,854.16 7,000.00 1,854.16 39,730.16 35,000.00 4,730.16 84,000.00

16335 - Repairs & Maintenance
16335.1 - Maintenance - Vehicles & Equip

16334 - Gas/Oil 2,474.30 2,666.66 -192.36 13,000.56 13,333.38 -332.82 32,000.00
16343 - Tractor & Mower 0.00 83.33 -83.33 96.50 416.69 -320.19 1,000.00
16357 - Auto Repairs 369.42 1,791.66 -1,422.24 9,269.64 8,958.38 311.26 21,500.00
16373 - Equipment repairs 0.00 791.67 -791.67 518.19 3,958.31 -3,440.12 9,500.00
16374 - Building Repairs-City Hall/Comm 976.49 1,541.67 -565.18 11,123.32 7,708.31 3,415.01 18,500.00
16375 - Street Repairs - Minor

16375.1 - Streets-Preventive Maintenance 0.00 1,500.00 -1,500.00 1,962.80 7,500.00 -5,5637.20 18,000.00

16375 - Street Repairs - Minor - Other 236.04 1,250.00 -1,013.96 3,277.73 6,250.00 -2,972.27 15,000.00
Total 16375 - Street Repairs - Minor 236.04 2,750.00 -2,513.96 5,240.53 13,750.00 -8,509.47 33,000.00
16335.1 - Maintenance - Vehicles & Equip - ... 85.08 125.00 -39.92 85.08 625.00 -539.92 1,500.00

Total 16335.1 - Maintenance - Vehicles & Equip 4,141.33 9,749.99 -5,608.66 39,333.82 48,750.07 -9,416.25 117,000.00

16335 - Repairs & Maintenance - Other 811.92 1,250.00 -438.08 5,393.90 7,000.00 -1,606.10 6,392.72
Total 16335 - Repairs & Maintenance 4,953.25  10,999.99 -6,046.74 44,727.72 55,750.07 -11,022.35  123,392.72
16337 - Street Signs 0.00 541.67 -541.67 2,230.30 2,708.31 -478.01 6,500.00
16340 - Printing & Office supplies 381.58 600.01 -218.43 5,017.12 2,999.93 2,017.19 7,200.00
16342 - Computers/Website 1,120.16 2,483.33 -1,363.17 14,243.74 12,416.69 1,827.05 29,800.00
16350 - Postage/Delivery 602.00 333.33 268.67 2,946.71 2,241.69 705.02 5,100.00
16351 - Telephone 1,644.88 1,862.51 -217.63 8,357.98 9,312.43 -954.45 22,309.00
16360 - Tax Assessor Fees 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,060.21 7,320.00 -5,259.79 7,320.00
16370 - Election 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 16,000.00
17030 - Mobil Data Terminal 1,460.17 1,333.33 126.84 14,067.25 6,666.69 7,400.56 16,000.00
17031 - Police Officer Scheduling Serv 0.00 166.67 -166.67 562.95 833.31 -270.36 2,000.00
17040 - Computer/Technology 1,680.25 4,604.33 -2,924.08 9,199.49 13,265.21 -4,065.72 24,500.00
17510 - State Portion of Fines/Payouts 0.00 0.00 0.00 34,946.98 50,000.00 -15,053.02  200,000.00

Total 16002 - Contract Services 74,067.90  67,808.52 6,259.38  372,012.93  378,430.88 -6,417.95  946,221.72

16003 - Supplies & Equipment
16244 - Radio Fees 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4,398.24
16328 - Uniforms 46.50 1,166.67 -1,120.17 4,699.67 6,333.31 -1,633.64 14,500.00
16328.1 - Protective Gear 0.00 250.00 -250.00 0.00 1,250.00 -1,250.00 3,000.00
16358 - Copier/Fax Machine Lease 1,703.32 1,689.12 14.20 7,863.46 8,476.16 -612.70 20,300.00
Page 2

11



8:00 AM

City of Montgomery - General Fund

03/23/18 Profit & Loss Budget Performance-All
Accrual Basis February 2018
Feb 18 Budget $OverB.. Oct'l7-.. YTDBud.. $OverB.. AnnualB..
16460 - Operating Supplies (Office)
16460.1 - Streets and Drainage 380.61 291.67 88.94 2,063.27 1,458.31 604.96 3,500.00
16460.2 - Cedar Brake Park 80.04 333.33 -253.29 793.04 1,666.69 -873.65 4,000.00
16460.3 - Homecoming Park 80.04 166.67 -86.63 357.08 833.31 -476.23 2,000.00
16460.4 - Fernland Park 80.04 208.33 -128.29 450.60 1,041.69 -591.09 2,500.00
16460.5 - Community Building 0.00 333.33 -333.33 66.05 1,666.69 -1,600.64 4,000.00
16460.6 - Tools, Etc 207.72 233.33 -25.61 649.00 1,166.69 -517.69 2,800.00
16460.7 - Memory Park 80.02 250.00 -169.98 1,221.68 1,250.00 -28.32 3,000.00
16460 - Operating Supplies (Office) - Other 1,617.66 1,700.01 -82.35 12,152.46 8,472.18 3,680.28 20,428.72
Total 16460 - Operating Supplies (Office) 2,526.13 3,516.67 -990.54 17,753.18 17,555.56 197.62 42,228.72
16503 - Code Enforcement Expenses 0.00 83.33 -83.33 0.00 416.69 -416.69 1,000.00
17010 - Emergency Equipment 0.00 0.00 0.00 84.94 500.00 -415.06 2,000.00
17050 - Radios 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 18,000.00 -18,000.00 18,000.00
17100 - Capital Purchase Furniture 0.00 2,406.72 -2,406.72 0.00 5,373.00 -5,373.00 11,400.00
16003 - Supplies & Equipment - Other 0.00 250.00 -250.00 641.54 1,250.00 -608.46 3,000.00
Total 16003 - Supplies & Equipment 4,275.95 9,362.51 -5,086.56 31,042.79 59,154.72  -28,111.93  119,826.96
16004 - Staff Development
16241 - Police Training/Education 0.00 616.70 -616.70 0.00 783.10 -783.10 6,800.00
16339 - Dues & Subscriptions 445.00 250.00 195.00 2,441.22 1,249.97 1,191.25 3,500.00
16341 - Community Relations (Education) 0.00 100.00 -100.00 783.22 1,300.00 -516.78 2,700.00
16354 - Travel & Training (Travel) 706.16 1,640.50 -934.34 9,880.99 7,389.55 2,491.44 22,500.00
16004 - Staff Development - Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 150.00 0.00 150.00 0.00
Total 16004 - Staff Development 1,151.16 2,607.20 -1,456.04 13,255.43 10,722.62 2,532.81 35,500.00
16005 - Maintenance
16228 - Park Maint-Memory Pk 124.73 708.33 -583.60 510.82 3,541.69 -3,030.87 8,500.00
16229 - Park Maint - Fernland 80.99 1,925.00 -1,844.01 879.39 9,625.00 -8,745.61 23,100.00
16230 - Park Maint-Cedar Brake Park 196.59 500.00 -303.41 848.55 2,500.00 -1,651.45 6,000.00
16231 - Park Maint. - Homecoming Park 0.00 166.67 -166.67 0.00 833.31 -833.31 2,000.00
Total 16005 - Maintenance 402.31 3,300.00 -2,897.69 2,238.76 16,500.00 -14,261.24 39,600.00
16006 - Insurance
16353.2 - Liability Ins. 1,940.29 1,175.00 765.29 9,701.45 5,875.00 3,826.45 14,100.00
16353.3 - Property Ins. 676.61 458.34 218.27 3,383.04 2,291.62 1,091.42 5,500.00
Total 16006 - Insurance 2,616.90 1,633.34 983.56 13,084.49 8,166.62 4,917.87 19,600.00
16007 - Utilities
16351.1 - Utilities - Memory Park -Water 0.00 333.33 -333.33 0.00 1,666.69 -1,666.69 4,000.00
16351.2 - Utilities-Fernland Pk-Water 0.00 58.33 -58.33 0.00 291.69 -291.69 700.00
16352.0 - Electronic Sign-City 0.00 50.00 -50.00 275.95 250.00 25.95 600.00
16352.1 - Street Lights 26.33 1,183.33 -1,157.00 4,576.06 5,916.69 -1,340.63 14,200.00
16352.2 - Downtown Lighting 0.00 28.33 -28.33 58.10 141.69 -83.59 340.00
16352.3 - Cedar Brake Park 265.28 250.00 15.28 1,049.85 1,250.00 -200.15 3,000.00
16352.4 - Homecoming Park 211.38 108.33 103.05 701.06 541.69 159.37 1,300.00
16352.5 - Fernland Park 284.88 350.00 -65.12 1,709.65 1,750.00 -40.35 4,200.00
16352.6 - Utilities - City Hall 930.97 875.00 55.97 4,348.49 4,375.00 -26.51 10,500.00
16352.7 - Utilities - Gas 21.95 68.33 -46.38 315.40 441.69 -126.29 920.00
16352.8 - Utilities - Comm Center Bldg 775.05 450.00 325.05 3,101.27 2,250.00 851.27 5,400.00
16352.9 - Utilities-Memory Pk 359.28 833.33 -474.05 2,783.80 4,166.69 -1,382.89 10,000.00
16007 - Utilities - Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 100.00 -100.00 100.00
Total 16007 - Utilities 2,875.12 4,588.31 -1,713.19 18,919.63 23,141.83 -4,222.20 55,260.00
16008 - Capital Outlay
16233 - Cap Outlay- Com Building Proj 0.00 125.00 -125.00 3,243.98 625.00 2,618.98 1,500.00
17070 - Capital Outlay - Police Cars
17070.1 - Emergency Lights, Decals 11,976.94 0.00 11,976.94 15,888.94 0.00  15,888.94 15,000.00
17070.3 - Vid Tec - In Car 0.00 0.00 0.00 41,225.00 13,760.00  27,465.00 34,500.00
17070.4 - Tsf To CPF-Vehicle Replacement 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 15,000.00 -15,000.00 15,000.00
17070 - Capital Outlay - Police Cars - Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 28,142.10 31,750.00 -3,607.90 31,750.00
Page 3

12



8:00 AM

City of Montgomery - General Fund

03/23/18 Profit & Loss Budget Performance-All
Accrual Basis February 2018
Feb 18 Budget $OverB.. Oct'l7-.. YTDBud.. $OverB.. AnnualB..
Total 17070 - Capital Outlay - Police Cars 11,976.94 0.00 11,976.94 85,256.04 60,510.00  24,746.04 96,250.00
17071 - Cap Purchase - Computers/Eqip
17071.1 - Copsync 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 6,500.00 -6,500.00 6,500.00
17071.2 - Radar 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,000.00 -2,000.00 4,000.00
17071.4 - Laser Fish (Software Equip) 0.00 308.23 -308.23 0.00 1,542.39 -1,542.39 3,700.00
17071.6 - Investigative and Testing Equip 196.21 400.00 -203.79 276.11 1,200.00 -923.89 4,000.00
17071.7 - Ballistic Vests & Shields 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,484.13 2,350.00 3,134.13 4,700.00
17071 - Cap Purchase - Computers/Eqip - Other 41.00 583.33 -542.33 8,053.52 5,416.69 2,636.83 17,000.00
Total 17071 - Cap Purchase - Computers/Eqip 237.21 1,291.56 -1,054.35 13,813.76 19,009.08 -5,195.32 39,900.00
17071.5 - Patrol Weapons 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,200.00 -5,200.00 5,200.00
17072 - Capital Outlay-PWorks Items 3,150.98 5,000.00  -1,849.02 49,679.43 25,000.00  24,679.43 60,000.00
17080 - Capital Outlay-Improvements 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 15,000.00 -15,000.00 15,000.00
Total 16008 - Capital Outlay 15,365.13 6,416.56 8,948.57  151,993.21  125,344.08  26,649.13  217,850.00
16009 - Miscellaneous Expenses
16590 - Misc. Expense
16590.2 - Property 149/105 1,555.06 1,555.06
16590 - Misc. Expense - Other 607.74 -1,712.21 2,319.95 3,039.75 779.62 2,260.13 5,447.15
Total 16590 - Misc. Expense 2,162.80 -1,712.21 3,875.01 4,594.81 779.62 3,815.19 5,447.15
16009 - Miscellaneous Expenses - Other 15.34 468.67
Total 16009 - Miscellaneous Expenses 2,178.14 -1,712.21 3,890.35 5,063.48 779.62 4,283.86 5,447.15
16010 - Contingency 0.00 10.00 -10.00 0.00 30.00 -30.00 100.00
16356 - Contract Labor- Streets 0.00 10,768.25 -10,768.25 7,090.00 53,841.26  -46,751.26  129,219.01
16500 - Leases - Parks and Recreation
16504 - Adams Park 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,958.91 3,400.00 -441.09 3,400.00
Total 16500 - Leases - Parks and Recreation 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,958.91 3,400.00 -441.09 3,400.00
17000 - Capital Purchase 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 24,775.62  -24,775.62 24,775.62
17500 - Sales Tax Rebatement 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 20,000.00
Total Expense 220,779.37 228,656.74  -7,877.37 1201628.68 1321951.85 -120,323.17 3098987.44
Net Ordinary Income 126,405.51 137,514.48 -11,108.97  262,880.81 72,191.02 190,689.79  -30,557.97
Other Income/Expense
Other Income
14000.3 - Transfers In
14620.2 - Admin Transfer from MEDC 0.00 0.00 0.00 9,375.00 9,375.00 0.00 37,500.00
14620.4 - Admin Trf from Court Security 0.00 0.00 0.00 850.00 850.00 0.00 3,400.00
Total 14000.3 - Transfers In 0.00 0.00 0.00 10,225.00 10,225.00 0.00 40,900.00
Total Other Income 0.00 0.00 0.00 10,225.00 10,225.00 0.00 40,900.00
Net Other Income 0.00 0.00 0.00 10,225.00 10,225.00 0.00 40,900.00
Net Income 126,405.51 137,514.48 -11,108.97  273,105.81 82,416.02 190,689.79 10,342.03
Page 4

13



City of Montgomery - Capital Projects
Cash Flow Report - Const CkgW&S Proj 1058544 Account

As of March 23, 2018

Num Name Memo Amount Balance
BALANCE AS OF 02/23/2018 $263,277.00
Receipts

1st Hartford - for Grav SS Line (Engineering & Design) 57,500.00
Waterstone -Release of Escrow for Utility Extention Project 35,176.87
Total Receipts 92,676.87
Disbursements
1227 ECB Development, LP Pay Est #2 - Houston Street Rehab (8,012.70)
1228 Jones & Carter, Inc. Inv 259980 (Remainder), 261099,261103,105,106 (15,370.75)
1229 Glen Fuqua, Inc Pay Est #1 - Const of Buffalo Sp. Dr. Bridge Emba (125,717.85)
1230 Gulf Utility Services, Inc Part Inv 16187 - Apache Water and Sewer Line Ext (18,241.62)
Total Disbursements (167,342.92)
BALANCE AS OF 03/23/2018 $188,610.95

FIRST FINANCIAL BANK - #XXXX8544

14



City of Montgomery - Capital Projects

Cash Flow Report - BOKF, NA Escrow Series 2017A Account
As of March 23, 2018

Num Name Memo Amount Balance
BALANCE AS OF 02/23/2018 $1,009,167.83
Receipts

Interest on acct 716.39
Total Receipts 716.39
Disbursements

No Disbursements Activity 0.00
Total Disbursements 0.00
BALANCE AS OF 03/23/2018 $1,009,884.22

BOK Financial - #XXXX3014
15



City of Montgomery - Capital Projects

Cash Flow Report - BOKF, NA Escrow Series 2017B Account
As of March 23, 2018

Num Name Memo Amount Balance
BALANCE AS OF 02/23/2018 $1,596,385.29
Receipts

Interest 1,133.24
Total Receipts 1,133.24
Disbursements

No Disbursements Activity 0.00
Total Disbursements 0.00
BALANCE AS OF 03/23/2018 $1,597,518.53

BOK Financial - #XXXX4012
16



City of Montgomery - Capital Projects Acct
Profit & Loss Budget Performance

Accrual Basis February 2018
Feb 18 Budget % of Bud... Oct'17-... YTDBud.. % ofBud... Annual Bu...
Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
43901 - Capital Proj Funding Sourc
43901.1 - Transfer from MEDC 0.00 50,012.50
43901.2 - Transfer from General 21,627.67 21,627.67
43947 - Transfer from Utility Fund
43947A - Tsf from Utility - Capital 0.00 0.00 0.0% 77,400.00 38,700.00 200.0% 154,800.00
43947B - Tsf from Utility - Maint 50,000.00 0.00 100.0% 50,000.00 22,850.00 218.8% 91,400.00
43947C - Tsf fr Utility - Cap Costs Proj 155,286.00 0.00 100.0% 155,286.00 0.00 100.0% 200,000.00
Total 43947 - Transfer from Utility Fund 205,286.00 0.00 100.0%  282,686.00 61,550.00 459.3% 446,200.00
43949 - Transfers from General Fund
43949.1 - Tsf fr Gen - Police Veh Replace 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 15,000.00 0.0% 15,000.00
Total 43949 - Transfers from General Fund 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 15,000.00 0.0% 15,000.00
43952 - Other Fund Reserves/ Transfers
43952.1 - 380 Agmt - 1st Hartford 57,500.00 57,500.00
43952.2 - Util Ext Proj-Waterstone on LC 1,042.04 1,042.04
43952 - Other Fund Reserves/ Transfers - Other 0.00 17,240.10
Total 43952 - Other Fund Reserves/ Transfers 58,542.04 75,782.14
Total 43901 - Capital Proj Funding Sourc 285,455.71 0.00 100.0%  430,108.31 76,550.00 561.9% 461,200.00
43956 - Proceeds - TWDB 2017 A 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00  1,000,000.00 0.0%  1,000,000.00
43959 - FEMA Grant Revenue
43956.1 - FEMA - Bridge 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 1,200,000.00
43956.2 - FEMA-Plez Morgan St 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 300,000.00
43956.3 - Impact Fees 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 75,000.00
Total 43959 - FEMA Grant Revenue 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0%  1,575,000.00
43961 - Grant Funds-CDBG
43961.1 - CDBG Disaster Relief 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 300,000.00 0.0% 300,000.00
Total 43961 - Grant Funds-CDBG 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 300,000.00 0.0% 300,000.00
43964 - Proceeds-TWDB 2017 B 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00  1,606,000.00 0.0%  1,606,000.00
45391 - Interest Earned
45391.1 - Interest Earned Ser 2017A 716.39 2,743.03
45391.2 - Interest Earned Ser 2017B 1,133.24 4,370.60
45391 - Interest Earned - Other 0.56 333.33 0.2% 3.02 1,666.69 0.2% 4,000.00
Total 45391 - Interest Earned 1,850.19 333.33 555.1% 7,116.65 1,666.69 427.0% 4,000.00
Total Income 287,305.90 333.33 86,192.6%  437,224.96  2,984,216.69 14.7%  4,946,200.00
Expense
43890 - Engineering
43890.1 - Eng-Catahoula Aquifer WwW 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00
43890.2 - Eng-WP #3 Improvements 0.00 9,583.33 0.0% 0.00 47,916.69 0.0% 115,000.00
43890.3 - Eng - Lift St #1 Expansion 0.00 7,500.00 0.0% 0.00 37,500.00 0.0% 90,000.00
43890.4 - Eng - Waterline replacement -20,708.75 -9,259.50 0.00 100.0% 0.00
43890.5 - Eng-LS #3/Force Main Re-Route 0.00 1,583.33 0.0% 0.00 7,916.69 0.0% 19,000.00
43890.7 - Eng-Downtown/SH105 Imp 0.00 7,833.33 0.0% 0.00 39,166.69 0.0% 94,000.00
43890 - Engineering - Other 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00
Total 43890 - Engineering -20,708.75 26,499.99 -78.1% -9,259.50 132,500.07 -7.0% 318,000.00
43995 - Const Cost-Contingencies
43995.1 - Cont's -LS#3 Force Main ReRoute 0.00 3,000.00 0.0% 0.00 15,000.00 0.0% 36,000.00
43995.2 - Cont's-LS#1 Replacement/Expans 0.00 11,666.67 0.0% 0.00 58,333.31 0.0% 140,000.00
43995.3 - Cont's-WP#3 Improvements 0.00 12,833.33 0.0% 0.00 64,166.69 0.0% 154,000.00
43995.4 - Cont's-Downtown/SH105 Improve 0.00 10,500.00 0.0% 0.00 52,500.00 0.0% 126,000.00
43995 - Const Cost-Contingencies - Other 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00
Total 43995 - Const Cost-Contingencies 0.00 38,000.00 0.0% 0.00 190,000.00 0.0% 456,000.00
44000 - Wastewater System
44006 - LS #1-Replacement/Expansion 0.00 47,500.00 0.0% 0.00 237,500.00 0.0% 570,000.00
44007 - LS#3 Forcemain Reroute 0.00 12,083.33 0.0% 0.00 60,416.69 0.0% 145,000.00

17



City of Montgomery - Capital Projects Acct
Profit & Loss Budget Performance

Accrual Basis February 2018
Feb 18 Budget % of Bud... Oct'17-... YTDBud.. % ofBud... Annual Bu...
Total 44000 - Wastewater System 0.00 59,583.33 0.0% 0.00 297,916.69 0.0% 715,000.00
45000 - Water System- Capital Proj
43976.1 - Downtown/SH 105 Water Line Imp 0.00 41,833.33 0.0% 14,758.40 209,166.69 7.1% 502,000.00
43992.1 - Water Plant #3 - Improvements 0.00 36,666.67 0.0% 0.00 183,333.31 0.0% 440,000.00
43992.4 - WP#3 Improvements - Other Costs 0.00 14,583.33 0.0% 0.00 72,916.69 0.0% 175,000.00
46000.1 - Water - Meters 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00
Total 45000 - Water System- Capital Proj 0.00 93,083.33 0.0% 14,758.40 465,416.69 32%  1,117,000.00
46000 - Roadway System Improvements
46001 - Plez Morgan Street (FEMA) 0.00 25,000.00 0.0% 0.00 125,000.00 0.0% 300,000.00
46002 - Buffalo Springs Bridge (FEMA) 0.00 125,000.00 0.0%  126,048.60 625,000.00 20.2% 1,500,000.00
Total 46000 - Roadway System Improvements 0.00 150,000.00 0.0% 126,048.60 750,000.00 16.8%  1,800,000.00
47000 - Capital Costs Projects 0.00 16,666.67 0.0% 0.00 83,333.31 0.0% 200,000.00
47395 - Cost of Issuance Exp
47395.1 - Cost of Issuance Series 2017A 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00
47395.3 - TWDB Loan Origination Fee 2017A 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00
Total 47395 - Cost of Issuance Exp 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00
48000 - Cap Outlay-Fac, Equip, Etc
48000.3 - .3 Houston Street Rehab 0.00 91,678.74
48001 - GRP Capital Projects 0.00 7,483.33 0.0% 0.00 37,416.69 0.0% 89,800.00
48002 - Utility Project/ Prev Maint 18,241.62 0.00 100.0% 51,596.75 22,850.00 225.8% 91,400.00
48003 - Buffalo Springs Connection 0.00 5,416.67 0.0% 3,908.33 27,083.31 14.4% 65,000.00
48004 - Police Vehicle Replacement 0.00 1,250.00 0.0% 0.00 6,250.00 0.0% 15,000.00
Total 48000 - Cap Outlay-Fac, Equip, Etc 18,241.62 14,150.00 1289%  147,183.82 93,600.00 157.2% 261,200.00
49000 - Impact Fee Projects 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 75,000.00 0.0% 75,000.00
Total Expense -2,467.13  397,983.32 -0.6%  278,731.32  2,087,766.76 13.4%  4,942,200.00
Net Ordinary Income 289,773.03  -397,649.99 -72.9%  158,493.64 896,449.93 17.7% 4,000.00
Net Income 289,773.03  -397,649.99 -72.9%  158,493.64 896,449.93 17.7% 4,000.00

18



City of Montgomery - Debt Service

Cash Flow Report - Checking Account
As of March 23, 2018

Num Name Memo Amount Balance
BALANCE AS OF 02/23/2018 $667,479.39
Receipts

No Receipts Activity 0.00
Total Receipts 0.00
Disbursements
1043 Zions First National Bank 2017-18 Paying Agent Fee Trust Number 5784524 (250.00)
Wire BOK FINANCIAL Debt Setvice Payment - Seties 2017A - due 3/1/18 (54,967.25)
Wire First National Bank of Huntsville Refunding Bonds Seties 2015- Payment due 3/1/18 (87,761.25)
Wire BOK FINANCIAL Debt Setvice Payment - Seties 2017B - due 3/1/18 (89,957.25)
Wire Zions First National Bank Debt Service Payment Series 2012- due 3/1/18 (177,087.50)
Wire Zions First National Bank Debt Service Payment Seties 2012 R- due 3/1/18 (143,159.38)
Total Disbursements (553,182.63)
BALANCE AS OF 03/23/2018 $114,296.76

FIRST FINANCIAL BANK - #XXXX4730

19



8:15 AM

03/23/18

Accrual Basis

City of Montgomery - Debt Service

Profit & Loss Budget Performance
February 2018

Income
34000 - Taxes & Franchise Fees
34320 - Ad Valorem Taxes
34330 - Penalty & Interest

Total 34000 - Taxes & Franchise Fees

34100 - Transfers
34301.4 - Transfers in-MEDC Fund
34301.5 - Transfers in - Utility Fund

Total 34100 - Transfers

35000 - Other Revenues
35390 - Interest on Checking
35391 - Interest on Investments

Total 35000 - Other Revenues
Total Income

Expense
37000 - Debt Service
37360 - Interest Payments On Note
37363 - Paying Agent Fees
37365 - Interest 2012 Series Premium
37395 - Principal Note Payments

Total 37000 - Debt Service
Total Expense

Net Income

Feb 18 Budget $ Over Bud... Oct'l7-F.. YTDBudget $OverBud... AnnualBu...
70,227.88 216,000.00 -145,772.12 394,632.64 374,401.80 20,230.84 416,002.00
665.30 100.00 565.30 1,093.86 500.00 593.86 1,200.00
70,893.18 216,100.00 -145,206.82 395,726.50 374,901.80 20,824.70 417,202.00
80,000.00 80,000.00 0.00 80,000.00 80,000.00 0.00 160,000.00
38,260.00 0.00 38,260.00 76,520.00 38,260.00 38,260.00 153,040.00
118,260.00 80,000.00 38,260.00 156,520.00 118,260.00 38,260.00 313,040.00
0.00 16.29 0.00 16.29 0.00

25.27 25.00 0.27 130.43 125.00 5.43 300.00
25.27 25.00 0.27 146.72 125.00 21.72 300.00
189,178.45 296,125.00 -106,946.55 552,393.22 493,286.80 59,106.42 730,542.00
22,285.75 117,532.93 -95,247.18 22,285.75 117,532.93 -95,247.18 231,595.56
400.00 0.00 400.00 650.00 2,500.00 -1,850.00 2,500.00
95,246.88 0.00 95,246.88 95,246.88 0.00 95,246.88 0.00
435,000.00 435,000.00 0.00 435,000.00 435,000.00 0.00 435,000.00
552,932.63 552,532.93 399.70 553,182.63 555,032.93 -1,850.30 669,095.56
552,932.63 552,532.93 399.70 553,182.63 555,032.93 -1,850.30 669,095.56
-363,754.18 -256,407.93 -107,346.25 -789.41 -61,746.13 60,956.72 61,446.44
Page 1

20



City of Montgomery - Ct Security Fund

Cash Flow Report - Checking Account
As of March 23, 2018

Num Name Memo Amount Balance
BALANCE AS OF 02/23/2018 $6,254.48
Receipts

No Receipts Activity 0.00
Total Receipts 0.00
Disbursements

No Disbursements Activity 0.00
Total Disbursements 0.00
BALANCE AS OF 03/23/2018 $6,254.48

FIRST FINANCIAL BANK - #XXXX0580
21



City of Montgomery - Ct Security Fund
Profit & Loss Budget Performance

Accrual Basis February 2018
Feb18 Budget $Ove.. Oct'l.. YTD.. $Over.. Annual..
Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
84110 - Court Fines & Forfeitures
84110.1 - Court Security Fees 658.04  500.00  158.04  2,678.85 2,500.00 178.85 6,000.00
Total 84110 - Court Fines & Forfeitures 658.04  500.00  158.04 2,678.85 2,500.00 178.85  6,000.00
84120 - Other Revenues
84120.1 - Interest Income 0.00 0.42 -0.42 0.00 2.06 -2.06 5.00
Total 84120 - Other Revenues 0.00 0.42 -0.42 0.00 2.06 -2.06 5.00
Total Income 658.04  500.42 157.62 2,678.85 2,502.06 176.79  6,005.00
Expense
86005 - Miscellaneous Expenses 0.00 41.67 -41.67 0.00 208.31 -208.31 500.00
Total Expense 0.00 41.67 -41.67 0.00 208.31 -208.31 500.00
Net Ordinary Income 658.04 45875  199.29 2,678.85 2,293.75 385.10  5,505.00
Other Income/Expense
Other Expense
86560 - Interfund Tranfers
86551 - Baliff Transfer to General Fund 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 900.00 -900.00 3,600.00
Total 86560 - Interfund Tranfers 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 900.00 -900.00  3,600.00
Total Other Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 900.00 -900.00  3,600.00
Net Other Income 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00  -900.00 900.00  -3,600.00
Net Income 658.04  458.75 199.29 2,678.85 1,393.75  1,285.10 1,905.00

22



City of Montgomery - Ct Tech Fund

Cash Flow Report - Checking Account
As of March 23, 2018

Num Name Memo Amount Balance
BALANCE AS OF 02/23/2018 $27,476.25
Receipts

No Receipts Activity 0.00
Total Receipts 0.00
Disbursements

No Disbursements Activity 0.00
Total Disbursements 0.00
BALANCE AS OF 03/23/2018 $27,476.25

FIRST FINANCIAL BANK - #XXXX8361
23



City of Montgomery - Ct Tech Fund
Actual to Budget Performance

Accrual Basis

February 2018

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
74100 - Court Fines and Forfeitures
74110 - Court Technology Fees

Total 74100 - Court Fines and Forfeitures

74200 - Other Revenues
74291 - Interest Income

Total 74200 - Other Revenues
Total Income

Expense
76200 - Contract Services
76362 - Computer/Website Services

Total 76200 - Contract Services

76500 - Miscellaneous Expenses
76560 - Miscellaneous Expense

Total 76500 - Miscellaneous Expenses
Total Expense
Net Ordinary Income

Net Income

Feb 18 Budget $Over.. Oct'l7-.. YTDBu.. $Over.. Annual..
897.40 833.33 64.07 3,603.78 4,166.69 -562.91 10,000.00
897.40 833.33 64.07 3,603.78 4,166.69 -562.91  10,000.00
0.00 0.17 -0.17 1.06 0.81 0.25 2.00
0.00 0.17 -0.17 1.06 0.81 0.25 2.00
897.40 833.50 63.90 3,604.84 4,167.50 -562.66  10,002.00
290.98 0.00 290.98 290.98 1,250.00 -959.02 5,000.00
290.98 0.00 290.98 290.98 1,250.00 -959.02 5,000.00
10.00 10.00
10.00 10.00
300.98 0.00 300.98 300.98 1,250.00 -949.02 5,000.00
596.42 833.50 -237.08 3,303.86 2,917.50 386.36 5,002.00
596.42 833.50 -237.08 3,303.86 2,917.50 386.36 5,002.00

24



City of Montgomery - Grant

Cash Flow Report - Grant Account Account
As of March 23, 2018

Num Name Memo Amount Balance
BALANCE AS OF 02/23/2018 $5,074.81
Receipts

Reimbursement for 11/1/17 Engineering Entry 2,100.00
Total Receipts 2,100.00
Disbursements

No Disbursements Activity 0.00
Total Disbursements 0.00
BALANCE AS OF 03/23/2018 $7,174.81

FIRST FINANCIAL BANK - #XXXX8479
25



City of Montgomery - Grant

Cash Flow Report - Checking Account
As of March 23, 2018

Num Name Memo Amount Balance
BALANCE AS OF 02/23/2018 $9,081.85
Receipts

No Receipts Activity 0.00
Total Receipts 0.00
Disbursements

No Disbursements Activity 0.00
Total Disbursements 0.00
BALANCE AS OF 03/23/2018 $9,081.85

FIRST FINANCIAL BANK - #XXXX9104
26



City of Montgomery - Hotel Occupancy Tax Fund

Cash Flow Report - Checking Account
As of March 23, 2018

Num Name Memo Amount Balance
BALANCE AS OF 02/23/2018 $10,083.11
Receipts

No Receipts Activity 0.00
Total Receipts 0.00
Disbursements

No Disbursements Activity 0.00
Total Disbursements 0.00
BALANCE AS OF 03/23/2018 $10,083.11

FIRST FINANCIAL BANK - #XXXX5253
27



City of Montgomery - Hotel Occupancy Tax Fund

Profit & Loss Budget Performance

Accrual Basis February 2018
Feb18 Budget $Ove.. Oct'l... YTD.. $Ove.. Annua..
Income
44300 - Taxes & Franchise Fees
44330 - Hotel Occupancy Taxes 0.00 50.00 -50.00 615.00 250.00 365.00 600.00
Total 44300 - Taxes & Franchise Fees 0.00 50.00 -50.00 615.00 250.00 365.00 600.00
44400 - Other Revenues
44360 - Interest Earned On Checking 0.00 0.42 -0.42 0.00 2.06 -2.06 5.00
44490 - Interest Income 0.00 0.03
Total 44400 - Other Revenues 0.00 042 -0.42 0.03 2.06 -2.03 5.00
Total Income 0.00 50.42 -50.42 615.03 252.06 362.97 605.00
Expense
46600 - Miscellaneous Expenses 0.00 125.00  -125.00 0.00 625.00  -625.00  1,500.00
Total Expense 0.00 125.00  -125.00 0.00 625.00 -625.00  1,500.00
Net Income 0.00 -74.58 74.58 615.03  -372.94 987.97 -895.00

28



City of Montgomery - MEDC

Cash Flow Report - MEDC Checking Account

As of March 23, 2018

Num Name Memo Amount Balance
BALANCE AS OF 02/23/2018 $127,356.59
Receipts

No Receipts Activity 0.00
Total Receipts 0.00
Disbursements
1873 Montgomery Area Chamber of Commerce Partnership Grant for Director Services & Office S (2,566.67)
1874 Montgomery Area Chamber of Commerce Partnership Grant for Director Services & Office S (2,566.67)
1875 Distrx, Inc. 17 Self-Guided Historic Walking Tours - Inv 34856 (1,718.00)
1876 Home Focus 50% Deposit balance for Website & 30H Consult - (3,250.00)
1877 Jones & Carter, Inc. Proj W5841-0001-18 2018 MEDC Montgomery (717.00)
1878 The Retail Coach, LLC Completion of 2018 reports INV 2809 (1,500.00)
1879 Kelvin Arnsworth Initial Payment as agreed - Removal of Blight (2,500.00)
Total Disbursements (14,818.34)
BALANCE AS OF 03/23/2018 $112,538.25

FIRST FINANCIAL BANK - #XXXX7938

29



City of Montgomery - MEDC
Actual to Budget Performance

February 2018
Feb 18 Budget $OverB.. Oct'l7-... YTDBud.. $OverB.. AnnualB..
Income
55000 - Taxes & Franchise Fees
55400 - Sales Tax 67,159.00 55,808.11 11,350.89 250,226.25 220,548.81 29,677.44 530,000.00
Total 55000 - Taxes & Franchise Fees 67,159.00 55,808.11 11,350.89 250,226.25 220,548.81 29,677.44 530,000.00
55300 - Other Revenues
55391 - Interest Income 535.42 91.04 444.38 1,440.88 336.36 1,104.52 950.00
Total 55300 - Other Revenues 535.42 91.04 444.38 1,440.88 336.36 1,104.52 950.00
Total Income 67,694.42 55,899.15 11,795.27 251,667.13 220,885.17 30,781.96 530,950.00
Expense
56000 - Pub Infrastructure - Category |
56000.6 - Downtown Dev Improvments 0.00 0.00 0.00 6,151.38 27,154.75 (21,003.37) 55,000.00
56000.8 - Utility Extensions 0.00 20,003.13 (20,003.13)  137,875.50 25,006.26 112,869.24 180,000.00
56000.9 - Flagship Dev Improvements 0.00 8,000.00 (8,000.00) 4,465.00 8,000.00 (3,535.00) 8,000.00
56430 - Tsf to Debt Service 80,000.00 80,000.00 0.00 80,000.00 80,000.00 0.00 160,000.00
Total 56000 - Pub Infrastructure - Category | 80,000.00 108,003.13 (28,003.13)  228,491.88 140,161.01 88,330.87 403,000.00
56001 - Business Dev & Ret -Category 11
56001.8 - Sales Tax Reimbursement 0.00 35,000.00 (35,000.00) 0.00 35,000.00 (35,000.00) 35,000.00
56423 - Economic Development Grant Prog 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 20,000.00 (20,000.00) 20,000.00
Total 56001 - Business Dev & Ret -Category 11 0.00 35,000.00 (35,000.00) 0.00 55,000.00 (55,000.00) 55,000.00
56002 - Quality of Life - Category 111
56404 - Seasonal Decorations 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,190.41 6,000.00 (4,809.59) 6,000.00
56420.2 - Christmas Lighting(Civic Assn) 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,295.89 1,600.00 695.89 1,600.00
56423.1 - Walking Tours 1,718.00 0.00 1,718.00 1,718.00 4,000.00 (2,282.00) 4,000.00
56429 - Removal of Blight 0.00 2,142.86 (2,142.86) 1,376.78 6,428.56 (5,051.78) 15,000.00
56433 - Downtown Signs 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 (1,000.00) 1,000.00
56435 - Fernland Improvements 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4,000.00 (4,000.00) 4,000.00
56439 - Downtown Enhancement Projects 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 20,000.00 (20,000.00) 20,000.00
Total 56002 - Quality of Life - Category I11 1,718.00 2,142.86 (424.86) 6,581.08 43,028.56 (36,447.48) 51,600.00
56003 - Marketing & Tourism-Category 1V
56408.1 - Promotional Video 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,500.00 (1,500.00) 1,500.00
56409 - Antique Show & Fest 0.00 10,000.00 (10,000.00) 0.00 10,000.00 (10,000.00) 10,000.00
56413 - Brochures/Printed Literature 890.00 1,250.00 (360.00) 4,440.00 2,500.00 1,940.00 5,000.00
56414 - Wine & Music Fest 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 10,000.00
56415 - Texian/Heritage Festival 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 8,000.00
56418 - Christmas in Montgomery 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00 5,000.00
56419 - Website 0.00 166.63 (166.63) 0.00 833.31 (833.31) 2,000.00
Total 56003 - Marketing & Tourism-Category IV 890.00 11,416.63 (10,526.63) 9,440.00 19,833.31 (10,393.31) 41,500.00
56004 - Administration - Category V
56004.1 - Admin Transfers to Gen Fund 9,375.00 9,375.00 0.00 18,750.00 18,750.00 0.00 37,500.00
56004.2 - MACC Administration & Office 5133.34 2,666.67 2,466.67 15,400.02 13,333.31 2,066.71 32,000.00
56004.3 - Miscellaneous Expenses 0.00 420.29 (420.29) 2,830.00 3,254.81 (424.81) 6,000.00
56004.5 - Internship Program 1,500.00 833.33 666.67 1,500.00 4,166.69 (2,666.69) 10,000.00
56327 - Consulting (Professional servi) 3,250.00 0.00 3,250.00 7,754.50 4,999.99 2,754.51 10,000.00
56354 - Travel & Training Expenses 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,100.00 1,680.00 (580.00) 2,800.00
Total 56004 - Administration - Category V 19,258.34 13,295.29 5,963.05 47,334.52 46,184.80 1,149.72 98,300.00
Total Expense 101,866.34 169,857.91 (67,991.57)  291,847.48 304,207.68 (12,360.20) 649,400.00
Net Income (34,171.92)  (113,958.76) 79,786.84 (40,180.35)  (83,322.51) 43,142.16 (118,450.00)

30



City of Montgomery - Police Asset Forfeiture

Cash Flow Report - Checking Account
As of March 23, 2018

Num Name Memo Amount Balance
BALANCE AS OF 02/23/2018 $4,272.25
Receipts

No Receipts Activity 0.00
Total Receipts 0.00
Disbursements

No Disbursements Activity 0.00
Total Disbursements 0.00
BALANCE AS OF 03/23/2018 $4,272.25

FIRST FINANCIAL BANK - #XXXX?7745
31



City of Montgomery - Water & Sewer

Cash Flow Report - Water & Sewer Fund Account

As of March 23, 2018

Num Name Memo Amount Balance
BALANCE AS OF 02/23/2018 $258,508.96
Receipts

A/R Revenue Cleared 89,716.48
A/R Revenue O/S 9,418.87
A/R Revenue 1,822.50
ETS Fees OS 27.50
Interest 10.02
Total Receipts 100,995.37
Disbursements
13766 Accurate Utility Supply, LLC Operating Supplies 141164 (3,097.08)
13767 Censeo Homes Deposit refund 234 Racetrack (80.62)
13768 City of Montgomery - Utility Fund Water Usage Buffalo Spring Sewer Plant & Coolin (46.10)
13769 DXI Industries Inc. INV DE05000695-18 CHLORINE, 150# CYL C (100.00)
13770 Gary Wall Deposit Refund - 208 MCCOWN ST (186.62)
13771 Gulf Utility Service, Inc. Operations - Inv 16098 (24,055.24)
13772 John Tatum Deposit Refund 6 Westway (76.72)
13773 LDC CM100264 Generator - 149 South #1 CM100268 (60.07)
13774 Motik Custom Homes Deposit Refund 219 Bessie Price Owen (96.50)
13775 Neil Technical Services, Inc 78839 WP #3 - Pull In New Wire for Well Controls (3,327.50)
13776 PD Montgomery Trace, LP Deposit refund (135.02)
13777 Sprint Waste Services, LP Sludge Hauling Inv 263430 (9,216.50)
13778 Stylecraft Builders Deposit refund-118 Abner, 230 Brocks, 110 Dudley (276.40)
13779 DXT Industries Inc. CHEMICALS INV 055002707-18 (298.40)
13780 Jones & Carter, Inc Inv 261094, 1098, 1109 (3,692.25)
13781 Techline Pipe, L.P. Order No. 58188-00 (552.50)
13782 Ella Hatchett Refund of Overbilling of Second Trash can 9/29/1 (540.00)
13783 1414 Sakowitz, LLC Deposit refund account 01-8904-03 119 Bessie Pri (60.83)
13784 ACCURATE Meter & Backflow, LLC Inv 27811 (7,250.00)
13785 Conroe Fence Supply Fince at LS #2 - Inv 17139 (355.80)
13786 Consolidated Communications Per attached spreadsheet (194.95)
13787 DataProse, Inc. Inv DP1800525 - 2/18 (824.79)
13788 Entergy Utilities pet spreadsheet 2/18 (5,862.37)
13789 Grainger Invoice 9707919818 & Invoice 9707919800 (78.39)
13790 Lauren Hancock 01-2330-01 Deposit Refund 1102 College (53.62)
13791 LDC CM100264 149 SOUTH, CM100268 hwy 105 WES (63.60)
13792 Lena's Attic Deposit Refund 301 Prairie (186.62)
13793 State Comptroller TIN 1-74-2063592-6 sales tax - Fees - 2/18 (747.57)
13794 Stylecraft Builders 4-Deposit refunds (288.04)
13795 Waste Management Residential Garbage Collection billing 02/18 (6,605.70)
13796 Waste Management (2) Acct 7-23166-83000 - Inv 5522224-1792-0 (563.34)
13797 TML - IRP Insurance Premiums 3/18 (2,431.64)
13798 Assured Flow Sales, Inc. Invoice 12227 (128.30)
13799 Badger Meter Orion Cellular Serv Unit Inv 80018379 (692.42)
13800 City of Montgomery - Utility Fund Water Usage 2/18 (321.12)
13801 DXI Industries Inc. INV #DE05001629-18 Chlorine (100.00)
13802 Entergy Utilities pet spreadsheet 2/18 (2,572.31)
13803 Gulf Utility Service, Inc. Operations - Inv 16187 (18,898.15)
13804 Neil Technical Services, Inc INV #77208-2 Service Call to install repaired pump (1,460.00)
13805 PAVERS SUPPLY COMPANY Limestone - #98800 (142.61)
13806 Texas Excavation Safety System, Inc. INV # 18-01933 Message Fees for FEB 2018 / G (47.50)
D/M ETS Corporation To record ETS Fees Expense (634.04)

32



City of Montgomery - Water & Sewer

Cash Flow Report - Water & Sewer Fund Account
As of March 23, 2018

Num Name Memo Amount Balance
Disbursements
D/M Enhanced Business OLB (25.00)
Transfer City of montgomery - Grant Transfer to cover portion of Pizza Shack Project (2,100.00)
Total Disbursements (98,586.29)
$260,918.04

BALANCE AS OF 03/23/2018

FIRST FINANCIAL BANK - #XXXX7383

33



City of Montgomery - Water & Sewer Fund
Actual to Budget Performance - Utility Fund

34

February 2018
Feb 18 Budget $OverBud... Oct'l7-Fe.. YTDBudget $OverBud.. Annual Bud...
Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
24000 - Charges for Service
24100 - Water Revenue 36,696.24 45,000.00 (8,303.76) 211,935.44 225,000.00 (13,064.56) 540,000.00
24118 - Surface Water Revenue 405.37 500.00 (94.63) 2,408.07 2,500.00 (91.93) 6,000.00
24119 - Application Fee 0.00 125.00 (125.00) 0.00 625.00 (625.00) 1,500.00
24120 - Disconnect Reconnect (225.00) 458.33 (683.33) 2,400.00 2,291.69 108.31 5,500.00
24200 - Sewer Revenue 41,090.84 37,500.00 3,590.84 186,561.74 187,500.00 (938.26) 450,000.00
24310 - Tap Fees/Inspections 11,925.00 12,500.00 (575.00) 110,306.45 62,500.00 47,806.45 150,000.00
24319 - Grease Trap Inspections 1,000.00 833.33 166.67 4,900.00 4,166.69 733.31 10,000.00
24330 - Late Charges 1,632.72 1,250.00 382.72 8,058.83 6,250.00 1,808.83 15,000.00
24333 - Returned Ck Fee 375.00 0.00 375.00 425.00 200.00 225.00 200.00
25403 - Solid Waste Revenue 9,078.05 8,708.33 369.72 44516.11 43,541.69 974.42 104,500.00
Total 24000 - Charges for Service 101,978.22 106,874.99 (4,896.77) 571,511.64 534,575.07 36,936.57 1,282,700.00
24101 - Taxes and Franchise Fees
24110 - Sales Tax Rev for Solid Waste 742.76 666.67 76.09 3,633.53 3,333.31 300.22 8,000.00
Total 24101 - Taxes and Franchise Fees 742.76 666.67 76.09 3,633.53 333331 300.22 8,000.00
24121 - Groundwater Reduction Revenue 9,518.85 10,500.00 (981.15) 56,718.75 52,500.00 4,218.75 126,000.00
25000 - Other Revenues
25000.1 - Impact Fees
25000.2 - Capital Cost Fees 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 100,000.00 (100,000.00) 200,000.00
25000.1 - Impact Fees - Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 75,000.00
Total 25000.1 - Impact Fees 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 100,000.00 (100,000.00) 275,000.00
25391 - Interest Income 10.02 9.17 0.85 74.02 45.81 28.21 110.00
25392 - Interest earned on Investments 18.00 9.17 8.83 71.42 4581 25.61 110.00
25399 - Miscellanous Revenue 175.00 30.00 145.00 572.62 150.00 422.62 360.00
Total 25000 - Other Revenues 203.02 48.34 154.68 718.06 100,241.62 (99,523.56) 275,580.00
25394 - Admin Fund Balance (Carry Over) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 45,500.00 (45,500.00) 45,500.00
Total Income 112,442.85 118,090.00 (5,647.15) 632,581.98 736,150.00 (103,568.02) 1,737,780.00
Expense
26001 - Personnel
26353.1 - Health Ins. 1,042.60 1,616.67 (574.07) 5,117.40 8,083.31 (2,965.91) 19,400.00
26353.4 - Unemployment Ins 4.05 32.50 (28.45) 12.24 162.50 (150.26) 390.00
26353.5 - Workers Comp. 294.32 175.00 119.32 1,734.40 875.00 859.40 2,100.00
26353.6 - Dental Insurance 111.28 145.83 (34.55) 556.40 729.19 (172.79) 1,750.00
26353.7 - Life & AD&D Insurance 52.67 50.00 267 244.63 250.00 (5.37) 600.00
26353.8 - Crime Insurance 21.95 109.74
26501 - Retirement Expense 238.68 558.33 (319.65) 2,280.64 2,791.69 (511.05) 6,700.00
26560 - Payroll Taxes 310.01 1,058.33 (748.32) 2,962.18 5,291.69 (2,329.51) 12,700.00
26600 - Wages 4,052.44 14,166.67 (10,114.23) 38,720.94 70,833.31 (32,112.37) 170,000.00
Total 26001 - Personnel 6,128.00 17,803.33 (11,675.33) 51,738.57 89,016.69 (37,278.12) 213,640.00
26200 - Contract Services
26102 - General Consultant Fees 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 905.00 (905.00) 905.00
26320 - Legal Fees 0.00 1,421.08 (1,421.08) 6,200.00 7,105.44 (905.44) 17,053.00
26322 - Engineering 15,931.25 6,250.00 9,681.25 44,233.29 31,250.00 12,983.29 75,000.00
26323 - Operator 3,300.00 3,365.00 (65.00) 16,500.00 16,825.00 (325.00) 40,380.00
26324 - Billing and Collections 1517.21 985.00 532.21 8,232.08 4,925.00 3,307.08 11,820.00
26328 - Testing 1,231.00 955.00 276.00 8,445.00 4,775.00 3,670.00 11,460.00
26331 - Sales Tax for Solid Waste 747.57 684.42 63.15 3,658.32 3,422.06 236.26 8,213.00
26333 - Accounting Fees 0.00 400.00 (400.00) 1,600.00 2,000.00 (400.00) 4,800.00
26336 - Sludge Hauling 0.00 1,458.33 (1,458.33) 12,064.00 7,291.69 4,772.31 17,500.00
26340 - Printing 0.00 40.14
26350 - Postage 34.00 266.67 (232.67) 1,780.29 1,33331 446.98 3,200.00
26351 - Telephone 154.64 375.00 (220.36) 1,117.27 1,875.00 (757.73) 4,500.00
26370 - Tap Fees & Inspections 0.00 833.33 (833.33) 13,650.00 4,166.69 9,483.31 10,000.00
26399 - Garbage Pickup 6,947.38 7,950.00 (1,002.62) 42,225.38 39,750.00 2,475.38 95,400.00
Total 26200 - Contract Services 29,863.05 24,943.83 4,919.22 159,745.77 125,624.19 34,121.58 300,231.00
26300 - Communications
26338 - Advertising/Promotion 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,055.00 (1,055.00) 1,055.00
Total 26300 - Communications 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,055.00 (1,055.00) 1,055.00
26326 - Permits & Licenses 0.00 1,083.33 (1,083.33) 14,346.06 5,416.69 8,929.37 13,000.00
26371 - Dues & Subscriptions 0.00 0.00 2,000.00 (2,000.00) 2,000.00
26400.1 - Supplies & Equipment
26342 - Chemicals 498.40 1,508.33 (1,009.93) 6,442.50 7,541.69 (1,099.19) 18,100.00
26358 - Copier/Fax Machine Lease 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,920.00 (3,920.00) 3,920.00
26460 - Operating Supplies 3,797.15 5,875.00 (2,077.85) 17,684.24 29,375.00 (11,690.76) 70,500.00
26485 - Uniforms 0.00 266.67 (266.67) 779.37 1,33331 (553.94) 3,200.00
27040 - ComputerTechnology Equipment 0.00 316.67 (316.67) 0.00 1,583.31 (1,583.31) 3,800.00



Feb 18 Budget $OverBud... Oct'l7-Fe.. YTDBudget $OverBud.. Annual Bud...

26400.1 - Supplies & Equipment - Other 0.00 166.67 (166.67) 284.93 833.31 (548.38) 2,000.00
Total 26400.1 - Supplies & Equipment 4,295.55 8,133.34 (3,837.79) 25,191.04 44,586.62 (19,395.58) 101,520.00
26401 - Groundwater Reduction Expenses 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 100.00 (100.00) 100.00
26500 - Staff Development

26354 - Travel & Training (Travel) 0.00 416.67 (416.67) 0.00 2,083.31 (2,083.31) 5,000.00

26355 - Employee Relations (Education) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 200.00 (200.00) 200.00
Total 26500 - Staff Development 0.00 416.67 (416.67) 0.00 2,283.31 (2,283.31) 5,200.00
26600.2 - Maintenance

26335 - Repairs & Maintenance 18,097.95 17,916.67 181.28 81,401.52 89,583.31 (8,181.79) 215,000.00

26335.1 - Vehicle Rep. & Maint. 0.00 83.33 (83.33) 0.00 416.69 (416.69) 1,000.00

26349 - Gas & Oil 0.00 366.67 (366.67) 1,031.48 1,833.31 (801.83) 4,400.00
Total 26600.2 - Maintenance 18,097.95 18,366.67 (268.72) 82,433.00 91,833.31 (9,400.31) 220,400.00
26700 - Insurance Expense

26353.2 - Liability Ins. 200.88 166.67 34.21 1,004.41 833.31 171.10 2,000.00

26353.3 - Property Ins. 1,914.49 1,000.00 914.49 9,572.45 5,000.00 4,572.45 12,000.00
Total 26700 - Insurance Expense 2,115.37 1,166.67 948.70 10,576.86 5,833.31 4,743.55 14,000.00
26800 - Utilities Expense

26352.1 - Utilities - Gas for Generators 0.00 58.33 (58.33) 247.17 291.69 (44.52) 700.00

26352.2 - Utilities-Water Plants 5,123.54 5,500.00 (376.46) 27,743.99 27,500.00 243.99 66,000.00

26352.3 - Utilities-WW Treatment Plants 2,155.12 3,211.67 (1,056.55) 12,302.08 16,058.31 (3,756.23) 38,540.00

26352.4 - Utilities - Lift Stations 1,523.63 1,016.67 506.96 6,583.01 5,083.31 1,499.70 12,200.00

26352.5 - Utilities - Security Light 0.00 11.67 (11.67) 48.74 58.31 (9.57) 140.00

26800.1 - Buffalo Springs STP- Water Usag 28.44 29.17 (0.73) 140.48 145.81 (5.33) 350.00
Total 26800 - Utilities Expense 8,830.73 9,827.51 (996.78) 47,065.47 49,137.43 (2,071.96) 117,930.00
26900 - Capital Outlay

26900.2 - Capital Outlay-Vehicles 0.00 2,891.67 (2,891.67) 34,700.00 14,458.31 20,241.69 34,700.00
Total 26900 - Capital Outlay 0.00 2,891.67 (2,891.67) 34,700.00 14,458.31 20,241.69 34,700.00
26901 - Util Projects/Prev Maintenance

26901.1 - Util Proj/Prev Maint-Tsf to CPF 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 22,850.00 (22,850.00) 91,400.00

26901.2 - Capital Costs-Tsf to CPF 155,286.00 0.00 155,286.00 155,286.00 200,000.00 (44,714.00) 200,000.00

26901.3 - Impact Fees - Tsf to CPF 50,000.00 0.00 50,000.00 50,000.00 0.00 50,000.00 75,000.00

26901 - Util Projects/Prev Maintenance - Other 9,350.00 19,980.00 0.00 19,980.00 0.00
Total 26901 - Util Projects/Prev Maintenance 214,636.00 0.00 214,636.00 225,266.00 222,850.00 2,416.00 366,400.00
27000 - Miscellaneous Expenses

26359 - Misc Expense 659.04 83.33 575.71 3,948.45 416.69 3,531.76 1,000.00
Total 27000 - Miscellaneous Expenses 659.04 83.33 575.71 3,948.45 416.69 3,531.76 1,000.00

Total Expense 284,625.69 84,716.35 199,909.34 655,011.22 654,611.55 399.67 1,391,176.00
Net Ordinary Income (172,182.84) 33,373.65 (205,556.49) (22,429.24) 81,538.45 (103,967.69) 346,604.00
Other Income/Expense

Other Expense

27001 - Other Expenses

27001.2 - Transfer to Debt Service 38,260.00 0.00 38,260.00 76,520.00 38,260.00 38,260.00 153,040.00

27002 - Transfer to Construction Fund 38,700.00 0.00 38,700.00 77,400.00 38,700.00 38,700.00 154,800.00
Total 27001 - Other Expenses 76,960.00 0.00 76,960.00 153,920.00 76,960.00 76,960.00 307,840.00

Total Other Expense 76,960.00 0.00 76,960.00 153,920.00 76,960.00 76,960.00 307,840.00
Net Other Income (76,960.00) 0.00 (76,960.00) (153,920.00) (76,960.00) (76,960.00) (307,840.00)

Net Income (249,142.84) 33,373.65 (282,516.49) (176,349.24) 4,578.45 (180,927.69) 38,764.00

35



City of Montgomery

Summary of Pledged Securities

As of March 23, 2018

Financial Institution: ALLEGIANCE BANK

Total CDs, MM: $200,000.00 Collateral Security Required: No
Less FDIC coverage: $250,000.00 Collateral Security Agreement On File: No
Total pledged securities: $0.00 Investment Policy Received: Yes
Ratio of pledged securities to investments: N/A
Financial Institution: FIRST FINANCIAL BANK (Depository Bank)
Total CDs, MM, and Checking Accounts: $1,350,260.43 Collateral Security Required: Yes
Less FDIC coverage: $250,000.00 Collateral Security Agreement On File: Yes
Total pledged securities: $2,680,926.05 Investment Policy Received: Yes
Ratio of pledged securities to investments: 243.66 %
Financial Institution: GREEN BANK
Total CDs, MM: $100,000.00 Collateral Security Required: No
Less FDIC coverage: $250,000.00 Collateral Security Agreement On File: No
Total pledged securities: $0.00 Investment Policy Received: Yes
Ratio of pledged securities to investments: N/A
Financial Institution: ICON BANK
Total CDs, MM: $150,000.00 Collateral Security Required: No
Less FDIC coverage: $250,000.00 Collateral Security Agreement On File: No
Total pledged securities: $0.00 Investment Policy Received: Yes
Ratio of pledged securities to investments: N/A
Financial Institution: TEXAS CAPITAL BANK
Total CDs, MM: $100,000.00 Collateral Security Required: No
Less FDIC coverage: $250,000.00 Collateral Security Agreement On File: No
Total pledged securities: $0.00 Investment Policy Received: Yes
Ratio of pledged securities to investments: N/A
Financial Institution: TEXPOOL
Total CDs, MM: $487,951.60 Collateral Security Required: No
Less FDIC coverage: $0.00 Collateral Security Agreement On File: Yes
Total pledged securities: $0.00 Investment Policy Received: Yes
Ratio of pledged securities to investments: N/A

36



City of Montgomery

03/01/2018 - 09/30/2024

District Debt Service Payments

37

Paying Agent Series Date Due Date Paid Principal Interest Total Due

Debt Service Payment Due 03/01/2018
Amegy Bank of Texas 2012 03/01/2018 02/28/2018 120,000.00 57,087.50 177,087.50
Amegy Bank of Texas 2012R 03/01/2018 02/28/2018 105,000.00 38,159.68 143,159.68
First National Bank of Huntsville 2015R 03/01/2018 02/28/2018 80,000.00 7,761.25 87,761.25
Bank of Texas 2017A 03/01/2018 02/28/2018 50,000.00 4,767.25 54,767.25
Bank of Texas 2017B 03/01/2018 02/28/2018 80,000.00 9,757.25 89,757.25
Total Due 03/01/2018 435,000.00 117,532.93 552,532.93

Debt Service Payment Due 09/01/2018
Amegy Bank of Texas 2012 09/01/2018 0.00 55,287.50 55,287.50
Amegy Bank of Texas 2012R 09/01/2018 0.00 37,109.38 37,109.38
First National Bank of Huntsville 2015R 09/01/2018 0.00 7,141.25 7,141.25
Bank of Texas 2017A 09/01/2018 0.00 4,767.25 4,767.25
Bank of Texas 2017B 09/01/2018 0.00 9,757.25 9,757.25
Total Due 09/01/2018 0.00 114,062.63 114,062.63

Debt Service Payment Due 03/01/2019
Amegy Bank of Texas 2012 03/01/2019 125,000.00 55,287.50 180,287.50
Amegy Bank of Texas 2012R 03/01/2019 105,000.00 37,109.38 142,109.38
First National Bank of Huntsville 2015R 03/01/2019 85,000.00 7,141.25 92,141.25
Bank of Texas 2017A 03/01/2019 50,000.00 4,767.25 54,767.25
Bank of Texas 2017B 03/01/2019 80,000.00 9,757.25 89,757.25
Total Due 03/01/2019 445,000.00 114,062.63 559,062.63

Debt Service Payment Due 09/01/2019
Amegy Bank of Texas 2012 09/01/2019 0.00 53,412.50 53,412.50
Amegy Bank of Texas 2012R 09/01/2019 0.00 35,993.75 35,993.75
First National Bank of Huntsville 2015R 09/01/2019 0.00 6,376.25 6,376.25
Bank of Texas 2017A 09/01/2019 0.00 4,767.25 4,767.25
Bank of Texas 2017B 09/01/2019 0.00 9,757.25 9,757.25
Total Due 09/01/2019 0.00 110,307.00 110,307.00

Debt Service Payment Due 03/01/2020
Amegy Bank of Texas 2012 03/01/2020 130,000.00 53,412.50 183,412.50
Amegy Bank of Texas 2012R 03/01/2020 110,000.00 35,993.75 145,993.75
First National Bank of Huntsville 2015R 03/01/2020 85,000.00 6,376.25 91,376.25
Bank of Texas 2017A 03/01/2020 50,000.00 4,767.25 54,767.25
Bank of Texas 2017B 03/01/2020 80,000.00 9,757.25 89,757.25
Total Due 03/01/2020 455,000.00 110,307.00 565,307.00

Debt Service Payment Due 09/01/2020
Amegy Bank of Texas 2012 09/01/2020 0.00 51,462.50 51,462.50
Amegy Bank of Texas 2012R 09/01/2020 0.00 34,756.25 34,756.25
First National Bank of Huntsville 2015R 09/01/2020 0.00 5,526.25 5,526.25
Bank of Texas 2017A 09/01/2020 0.00 4,767.25 4,767.25



City of Montgomery

District Debt Service Payments

03/01/2018 - 09/30/2024

38

Paying Agent Series Date Due Date Paid Principal Interest Total Due

Debt Service Payment Due 09/01/2020
Bank of Texas 2017B 09/01/2020 0.00 9,753.25 9,753.25
Total Due 09/01/2020 0.00 106,265.50 106,265.50

Debt Service Payment Due 03/01/2021
Amegy Bank of Texas 2012 03/01/2021 130,000.00 51,462.50 181,462.50
Amegy Bank of Texas 2012R 03/01/2021 115,000.00 34,756.25 149,756.25
First National Bank of Huntsville 2015R 03/01/2021 80,000.00 5,526.25 85,526.25
Bank of Texas 2017A 03/01/2021 50,000.00 4,767.25 54,767.25
Bank of Texas 2017B 03/01/2021 80,000.00 9,753.25 89,753.25
Total Due 03/01/2021 455,000.00 106,265.50 561,265.50

Debt Service Payment Due 09/01/2021
Amegy Bank of Texas 2012 09/01/2021 0.00 49,512.50 49,512.50
Amegy Bank of Texas 2012R 09/01/2021 0.00 33,318.75 33,318.75
First National Bank of Huntsville 2015R 09/01/2021 0.00 4,646.25 4,646.25
Bank of Texas 2017A 09/01/2021 0.00 4,767.25 4,767.25
Bank of Texas 2017B 09/01/2021 0.00 9,681.25 9,681.25
Total Due 09/01/2021 0.00 101,926.00 101,926.00

Debt Service Payment Due 03/01/2022
Amegy Bank of Texas 2012 03/01/2022 135,000.00 49,512.50 184,512.50
Amegy Bank of Texas 2012R 03/01/2022 115,000.00 33,318.75 148,318.75
First National Bank of Huntsville 2015R 03/01/2022 85,000.00 4,646.25 89,646.25
Bank of Texas 2017A 03/01/2022 50,000.00 4,767.55 54,767.55
Bank of Texas 2017B 03/01/2022 80,000.00 9,681.25 89,681.25
Total Due 03/01/2022 465,000.00 101,926.30 566,926.30

Debt Service Payment Due 09/01/2022
Amegy Bank of Texas 2012 09/01/2022 0.00 47,487.50 47,487.50
Amegy Bank of Texas 2012R 09/01/2022 0.00 31,881.25 31,881.25
First National Bank of Huntsville 2015R 09/01/2022 0.00 3,647.50 3,647.50
Bank of Texas 2017A 09/01/2022 0.00 4,742.25 4,742.25
Bank of Texas 2017B 09/01/2022 0.00 9,521.25 9,521.25
Total Due 09/01/2022 0.00 97,279.75 97,279.75

Debt Service Payment Due 03/01/2023
Amegy Bank of Texas 2012 03/01/2023 140,000.00 47,487.50 187,487.50
Amegy Bank of Texas 2012R 03/01/2023 120,000.00 31,881.25 151,881.25
First National Bank of Huntsville 2015R 03/01/2023 90,000.00 3,647.50 93,647.50
Bank of Texas 2017A 03/01/2023 50,000.00 4,742.25 54,742.25
Bank of Texas 2017B 03/01/2023 80,000.00 9,521.25 89,521.25
Total Due 03/01/2023 480,000.00 97,279.75 577,279.75



City of Montgomery

District Debt Service Payments
03/01/2018 - 09/30/2024

39

Paying Agent Series Date Due Date Paid Principal Interest Total Due

Debt Service Payment Due 09/01/2023
Amegy Bank of Texas 2012 09/01/2023 0.00 45,387.50 45,387.50
Amegy Bank of Texas 2012R 09/01/2023 0.00 30,231.25 30,231.25
First National Bank of Huntsville 2015R 09/01/2023 0.00 2,522.50 2,522.50
Bank of Texas 2017A 09/01/2023 0.00 4,669.75 4,669.75
Bank of Texas 2017B 09/01/2023 0.00 9,285.25 9,285.25
Total Due 09/01/2023 0.00 92,096.25 92,096.25

Debt Service Payment Due 03/01/2024
Amegy Bank of Texas 2012 03/01/2024 145,000.00 45,387.50 190,387.50
Amegy Bank of Texas 2012R 03/01/2024 125,000.00 30,231.25 155,231.25
First National Bank of Huntsville 2015R 03/01/2024 90,000.00 2,522.50 92,522.50
Bank of Texas 2017A 03/01/2024 50,000.00 4,669.75 54,669.75
Bank of Texas 2017B 03/01/2024 80,000.00 9,285.25 89,285.25
Total Due 03/01/2024 490,000.00 92,096.25 582,096.25

Debt Service Payment Due 09/01/2024
Wells Fargo Bank, NA 2005A 09/01/2024 03/22/2006 0.00 6,000.00 6,000.00
Amegy Bank of Texas 2012 09/01/2024 0.00 43,212.50 43,212.50
Amegy Bank of Texas 2012R 09/01/2024 0.00 28,512.50 28,512.50
First National Bank of Huntsville 2015R 09/01/2024 0.00 1,330.00 1,330.00
Bank of Texas 2017A 09/01/2024 0.00 4,549.75 4,549.75
Bank of Texas 2017B 09/01/2024 0.00 8,973.25 8,973.25
Total Due 09/01/2024 0.00 92,578.00 92,578.00
District Total $3,225,000.00 $1,453,985.49 $4,678,985.49




Montgomery City Council
AGENDA REPORT

Meeting Date: March 27, 2018

Budgeted Amount:

Prepared By: Jack Yates
City Administrator

Exhibits: Memo from city engineer,
letter of request,
proposed agreement,
Summary of Assets page from
the 380 agreement with The
Shoppes’s developer

Date Prepared: March 22, 2018

This is to consider an Encroachment Agreement with Montgomery 105
Associates, LLC regarding a sign, storm sewer and a paragraph regarding repair
of parking lot pavement should there be a need for future repair,

Description =~

agreement is not reached.

February 27 meeting.

This is for the third meeting in a row consideration of the CVS encroachment
agreement specifically regarding the question of who pays for the pavement
repair of the parking lot should a repair be necessary. Since your March 13%
meeting CVS has again stated that it will not place its store in the city unless
the city is responsible for the pavement repair. As the “kick-off” anchor of the
remainder of the 26-acre site, the entire 380 Agreement is in jeopardy if an

Just as last meeting, there appears to be three options:
1. To require their water and sewer lines to be within the property and
pavement replacement cost borne by CVS (which is your decision at the

2. Requiring the water and sewer to be placed within the property and
payment replacement bome by the city. At a possible cost of $30-
$40,000 (estimate brought down from previous engineers estimate which
I think was particularly high, considering that we just paved an entire
parking lot area for $36,000). Also, the city could restrict other utilities




Montgomery City Council
AGENDA REPORT

by requiring city permission before using this utility therefore the city
could require the repair by the requesting utility at that time.

3. Locating the water and sewer facilities within the right-of-way of the
FM 2854 which exposes the city to relocation should future expansion
of the road require one or both of those lines to be relocated. the cost of
the relocation could easily be $175,000-$200,000 ( a very realistic
estimate).

In my opinion, this is he last time this item appears unless requested by a
Council member.

Opinion. Based upon the unlikelihood of a full parking lot repair required if
the water or sewer line must be repaired (unless completely relocated, the
most likely to happen event is a specific break area of, say, two parking spaces
fo be torn up requiring repair at a cost of $82,500-$4,000). as opposed to the
amount of sales tax that the CVS would produce in a year (rough estimate is
$10-812,000 per month, $120,000 per year) plus the other businesses in the 26
acre development that CVS will spur by their development-- to discuss to the
point of CVS not coming at all over 84, 000 repair or $20,000 repair seems to
be “penny wise and pound foolish”.

Attached is the Summary of Assets from the 380 Agreement—as you remember
the City argued very much in behalf of receiving the $200,000 contribution
toward relocation of Lift Station number one and the contribution of
wastewater freatment plant land in return for a rebate of one half of one cent
of the two cents now collected for sales tax for ten years ( the city, even with
the Agreement gains 75% of every sales tax dollar for the next 10 years and
100 percent thereafter. The question of the pavement repair pales in
comparison of revenue versus the possible expense.

Recommendation

Approval of the Agreement ‘

Approved By
City Administrator

Jack Yates | Date: March 22,2018 |




1676 Sawdust Road, Suite 400

The Woadiandg, Texas 77380-3795

JONES|ICARTER nl: 2B1.3653.4039
Fax: 281.363,9158

'.W.rk‘.'.jorlascm ter.com

March 8, 2018

The Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Montgomery

101 Old Plantersviite Road
Montgaimery, Texas 77316

Re: Proposed Shoppes at Montgomery Public Utility Extension
The Shoppes at Montgomery, Section 1
The City of Montgomery

Dear Mavyer and Council:

As you are aware, at the February 27" meeting of the City Council, you approved an encroachment agreement
with Montgomery SH-105 Associates subject to the removal of all paving references, The developer has
requested that the proposed public water and sanitary sewer lines that were proposed to be located within a
26" wide public utility easement along the eastern boundary of the tract, be relocated into the adjacent TxDOT
right-of-way (“ROW”). Enclosed are layouts showing the orlginal proposed location and the proposed revision,

Locating the proposed public water and sanitary sewer facilities within a 26’ utility easement interior to the tract
woluld expose the developer to risk associated with the cost of pavement removal and replacement during
potential utility repairs by the City. In the unlikely event that all proposed paving within the easement needs to
be removed and replaced, we estimate the cost to the property owner would be between 550,000-570,000,

Locating the proposed public water and sanitary sewer facitities within the £M 2854 ROW would expose the City
to risk assaciated with the relocation of the proposed utilities should future expansions to FM 2854 require the
relocation. We estimate the cost to the City to relocate the proposed water and sahitary sewer lines to be
between §175,000-$200,000.

As always, should you have any questions or need additional information, please do not hesitate to contact us.

Sincerely,

Chris Roznovsky, PE
Engineer for the City

CVR/ab
K:AWS5841\W5841-0900-00 General Cansultation\Correspondence\Letters\2018\MEMO to Council RE €VS Uity Easement.dog
Enc: Original Proposed Public Utility Layout

Revised Proposed Public Utility Layout
Cc {via email): M, Jack Yates — City of Montgomery, City Administrator
Ms. Susan Hensley —~ City of Montgomery, City Secretary
Mr. Larry Foerster — Darden, Fowler & Crelghton, LLP, City Attorney

Toxas Board of Professlonal Englnasrs Ranlstration Na, F-438 | Texas Board of Professtonol Lend Surveying Reqistration No. 10046106







NOTICE OF CONFIDENTIALITY RIGHTS: IF YOU ARE A NATURAL
PERSON, YOU MAY REMOVE OR STRIKE ANY OR ALL OF THE
FOLLOWING INFORMATION FROM ANY INSTRUMENT THAT
TRANSFERS AN INTEREST IN REAL PROPERTY BEFORE IT IS FILED FOR
RECORD IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS: YOUR SOCIAIL SECURITY NUMBER
OR YOUR DRIVER'S LICENSE NUMBER.

STATE OF TEXAS

COUNTY OF MONTGOMERY

ENCROACHMENT AND MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is made this _ day of , 2018,
between the CITY OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS (CITY) and MONTGOMERY SH
105 ASSOCIATES, LLC, a Texas limited lability company (OWNER). The term
“OWNER? shall refer to the owner of the PROPERTY.

RECITALS

OWNER is the owner of certain property (“PROPERTY™) located in the City of
Montgomery, Texas on State Highway 105 East at the corner of FM 2854 which is being
developed by OWNER for a new CVS Pharmacy store, being legally described as
Reserve A, a 2.0795 acre tract of land in the John Corner Survey, A-8, in Montgomery
Counly, Texas, as more particularly described in the Final Plat, The Shoppes at
Montgomery, Section 1, dated January, 2018, and recorded as ,a
copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” (the “Plat™),

OWNER also owns property immediately to the south of the PROPERTY, being
Future Reserve F, 3.5206 acres as depicted on the Plat (“Southern Parcel™).

OWNER is proposing a private storm sewer to be installed within the existing
CITY public utility casement running across the northern portion of the PROPERTY, and
across the existing public sanitary sewer line within the CITY public utility easement.

OWNER also is proposing to construct a private storm sewer within a proposed
public 26 foot wide utility easement fo be created by the Plat, which would cross the
proposed public sanitary sewer and water lines to be installed within the proposed public
26 foot wide utility easement to be created by the Plat, which lines will serve the
Southern Parcel and other future development,

44208198v.2 1




OWNER also is proposiug to place a CVS Pharmacy sign (“Sign™) within existing
public utility easement running actoss the morthemn portion of the PROPERTY in
connection with the consfruction and operation of a CVS Pharmacy store on the
PROPERTY.

OWNER has agreed to regularly maintain the private storm sewer lines and
Sign at its sole expense.

CITY and OWNER agree that CITY may in the future need to make repairs to the
public sanitary sewer and water lines on the Property.

If future repairs to the CITY’s public utilities are required by CITY, the
OWNER’s private storm sewer and Sign may need to be relocated or disturbed in order
for CITY to perform the necessary repairs.

The CVS Pharmacy Sign shall be the property of CVS Pharmacy, Inc. (“CVS™)
and shall be maintained by OWNER. OWNER agrees that CITY shall not incur the
expense of maintaining the Sign, or removing the Sign or replacing it when any repair
work is complete.

The private storm sewer shall be the property of OWNER and shall be maintained
by OWNER. OWNER agrees that CITY shall not incur the expense of maintaining the
private storm sewer, or removing or replacing it when any repair work is complete.

CITY has agreed to the proposed Plat of the Property and OWNER'’S installation
of the Sign and private storm sewer on and along the public utility easements, subject to
the above recitals and the following terms and conditions agreed by OWNER and CITY.

OWNER has agreed to the terms of this Agreement, subject to the above recitals
and the following terms and conditions agreed by OWNER and CITY.

NOW, THEREFORE, be it mutually agreed by OWNER and CITY as follows:

1. Consent to Encroachment. Subject to the above recitals and the terms of this
Agreement, CITY hereby consents and allows OWNER to enter upon the above-
described CITY utility casements on the Property for the purpose of installing, placing
and maintaining the above-described private storm sewer and Sign within the CITY

public utility easements.

44298198v.2 2




2. Term. This Agreement shall have an indefinite term and shall run with title to
the Property until the CITY and the OWNER, or its successors and assigns, agree to
terminate this Agreement.

3, Conditions,

44298198v.2

a. Prior to any construction in or along the CITY public utility easements on

the Property, OWNER shall obtain all licenses or permits necessary to
install the Sign and to construct the private storm sewer or any other
improvements on the Property.

. OWNER shall be solely responsible for the normal maintenance of the

Sign and private storm sewer on the Property and shall maintain them to
avoid any damage to or interference with the CITY facilities, other public
utilities or the general right of CITY to utilize the easements for their
intended purpose. CITY shall be responsible for major repairs to the
public utility sanitary sewer and water lines running within the CITY
public utility easements

. OWNER, as the fee simple owner of title to the Southern Parcel, and its

successors and assigns (as opposed to the OWNER of the PROPERTY)
hereby agrees, in the event of any repairs performed by the CITY, (i) to
restore the PROPERTY and its pavement and parking spaces, to its
preexisting condition immediately following any such repairs, and (ii) to
indemnify the OWNER of the PROPERTY and CVS, against any costs,
damages and expenses arising out of any such repairs by the CITY. In the
event that the OWNER of the Southern Parcel fails to so restore the
PROPERTY and indemnify the OWNER of the PROPERTY and CVS,
then the OWNER of the PROPERTY and CVS shall have the right to
perform such restoration themselves and to invoice the OWNER of the
Southern Parcel for reimbursement of its costs and expenses. In the event
that the OWNER of the Southern Parcel fails to so reimburse the OWNER
of the PROPERTY and CVS within thirty (30) days of invoice, then the
OWNER of the PROPERTY and CVS shall have the right to file and
record a lien against title to the Southern Parcel and to foreclose said lien.

. CITY shall not be responsible to OWNER, its successors, assigns, or any

other party for damages to OWNER’S Sign, its private storm sewer or
other improvements on or along the CITY public utility easements on the
PROPERTY. CITY may, at any time upon reasonable notice, require the




removal of the Sign along the public utility easement for the purpose of
allowing CITY to make repairs to its public utilitics, OWNER shall
remove and, if desired by OWNER, replace such improvements promptly
at its sole expense and shall not be entitled to compensation or damages of
any kind,

e. OWNER shall notify the City in writing of any change in ownership of the
PROPERTY and the Southern Parcel.

4. Notices. Any notice required or permitted under this Agreement shall be
deemed sufficient if delivered in hand or by First Class US Mail addressed to the parties

as follows:
CITY: OWNER
City of Montgomery First Hartford Realty Corporation
ATTN: City Administrator ATTN: John Toic, President
101 Old Plantersville Road 149 Colonial Road
Montgomery, Texas 77356 Manchester, CN 06045

5. Indemnity. OWNER of the PROPERTY shall indemnify, defend and
hold harmless CITY, its elected officials, officers and employees, from any claims,
suits, causes of action, costs or damages arising from OWNER’S action or inaction
relating to maintenance of the Sign and the private storm water lines, or from any
claims for damages arising out of the CITY’S repairs of the public utility lines
within the puablic utility easements.

6. Entire Agreement, This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the
parties hereto, No promise, representation, warranty or covenant not included in this
Agreement has been or is relied on by any party hereto.

7. Construction and Venue. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance
with the laws of the State of Texas. Exclusive venue over any claim or cause of action
arising hereunder shall be in the courts of Montgomery County, Texas.

8. Agreement a Covenant Running With the Tand. This Agreement shall be
recorded in the Real Property Records of Montgomery County, Texas and shall be a
covenant running with the OWNER’S PROPERTY and Southern Parcel, and binding
upon the OWNER’S successors and assigns.

44208(98v.2 4




IN WITNESS WHEREOFT, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be
executed on the day and year first above written.

CITY OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS

By:

Kirk Jones, Mayor

ATTEST:

Susan Hensley City Secretary

State of Texas §

§
County of Montgomery §

This instrument was acknowledged before me on , 2018
by KIRK JONES, mayor of and acting in behalf of the City of Montgomery, Texas.

Notary Public, State of Texas

[SIGNATURES CONTINUED ON THE NEXT PAGI]

[SIGNATURES CONTINUED FROM THE PRECEDING PAGE]

MONTGOMERY SH 105 ASSOCIATES, LLC, a Texas limited liability company

By  FIRST HARTFORD REALTY CORPORATION, its sole Member and Manager

44298198v.2 g




By:
Name:
Title:

State of Texas §

oy

County of Montgomery §

This instrument was acknowledged before me on ,

2018 by , acting under the authority of FIRST
HARFORD REALTY CORPORATION, a Connecticut-based for-profit corporation,

Notary Public, State of

After Recording Return to:

Susan Hensley City Secretary
City of Monigomery, Texas
101 Old Plantersviile Road
Montgomery, Texas 77356

44208193v.2




EXHIBIT A

Copy of the Plat

44298198v.2







Exhibit “C”
Summary of Asscts

Developer’s Contributions: City’s Contributions:

Value of Land (0.92 Acres) for WW'TP - $235,520 Relocation of Lift Station No, 1 —
TWDD Funds

Funds for Relocating Existing Sanitary Sewer - Value of Lift Station Land —

$ 410,00 $ 14,650

Waste Water Treatment Plant Fence- $15,000

Contribution to replacement lift station-
$200,000 Value of WWTP Land - § 33,280

Waiver of Impact Fees - § 485,432

Developer Total - $860,520 City Total - $ 533,362

19

CAUstea\orrste\dgpDais\ Loeal\Mizrso FNWindows\INeCaclie \onten Qratlocky A)PVEHHTAL7-1E-29. FIRAL 388 Final Highlightra] Diaafl {4).docr




Montgomery City Council
AGENDA REPORT

Meeting Date: March 27, 2018 Budgeted Amount:

Exhibits: Memo from city engineer,
letter of request,
proposed agreement

Prepared By: Jack Yates
City Administrator
Date Prepared: March 22,2018

This is to consider a private storm sewer encroachment agreement with Blue
Wave Express Car Wash

This is to allow construction of a portion of the BlueWave Express Car Wash
private storm sewer within the city’s utility easement this agreement will
release the city from all responsibility for damages incurred to the sorcerers
lines as a result of required maintenance and repairs to the public utilities.

Such agreements are fairly often necessary in the complexity of developing a
property in an urban setting, with many of the utilities in conflict.

The City Attorney has reviewed the Agreement.

Recommendation

Approval of the Agreement

Approved By
City Administrator

Jack Yates Date: March 22, 2018










NOTICE OF CONFIDENTIALITY RIGHTS: IF YOU ARE A NATURAL
PERSON, YOU MAY REMOVE OR STRIKE ANY OR ALL OF THE
FOLLOWING INFORMATION FROM ANY INSTRUMENT THAT
TRANSFERS AN INTEREST IN REAL PROPERTY BEFORE IT IS FILED FOR
RECORD IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS: YOUR SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER
OR YOUR DRIVER'S LICENSE NUMBER.

STATE OF TEXAS

COUNTY OF MONTOMERY

ENCROACHMENT AND MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT 1is made this day of , 2018,
between the CITY OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS (CITY) and BW MONTGOMERY
INVESTMENT, LLC, a Texas limited Hability company (OWNER).

RECITALS

OWNER is the owner of certain property (PROPERTY) located in the City of
Montgomery, Texas at 20210 Eva Street which is being developed by OWNER for a new
BlueWave Express Car Wash.

The Property is a 0.82- acre tract of land in the John Corner Survey, A-8, in
Montgomery County, Texas, as more particularly described in the plat attached hereto as
Exhibit “A.”

OWNER is proposing a 4’x4” grate inlet within a 15-inch HDPE storm drainage
pipe (hereinafter collectively called the “storm drainage pipe”) to be installed within the
existing CITY 26-foot public utility easement and across existing public water and
sanitary sewer lines on the Property.

OWNER has agreed to regularly maintain the Owner’s storm drainage pipe at its
sole expense.

CITY and OWNER agree that CITY may in the future need to make major repairs
to the public utility easement on the Property.




If future major repairs to the CITY’s public utilities are required by CITY, the
OWNER’s private storm drainage pipe may need to be relocated or disturbed in order for
CITY to perform the necessary repairs.

The storm drainage pipe shall be the property of OWNER and shall be maintained
by OWNER. OWNER agrees that CITY shall not incur the expense of maintaining such
or removing or replacing it when any repair work is complete.

CITY has agreed to the OWNER’S installation of storm drainage pipe on and
along the public utility easement, subject to the above recitals and the following terms
and conditions agreed by OWNER.

NOW, THEREFORE, be it mutually agreed by OWNER and CITY as follows:

1. Consent to Encroachment. Subject to the above recitals and the terms of this
Agreement, CITY hereby consents and allows OWNER to enter upon the above-
described CITY easement on the Property for the purpose of installing, placing and
maintaining the above-described storm drainage pipe within the CITY public utility
easement.

2. Term. This Agreement shall have an indefinite term and shall run with the
Property until the CITY and the OWNER, or its successors and assigns, agree to
terminate this Agreement.

3. Conditions.

a. Prior to any construction in or along the CITY public utility easement on
the Property, OWNER shall obtain all licenses or permits necessary to
install and construct the OWNER’S storm drainage pipe or any other
improvements on the Property.

b. OWNER shall be solely responsible for the normal maintenance of the
private storm drainage pipe on the Property and shall maintain it to avoid
any damage to or interference with the CITY facilities, other public
utilities or the gencral right of CITY to utilize the casement for its
intended purpose. CITY shall be responsible for major repairs to the
public utility easement (i.e., any work other than the normal maintenance
required by OWNER.)




¢. CITY shall not be responsible to OWNER, its successors, assigns, or any
other party for damages to OWNER’S storm drainage pipe or other
improvements on or along the CITY public utility easement on the
Property. CITY may, at any time upon reasonable notice, require the
relocation of the storm drainage pipe along the public utility easement for
the purpose of allowing CITY to make repairs to its public utilities.
OWNER shall relocate such improvements promptly at its sole expense
and shall not be entitled to compensation or damages of any kind.

d. OWNER shall notify the City in writing of any change in ownership of the
Property.

4. Notices. Any notice required or permitted under this Agreement shall be
deemed sufficient if delivered in hand or by First Class US Mail addressed to the parties
as follows:

CITY OWNER
City of Montgomery BW Montgomery Investment, LLC
ATTN: City Administrator ATTN:

101 Old Plantersville Road
Montgomery, Texas 77356

5. Indemnity. OWNER shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless CITY, its
elected officials, officers and employees, from any claims, suits, causes of action,
costs or damages arising from OWNER’S action or inaction relating to maintenance
of the public utility easement by CITY or any improvements by OWNER on or
along the public utility easement on the Property.

6. Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the
parties hereto. No promise, representation, warranty or covenant not included in this
Agreement has been or is relied on by any party hereto.

7. Construction and Venue. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance
with the laws of the State of Texas. Exclusive venue over any claim or cause of action
arising hereunder shall be in the courts of Montgomery County, Texas.

8. Agreement a Covenant Running With the Land. This Agreement shall be
recorded in the Real Property Records of Montgomery County, Texas and shall be a

covenant running with the OWNER’S land and binding upon the OWNER’S successors
and assigns.




CITY OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS

By:

Kirk Jones, Mayor

ATTEST:

Susan Hensley City Secretary

BW MONTGOMERY INVESTMENT, LLC

By:
Name:
Title:

State of Texas §

won

County of Montgomery &

This instrument was acknowledged before me on , 2018
by KIRK JONES, mayor of and acting in behalf of the City of Montgomery, Texas.

Notary Public, State of Texas

State of Texas §

e

County of Montgomery §

This instrument was acknowledged before me on ,
2018 by , acting under the authority of BW
MONTGOMERY INVESTMENT, LLC, a Texas limited liability company.

Notary Public, State of




After Recording Return to:

Susan Hensley City Secretary
City of Montgomery, Texas
101 Old Plantersville Road
Montgomery, Texas 77356







Montgomery City Council
AGENDA REPORT

Meeting Date: March 27, 2018 Budgeted Amount:

Exhibits: Letter of request,
Sketch site plan,
Aerial map showing the
property,
survey of the entire triangle between
McCown and Prairie Street,
two alternative building locations
drawn by Jack,
Four photographs showing vehicles
al entrance/exit/in proposed driveway
Prepared By: Jack Yates
City Administrator
Date Prepared: March 22,2018

Subject

This is to consider a variance request from Samdana Investment, L.P. of
properties regarding a variance from 35 feet to 25 feet along State Highway 105
and from 15 feet to 10 feet along John A. Butler Street to the north

Description
This variance will be reconsidered by the Planning Commission at its March
26 meeting,

Since the March 13 City Council meeting, I have met with Mr, Chen, the
applicant, gone to the site, and have measured and driven cars into and out of
the existing driveway entrance off State Highway 105, and have also driven
cars into and out of the proposed driveway on the subject property. The
photographs showing the expansive space available for cars pulling into and
out of the entrance off SH 105 and into the interior driveway, to my mind,
makes the variance very feasible and practical.

I also, attached, tried to come up with different shapes/configurations of the
building—including reducing the size of the building. However, | was unable
to come up with a better configuration that Mr. Chen has already provided.




Montgomery City Council
AGENDA REPORT

‘Recommendation

Recommend approval of the variance.

Approved By
City Administrator | Jack Yates Date: March 22, 2018




boundary

profeasionad surveyors

January 30, 2018

Jack Yates, City Administrator
City of Montgomery

101 Old Plantersville Rd.
Montgomery, TX 77316

(936) 597-6463
jyates@ci.montgomery.tx.us

Re: Variance Request in Historical District

Reduction of Building Line (B.L.}
35' ta 25’ along S.H, 105 & from 15’ to 10’ along John Butler $t.

Minor Plat Name: SAMDANA INVESTMENTS, L.P,
20998 Eva St. (5.H. 105), Montgomery, TX 77356
Montgomery County, Texas

Dear Mr. Yates:

Pursuant to Section 78-28 of the City of Montgomery's Code of Ordinances and as the
representative for the awner of the property, Mrs, Sopheap Chem, we would ike to request a
varifance for the B.L. along Eva Street (State Highway 105) and John Butler St,

As per Section 78-90 and 98-351, the B.L. along State Highway 105 is to be 35 feet and/or
match adjacent bufldings or structures whose front (main entrance) setback tine is closest to
the street which the adjacent structure or building faces,

Pue to the unigue triangular shape of this tract, enforcement of a 35 foot B.L. along State
Highway 105 and a 15 foot B.L. along John Butler St. would preciude the owner from
redevelopment, of this tract. A copy of the survey showing existing site conditions is attached,

We look forward to developing a project that will be in conformance with the general
character of the Historical District and that will also provide an economic benefit to the city.

Best Regards,

Christian Offenburger, R.P.L.S.
Principal

150 W, Shadowbend Avenue, Suite #304 | Friendswood, TX 77546
phone 281.648.3131 | fax 281.648.3737 | e-mail christian@boundaryene,com
T.B.P.L.S. Firm No. 10084800




JOHN A. BUTLER STREET

FROFOBEG ENTRY

R -\ R \1\ :‘\\‘-} R
5\ WAL R %/:
Scale: 1":20" \ S \ %

A fi, i 4 % - W .
3618 -\ze_\ N e ' - - 7 ]
. ’ » 3y _ g 7 ' :
3\ W3 \ ;_:‘-.\ & Wy N . ‘ 0\ ‘




 (razssas]i

SN A
¥

iNA BUTLE

e R S S S e

i\
R124004 |




A

B.L.
(CH)
1P
CPP
CPED

CONC
—E—

McCOWAN ST.

TIONS:

PROPERTY ADORESS:
JT4 JHIN A BUTLER

. |
R125065 & mjgaygf)' g |
MONTGOMERY, TX 77336 ’

I

l

| JOHN CORNER SURVEY, A-8
| .

it
B
3
iy

2 A” SANTRAY(RE J
. ; + 4 4
z9apat 5795 2746 29734 29752 297158 7 < a57 28 AT / B

am

UTLER STREEI " .
fmw H97.85 +P9739 - ms*\f‘ a’im:v
] y ' : R4S . 9285 _IDGE Asmur aam - o 29651
PP VR i & ey e SEt S e N 89°25°03" £ 212.6 s Nyor 0 1R IR
N Br503"E 71.80° -~ ;S I L i N NG onep 2|4 M oL 0545
kit sos_. . R PR YV .. - 4 ppfer————— - — o 3 -
- 295101 5 il pepuit ; . BT SR Tar 26, +29623 i
ol 2957
+ 29600 W] A g BL - . , A 29541
l E 'm;ac bnm 2 forass ;‘1 96 00
i ngfg -u === 1
R—1677 02’
l A=0127'41"
C LEN=42.77
- + 295136
l BRG=S 66:55'28" W
= RESOUE OF
|3 CALUT 0.539 ACRE
I% WILLUAM L %rzrc. 347
& TOWN CREEK ENTERPRISES, LLE
l:- M.C.CF. NO, 2006103079 ' R.O‘
E o @
3 '
" + 29445 A S .
| A ra'( g - ul
l 2940 [ - ~
2942 —
l % -
. Zgyb/
l:‘t/aeaea ST e
r & ﬂ 2929 '%T{?gnﬁylg & S“ -
| 6639‘33/ 3% 1) 289,51 vy -
[ P -~
i - -~ ASPHAT = - -
| - - - -
E
- + RM7 ﬁ. i
- - %
/
/ .
/
/ - - - M —_
/
BUNLDING LIRE . —
CONTROL MONUMENT -
CORRUGATED METAL PIPE - EE—
CORRUGATED PLASTIC PIPE - . —_—
CABLE PECESTAL
CLEANOUT —
CONCRETE - -
OVERHEAD FLECTRIC -













?I«a'l'os-rq()(\ fLOw’;ﬂ? ONe.
VﬂL‘lf‘c(e rv\{{"nﬁ {\/1 (‘»a AHI;'!M‘:?
and ane V@,llfc[g Q‘Pfﬁ)‘! cfu'qf-

dri V@WGY



QLD*{ojraPL\ JA,W(',q? ’!‘w«;

vehicle Méc‘f'mj 1 ﬁ‘rviaje,j]
at"('ue wC‘,q{ (,V{-Tlﬁi my, CAfA
’({"""”‘{7‘-"7 on +he (aterioc north

bordee 06 df“tva*wfl?' &




"j(‘r-t?h u‘)F ong Car ?u‘lk;'1}’ av\“
”F f‘"v@@--*7/ on@ \)glu';/& /i

fﬂfhrfnr ()N\H?ucr lone - wyf-h Me,
Chen ptasding at nocthoen edge

0'€ (\.1'["(11}“"- Jr‘rvc?w:\?f f-’{/( e

PELL A e 2




Montgomery City Council

AGENDA REPORT
Meeting Date: March 27, 2018 Budgeted Amount:
Prepared By: Jack Yates Exhibits: Paving Cost Proposal,
City Administrator Map showing area of sidewalk location
Date Prepared: March 21, 2018

This is to place a sidewalk from the old grade school on Clepper Street to the
east side of Prairie Street. The MEDC, on March 19", approved $19,886, the
expected cost to place the sidewalk. This item is to receive your approval of the
expenditure of the MEDC funds.

Description

This project has been discussed for several years and was specifically placed in
the MEDC budget for the 2017-2018 fiscal year. The rationales for this being
an MEDC project are 1) it helps generate foot traffic between Fernland and
Memory Park and the downtown area and 2} during Special events the area
immediately east of the school is used for Visitor parking causing those who
parked there but want to walk downtown to walk in Clepper Street, causing a
dangerous situation for the pedestrians/vehicles.

During the MEDC meeting there was discussion regarding the matter. What
follows is the minutes from that discussion:

Mrs. Fox asked about the wisdom of sidewalk cost versus McCown Street
improvements. President Jones and Mr.Champagne answered, saying that they
Jelt that people would use the sidewalk for general use and for special events.
Ms. Fox reiterated her statement that the fimd would be better put to use on
downtown centered projects first. Jack Yates noted that placement of the
sidewalks was specifically mentioned and 320,000 was included in the
Downtown D evelopment Improvements portion of the MEDC budget. Mike
Muckleray answered a Board question about the how the drainage will be
handled, stating that the sidewalk project will not help the drainage but will
not hurt either.




Montgomery City Council
AGENDA REPORT

Motion by Champagne, seconded by Hanover to fund the project with the fund
source to be determined. Kerr, Hanover, Jones, Champagne voted yes, Fox
voted no. Brown was absent from the meeting.

So, while there was discussion it was approved by 4-1 vote,

Recommendation

Approve the proposed funding for the sidewalks.

‘Approved By
City Administrator | Jack Yates Date: March 21, 2018




PROPOSAL
LAUREL PAVING
12876 Shadowbrook Dr. Willis, Texas77378

PROPOSALSUMITTED TO E-MAIL eell PHONE DATE

Mike Muckleroy 936-521-5294 936-597-6434 03/15/18

STREET JOB NAME
mmuckleroy@ci.montgomery.tx.us Concrete side walk

CITY, STATE AND ZIP CODE JOB LOCATION

Montgomery, Texas 77356 On Clepper Dr, from Maiden Ln to School

ARCHITECT DATE OF PLANS JOU PHONE

We Propose: hereby to furnish materials and Inbor complete in accordance with specifications below, for the
sum of:

Price determined by option chosen.

Payment to be nade s followed

On completion,

All materinls is guaranteed to be ns specified. All work to he completed in a workmanfike manner sccording fo standard
practices, Any alteration or devintion rom specilications below involving extra costs will be execufed only upon ywritien
orders, and will becoine an extra charge over and above the estimate. Al agreements contingent upen sirilies, aceidents or

Authovized By This proposal may be withdraw by us i not accepted with 30 day.
Biuld retaining wall approx. 4’high 18’ long and 3 manholes raisers $1700.00
Concrete sidewalks, 4’x866=3,464 sqft $18.186.00

1. Form retaining wall and pour concrete 3,000 psi 6” thick, reinforced with #3 rebar
18”0/c. Make 3 concrete ralsers for man holes.

2. Remove grass and form sidewalks, furnish and install 4 loads of fill dirt wherever is
necessary {some areas, sidewalk will be below top of street pavement.)

3. Pour concrete mix 3,000 psi, 4”thick, reinforced with #3 rebar 18" o/c and
expansion joints every 20 feet apart. And control join every 10', broom finish.

.Acceptance OfProposal— The above prices, specifications and conditions are satisfactory and

accepted. You are authorized to do the work as specified. Paymens will be made as outlined above.

Date of acceptance

Signature Signature




R A
Soutle Side of Clegper Stree!



Montgomery City Council
AGENDA REPORT

Meeting Date: March 27, 2018

Budgeted Amount:

Prepared By: Jack Yates
City Administrator

Exhibits: Engineer’s site plan review,
Sketch site plan presented at
time of application,

Memo To File re: Permit
Issuance,
E-mail from Autumn
Redman re: permit issuance,
Building Permit dated12-4-17,
Jack’s memo to Mr. Madsen
to further building process,
Jack’s e-mail to Rick Hanna
re: furthering building process,
E-mail from Chris Roznovsky
Re: process needed for Mr.
Madsen to continue building
process,
Current Building Permit
Approval Process,
Photographs of the rear of the structure,
City attorney opinion/comment

Date Prepared: March 22, 2018

This is to consider a variance request for a building built at 610 Liberty Street.

Description ~

This variance involves a building permit improperly issued, funds expended by
the builder based upon the improperly issued permit, an attempt by the city
administrator to correct actions to prevent suit against the city while also
attempting to follow the proper procedure also.




Monteomery City Council
AGENDA REPORT

The course of events were: on December 4, 2017 Mr. Madsen received a
building permit signed by Autumn Redman, Utility Development Clerk. The
approval was improper as Ms. Redman did not have authority to sign the
permit. Additionally, the building plan review had not occurred, nor the City
Engineer notified.

On January 8", Mr. Madsen called for water service and Mike Muckleroy was
notified and Mike responded that he did not know of the project being
reviewed by the City Engineer. Mr. Madsen was told about the lack of
approval and that he could not proceed with construction and he became very
concerned saying that he had installed the rough-in plumbing, had bought a
$100,000 metal frame building and was planning on having the concrete
poured on January 9. T was out of the office at a meeting on January 8", but
was reached by phone and told what the situation was. I replied to inform Mr.
Madsen that | would meet him at 9:00 a.m. on January 9" and determine the
situation and how to provide a remedy-—and to get the plans to Rick Hanna
asap for him to review.

On January 9™ I met with Mr. Madsen and together, (after the 9:00 and a 2:00
set of conversations with Mr, Madsen, Chris Roznovsky and Rick Hanna)
wrote the January 9" memo to Mr. Madsen (attached), that Mr. Madsen agreed
to comply with.

(my thought process during the January 9th discussions was how to not get the
city sued by Mr. Madsen for the cost of his building, while also to wanting to
hold to the city ordinances, at the time I believed I did that except for the rear
building setback line—however because of the location of the building the rear
of the building is adjacent to the pond put in by the Heritage Apartments, and
because of the height of the building in the rear all there was, was air (there
was no “there”) there in my mind. As to the vegetation barrier required
between commercial property and residential property—I must admit that I
give this no thought, probably because of the distance between the back of Mr.
Madsen's building and the actual apartments which is approximately 1000 feet
away) (One of the things I am proud of in my record, is that 've never done
anything to have a city get sued over much less to win the suit, that is what I
was trying to prevent in this case)

Since January 9" Mr, Madsen has fully complied with every stipulation in the
January 9 memo and in all other requests made of him.

The reason for the variance at this point is that the city engineer in reviewing
the site plan points out the lack of a 15 foot rear yard setback and no




Montgomery City Council
AGENDA REPORT

vegetation area. Today, I spoke with the builder who agreed to plant bushes or
whatever can grow in the 5° 8” inch area in the rear of his building,

Due to this occurrence I have written a Building Permit Procedure so that this
type of event does not happen again. Ms. Redman knew at the time not to
approve a building permit but failed to act in a proper manner.,

Recommendation

Approval of the variances

Approved By
City Administrator | Jack Yates Date: March 22, 2018







5600od  Total covered

Sguore Feotage:

e e Cuerhead Uiy Line

——
Ho2d o~ 1#5.3-

FM 149

9
-
-
)
e T 0w
[V
o S e
lﬂz' j 1129 142 Eas
S50 E~19a 7 ol 2 [5
ﬁ_.lam' [ | | P z 53
)
H 1 i Oy
| | 2
i ’14——14 Underground electrical =
d \ i line for signage
| PROPOSED 50' X 100" METAL BUILDING v 5
i 3
| g
| o Tud
! v PEd
. =¥
3l Lo irls
3 \ ! § MONTGOMERY INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRIGT et
2 I ZETi
8l Lo L2 A
[ s I E . - 15T |5 #EdY
LE 1 | i —‘lé
l xr
1 0|
| | ol A,
'l 7- 818" parking 1 l :‘Q‘g\a
! spgces B, ! g24ls
‘ | =1 l . B3 I
_ g ! Sewer cornection kY-
l . LB this area i E
i Asphalt Parking Lot i T L
2 EE
: 185/ G States Willes €0, Fasement — > |7 © 15?: h%E
0,23 ACRES l T
Fetgeres Caegeron l =
4

Dale: 1120117

PLOT PLAN 1" =20 =

— Date: 122204

Dwy Ho.. FI5-161T
MER S50 LOMM

2




MEMORANDUM

TO: MEMO TO FILE
FROM:  SUSAN HENSLEY, CITY SECRETARY ¢
SUBJECT: BUILDING PERMIT ISSUE REGARDING 610 LIBERTY
DATE:  JANUARY 8,2018 |

I received notification from Autumn Redman, Utility Billing and Development Clerk, today that
she had signed a permit application on December 4, 2017, granting apptoval of a building permit
and issuance of the building permit for 610 Liberty Street, Montgomery. A copy of the email
detailing the information has been attached, :

Upon notification of the etror we confitmed with Mr. Beauford Chapman and Rick Hanna that
the building plans had not been reviewed or approved. Once this confirmaton was made, I
contacted Jack Yates, City Administratot, to notify him of the information. I advised that Ms.
Redman had stated that the owner was wanting to pour conctete in the next day or two, I asked
M. Yates if he wanted us to contact the owner to stop the pouting of the conctete to allow the
plans to be reviewed and to make sure that all the City requirements had been met. Mr. Yates
advised me to contact Rick Hanna and to have him talk to the owner regarding stopping the
concrete work and getting the information.

Mt. Hanna advised the ownet, Allen Madsen, of the documents that would be required for the
City to review the information. Mt. Madsen stated that he had approval from the Fire Marshal,
but there are no documents that the City has received. Mr. Madsen stated that he would stop the
conctete work and would have all the documents sent to the City for review.

The City Engineer, Chris Roznovsky, was also contacted and he had no knowledge of the project.
Mt. Roznovsky advised that the plat could be handied as a minor plat since there was only one
Iocation on the property. Mr. Roznovsky said that the drainage would also have to be checked
along with the public utilities.

Ms. Redman was advised not to sign any permits, including, but not limited to, building, plumbing,
electrical, toofing, occupancy, etc., in the future. All permits will be signed by the City
Administrator as the Chief Building Official. Ms. Redman will prepare the information for
submittal and review by both the Building Inspector and Chief Building Official.

Mr. Madsen advised that he had already ordered the structute that is in excess of $100,000 and is
very nervous about the matter, but was very cooperative and is wotking to get the City everything
that he has.




Tha City of Montgormery Mail - 610 LIBERTY

Hensley, Susan <shensley@ci.montgomery.tx.u5>

610 LIBERTY

1 message

e

Redman, Autumn <aredman@ci.montgomew.tx.us> Mon, Jan 8, 2018 at 1:19 PM
To: Susan Hensley <shensley@ci.montgomery,tx.us>

Susan,

This morning, Mr. Madsen came in to activate his water account. | requested a copy of his warranty deed. Mr. Madsen
left to obtain a copy. While he was goneg, | called Mike to make sure that | had everything { needed. Mike informed me
that he went by that address last night and that the customer will need to provide the Ufitliy drawings for a cost estimate
on sewer tap and new water meter. When Mr. Madsen returned with his warrantee deed, | informed him that he will need
additional information per the phone call with Mike. 1 explained to Mr. Madsen, that | will have Mike call him and expiain
the process.

While looking through the file for 610 Liberty, | discovered that | had issued a construction permit without having approved
reviewed plans. | contacted Rick Hanna to check and see if he by chance reviewed them and didn't stamp my copy. Rick
stated that he didn't recall reviewing anthing for that address.

Mike called me a few minutes later o let me know that he had spoke with Chris and Chris stated that he had not reviewed
anything for 610 Liberty. Mike also suggested that | talk with you, so that if the issue came up, someong besides myself
is aware of the situation.

Autumn Redman
City of Montgomery
Utilities Clerk
Permits Dept.
936-597-6434

httns:Hmaii.qcogle.camlmai]luiﬂl?ui=2&ik=3e3ei47246&j5vemveKVDpjlDTc.en.&View=pt&search:inbox&th=1 60d7360cdTehb43&siml=1 60d7369cd7c...




CITY OF MONTGOMERY [ onsTRUGTE

DENO PERMIT APPLICATION

. P.O. BOx 708 N For the erection of bufdings, accessories, repalrs, demolition,
MONTGOMERY, TX 773586 moving, elc.
PHONE: 936-597-6434 I Expires In & months (f8a days)
Permits@cimontgomery.hous : _ j Nan-Transferabte ; °
waw.mantgomerytexas,gov DATE OF APPROVAL: Tl ik

| Cﬁa}a /Q/%B/// “*4%44/-’/94%55HM1TNUMBER: ( ’/}\FH?}‘]\
: : %/ Ly LeC -- '-._ ,
Owner:/7 M/fé’f" 7 Z n ﬂ%]o\mrphong #:(% 2 3/3,_3
Contractor: AM Cptsp. vf? /,,4/ . ﬂ”hwf:ﬁ; | Cont. Phone#:(?jé) ,2 e 242 2L

Al e A oA a
‘ConixactorMailingA{idress: 2L 3(4/};0 ffﬁ’»’j" /ffrawzgé Y A

Ciiy: /V) ﬂ/?é(f) i) /J/‘C/ | Stafe: ZZ | Zip: ’7/75/4
. Job Site Address: é/_ﬂ L /éﬁf ‘75@/ S M?o?w’ %}4 “v Ji
Residential of Cormmeroial Project: Cﬂ/vzm P ?)o?// | Zoned: é 7 AT /‘-1::/7_/4[/
Tredt 4/ Cotwwt Tubfia 2 : .
Lors | BLOCIGE: - JLOT SiZE: l’ / ? | BLDG. SIZE (so. F1y: s g . Q_EQ g?

Descri?:ﬂqn of 'vrvork (Including Class & C‘om‘mc!ian I}pe.s'):

M g la] Z,@L,/g//ﬂ_ 3///{:’; .Maﬁ"a.q/wi&/ fjﬂp@,— 0
O’IC/:‘/J"/ //&"‘/2 AT :

‘VALUEﬁETDTALWDM$‘ Q?f;ﬂﬁﬂ *‘@

50-31000 . $60 FLAT FEE * .

$1,001-$50,000 $16.00 FOR FIRST $1,000 + $5.00 FOR EACH ADOTL %1,000 OR FRACTION THEREQF

$50,001 - $100,000 $260.00 FOR FIRST $50,000 + §4.00 FOR EACH ADDT'L 51,000 OR FRACTION THEREQF

$100,001 -'$500,000 $460.00.FOR FIRST §100,000 + $3.08 FOR EACH ADDT'L 1,000 OR FRACTION THEREQF 3 { o1
OVER §500,001 §1,660.00 FOR FIRST $500,000 +3$2 00 FOR EACH ADDTL $1,000 OR FRACTION THEREOF 1\ -
FLAN REVIEVWY FEE EQUAL TO ONE-HALF OF THE PERMIT FEE WHEN VALUATION EXCEEDS $70,000.00 S90S

NOIICE: SEPARATE PERMITS ARE REQUIRED FOR POBLIC UTILITIES, ELECTRICAL, PLUMBING, HEATIVG,
PENTILATION, ATR CONDITONIIVG, GRADING, ALARMS, RO OFING, LANDSCAPING, FIRE SPRINKLERS AND LAWN
SPRIWELERS. .

Thershy certify that X havexead and exemincd, thicapplicaion and know thesams to betoue & eorcect. Al provitluns of law and urﬂi-ﬂ-l.‘nmgnvu'n'm: Ly
typo ofwarJowill he omplied with whether op not spesified heccin, The praoting of fhis permit docs ot presmne to givoanthorily to vidlale or cancel [he
provisions ofnmy state oc e Yaw office regoluling eanstroction of tho pexformnnen of, eanshuchnn. TR .

i L) s e Dy T
_ . — " OFFICE USE ONLY ] ,7 T

! 3D | ol B Qj
. Plan Review Fee: :I:L_‘Em Accepted By: :

PemitFee: 5.0 O " TssuedBy: I 0 M ﬁUA

PERMIT FEE TOTAL: § [663 SO O

ConrtnuctiunDome Pexndt 031972018




To: Allen Madsen

From: Jack Yates, City Administrator
Subject: Building at 610 Liberty St.
Date: January 9, 2018

Mr. Madsen — -

I've come to understand that you were issued a building permit on December 4, 2017 for a building at
610 Liberty Street. You were issued a permit prematurely, However, solutions to the issues are possible.
The below is based on the information avallable and our conversation this morning,

Need for a minor plat - This is necessary because every development in the city must be on its own
plotted property. Attached is the procedure for a minor plat, that does not require Planning
Commission nor City Council approval but only the City Engineer and City Administrator approval. What
is necessary for a minor plat is a survey of the property and a mylar showing the tract of property along
with various wording that is included in what I'm giving you. You will need either a surveyer or an
engineer to prepare the minor plat. Details on the minor plat procedures can be obtained from Chris
Roznovsky. Chris can be contacted at 713-389-1514 or by cell phone at 281-796-3101. The time it takes
to get a minor plan approved is approximately 30 to 45 days, depending on the time of preparation from
your surveyor or engineer, The review time by the city can be a matter of four or five days.

| will confirm all of this with Chris Roznovsky, so do not proceed with the minor plat until f contact you
back.

Constryction Plan Approval — Rick Hanna, the City Building Inspector has reviewed your plans and has
approved them

Drainage — The drainage either can be directed to 149 with no permits required, only the city engineer’s
approval of your drainage plan. The drainage plan also will need to be discussed with Chris, If the
drainage is to be directed to the east to the pond at the apartments, that will require an easement from
the apartments which | can help you with by speaking with the apartments owner myself, or introducing
you to him,

Building sethack from the rear - | believe | can help you on this depending on how much your area that
you have back there into the property owner is to your east. We discussed this today and your current
plot plan is satisfactory.

Trades permits ~-now that your construction Plans are approved each trade for plumber, electrical,
mechanical can be approved. if further plans are required, beyond the construction plans they will need.
Think | can work it out as you may need to provide. That conversation can be held with Rick Hanna.

| have sent Rick Hanna the attached e-mail concerning continued work on your project.




The City of Mentgomery Mail - 610 Liberly

Yates, Jack <jyates@ci.montgomery.tx.us>

610 Liberty

1 message

Yates, Jack <jyates@ci.montgomery.tx.us> Tue, Jan 9, 2018 at 11:18 AM
To: Rick Hanna <rhanna@tickhanha.com>

After speaking with Mr. Allen Madsen, the issues of a minor plat, drainage issues and plot plan issues are issues that can
be worked out over the next few weeks.

Therefore, it is my opinion and direction to you to complete inspection on the plumbing and concrete slab for the building.
Mr. Madsen just fold me that he intends to not pour the parking area now, awaiting a decision regarding drainage. As to
any further plans for the trades that is up to you and Mr. Madsen, or his subcontractors.

Jack Yates

https:/imail.google.com/mail/?ui=2&ik=c96585bB6a38jsver=pkG7hiCEwPU.en, &view=pt&search=sent&th=160dbec02aade349&siml=160dbeel2aade349  1/1




3/22/2018 The City of Montgomery Mail - Allen Madsen Development

Yates, Jack <jyates@ci.montgomery.tx.us>

Allen Madsen Development
1 message

Chris Roznovsky <CRoznovsky@jonescarter.com> Wed, Jan 10, 2018 at 12:45 PM
To: "Jack Yates - City of Montgomery (jyates@ci.montgomery.tx.us)"' <iyates@ci.montgomery.tx.us>

Cc: "Hensley, Susan" <shensley@ci.montgomery.tx.us>, "Katherine M. Vu" <kvu@jonescarter.com=, Aaron Bennett
<ABennell@jonescarter.com>

Jack, Please see draft email to Mr. Madsen below and let me know Iif you have any comments before | send to
him.

“Mr. Madsen,

Before any additional work is done by the City regarding this development the City requires that ali developments enter
into an escrow agreement with the City and deposit funds. The City will be reaching out to you to provide you a copy of
the escrow agreement for your review and execution.

As we have discussed you need to have a minor plat prepared for the site that conforms with the requirements faid out in
Chapter 78 Aricle IlI of the Code of Ordinances. )

Additionally, you need to have a site plan prepared by a licensed professional engineer. The site plans need to include:

» Utilities plans including the size, location, material, and elevation of all onsite water, sanitary sewer, and storm sewer
lines. The location and size of the proposed water meter,

«  Areduced pressure zone backflow preventer is required to be installed immediately after the water meter. This must
be shown on the plans and a detail drawing provided indicating the make, model, and size.

»  Show the existing public utilities and how they will be connected to.
= Grading plan

»  Paving Plan

e Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan

+  Tree Preservation and Planting Plan Per the Code of Ordinances

The City has adopted an Impact Fee Ordinance that requires all new development, including redevelopment of sites, to
pay an impact fee. Assessed when the plat is recorded and due before a water and sewer connection is made. The fee is
based on the size of the water meter. Attached is an excerpt from the impact fee ordinance defining the fees per meter
size,

Below is a link to the Code of Ordinances for your reference.

hitps.//mail.google.com/mail/?ui=2&ik=c96585b8a38&|sver=-9j_g79i2Ak.en.&view=pt&search=inbox&th=160e1641637c684assimI=160e1641637c684a&mb=1




3/22/2018 The Ciy of Montgomery Mail - Allen Madsen Development
https:/flibrary.municode.com/tx/montgomery/codes/code_of_ordinances

Please let Jack Yates or | know if you have any questions. *

Thanks,

Chris Roznovsky, P.E.
Department Manager

Municipal and District Services
croznovsky@jonescarter.com

JONES | CARTER
1575 Sawdust Road, Suite 400

The Woodlands, Texas 77380
Direct Telephone 713.389.1514

Cell Phone 281.796.3101
Telephone 281.363.4039 Ext, 1008

One Company. Unlimited Potential.™
www.jonescarter.com

Join our team!

Follow us for the latest industry news and company updates.

This e-mail and any attachments are intended only for the named recipient{s) and may contain information that is legally privileged, confidential, ar exempt
from disclosure under applicable law. If you have received this message in error, or are not the named recipient(s), you may not retain copy or use this e-mail
or any attachment for any purpose or disclose all or any part of the contents te any other person, Any such dissemination, distribution or copying of this e-mail
or its attachments is strictly prohibited. Please immediately notify the sender and permanently delete this e-mail and any attachment from your computer
and/or electronic devices. Any personal views or opinions expressed by the writer may nol necessarily reffect the views or opinions of Jones & Carter, Inc.

m Impact Fee Table.pdf
— 60K

https:/mail.google.com/mail/?ui=28&ik=c96585h6a3&jsver=-0j_g79i2Ak en.&view=pt&search=inbox&th=160e1641637c684aksiml=160e1641637c684a8mb=1




To: Autumn Redman
Copy To: Chris Roznovsky,
Rick Hanna
Susan Hensley
From: Jack Yates
Subject:  Building Permit Issuance

Regarding new commercial and residential structures or outbuildings, |
need to be the person to sign the permit. | need to confirm that the
structure has an approved site plan from Chris Roznovsky and an
approved building plan review by Mr. Hanna or Mr. Chapman. | am not
thinking that they would sign the permit but that we would have
documentation in the file that they approve for their particular submittals.
Autumn, we need to either amend the Building Permit Form to show a
place of City Engineer and Building Plan Approval or prepare a brief
standard memo that would be attached to the Building Permit signifying
their approval.

In event of my being on vacation or away from the office for more than two
days, Autumn is authorized to sign the permit after: 1) getting written
verification from Chris for the site plan and Rick or Beauford that the
building plans are approved and 2) being unable to contact me, and 3)
getting a request from the Permit Applicant for an approval prior to my
return, and 4) bringing the approved permit to my attention promptly upon
my return.

For the subsequent trade permits to an existing permit, meaning plumbing,
mechanical, efectrical and fuel/gas code, Autumn can sign these permits if
a request for an urgent permit is received and | am not present, if she
desires. [f Autumn is unsure or hesitant to sign the permit she can bring the
permit to me for approval

198




— — g
o e e P et 1
Ly | = v e e L

3

Phtograph of building
e "Flasrh.‘f: B\véd. -

ISER S extienm o Fall 65
o build s b J2k €.

T Yga,

~ 1




R S

‘ ‘/'\'T'l!ﬂnw

+ J(\ne C ey

Loo) g o
@n‘C‘Tw\me eE \9*"1\&‘;"? £
%00\)&‘“{0.5 aq'&("\_mdn\-j

4_—4




|

\
1

il

v g
J

.

D'f };\1(.{6,




In response to my sending the Madsen information that Council will receive in your packet.

From: Yates, Jack
Sent: Thursday, March 22, 2018 3:01 p.m.
To: Larry Foerster

Any comments- such as where we stood legally if | had stopped the construction?

Jack

Larry’s response: at 3:3 p.m.

Sounds you handled it wisely under the circumstances. } am not concerned about the City's liability as we have
sovereign immunity and insurance for such matters,

Larry L. Foerster
Darden, Fowler & Creighton, LLP




Montgomery City Coungil
AGENDA REPORT

Meeting Date: March 27,2018 Budgeted Amount:

Prepared By: Jack Yates
City Administrator Exhibits: Ordinance

Date Prepared: March 22,2018

This is to consider the implementation of the impact fees

Description
The ordinance matches your approved impact fee study presented in November
of 2017. The City Attorney prepared the ordinance in January but the item is
only now on the agenda because of time and space available in the past several
agendas.

From reading the Ordinance, I am not sure of the new fees effective date. I
will ask/confirm with the City Attorney and he or I will have the answer at the
meeting,

Recommendation

To approve the ordinance as presented.

A oved B

City Administrator | Jack Yates Date; March 22, 2018




ORDINANCE 2018-

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MONTGOMERY,
TEXAS, AMENDING ARTICLE III, "IMPACT FEES" OF CHAPTER 90
"UTILITIES" OF THE CITY CODE OF ORDINANCES BY DECREASING THE
IMPACT FEES FOR WATER AND WASTEWATER IMPROVEMENTS THAT
ARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO NEW DEVELOPMENT IN THE CITY'S WATER AND
WASTEWATER IMPACT FEE SERVICE AREA WITHIN THE CORPORATE
BOUNDARIES OF THE CITY; AMENDING CITY ORDINANCE NO. 2016-21,
DATED DECEMBER 13, 2016; PROVIDING A TEXAS OPEN MEETINGS ACT
CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN
EFFECTIVE DATE AFTER PUBLICATION.

WHEREAS, the City Council has approved Resolution 2016-06 creating the City of
Montgomery Capital Improvement Advisory Committee (“CIAC”), appointing its members, and
establishing the Committee's functions, duties and rules of conduct associated with the study,
consideration, development and adoption of impact fees pursuant to the Texas Local Government
Code Chapter 395 (“Impact Fee Statute™); and

WHEREAS, the City Council approved and adopted Resolution No., 2016-12 approving
the proposed land use assumptions and capital improvements plan relating to impact fees for water
and wastewater improvements; and

WHEREAS, the City Council passed Ordinance No. 2016-21, dated December 13, 2016,
approving impact fees for water and wastewater improvements that are attributable to new
development within the corporate limits of the City of Montgomery; and

WHEREAS, Section 395.058 (c) of the Impact Fee Statute requires the CIAC to file
semiannual reports with respect to the progress of the capital improvements plan and report to the
City Council any perceived inequities in implementing the plan or imposing the impact fee; and
advise the City Council of the need to update or revise the land use assumptions, capital
improvements plan, and impact fee; and

WHEREAS, Section 395.052 of the Impact Fee Statute requires a political subdivision
imposing an impact fee to update its land use assumptions and capital improvements plan at least
every five years; to review and evaluate its current land use assumptions; and to cause an update
of the capital improvements plan as required by law; and

WHEREAS, the CIAC held a meeting on September 20, 2017 to consider the progress of
the capital improvements plan and updates to the land use assumptions and capital improvement
plan relating to City’s approved impact fees for water and wastewater improvements; and

1




WHEREAS, the CIAC has submitted written comments and suggestions to the City
Council by which the CIAC recommends a decrease in impact fees by approximately five percent
(5%) the addition of 92 connections; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 395.053 of the Impact Fee Statute, the City Council held
a public hearing on January 9, 2018 to review and discuss the CIAC’s comments and suggestions
concerning the City’s land use assumptions and capital improvement plan; and

WHEREAS, the City Council believes that it is appropriate to approve the CIAC
recommendation to decrease the current impact fees by approximately five percent (5%) as
described in the CIAC report, dated October 25, 2017, and attached here as Exhibit “A.”

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS:

SECTION 1. The facts and recitations found in the preamble of this
Ordinance are true and correct and incorporated herein for all purposes.

SECTION 2 Amendment to City Code of Ordinances.
Chapter 90, "Utilities" at Article III, "Impact Fees", of the City of
Montgomery Code of Ordinances is hereby amended to read as follows:

SECTION 3, Impact Fees Approved. The impact fees
recommended by the CIAC in its amended Water and Wastewater Impact
Fee Analysis dated October 25, 2017 (a copy of which is attached to this
Ordinance as Exhibit "A" and incorperated into this Ordinance for all
purposes) are approved, levied and imposed as to the City's water and
wastewaler impact fee service area within the entire City boundaries.

SECTION 4. Repeal of Conflicting Ordinances. The
provisions in Section 3 of City Ordinance No. 2016-21, dated
December 13, 2016, are amended; and all provisions of other ordinances of
the City of Montgomery in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance are
hereby repealed. All other provisions of the Ordinances of the City of
Montgomery not in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance shall
remain in full force and effect.

SECTION 5.  Severability Clause. If any provision, section,
exception, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance
or the application of same to any person or set of circumstances, shall for any




reason be held unconstitutional, void, invalid or otherwise unenforceable, the
invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect other provisions of this
Ordinance or their application to other sets of circumstances and to this end
all provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable.

SECTION 6. Texas Open Meetings Clause. It is hereby officially
found and determined that the meeting at which this Ordinance was
considered was open to the public as required and that public notice of the
time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open
Meetings Act, Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code,

SECTION 7. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall become effective
and be in full force from after publication as required by law.

PASSEDANDAPPROVED this the day of

2018.

Kirk Jones, Mayor

ATTEST:

Susan Hensley, City Secretary

APPROVED ASTO FORM:

Larry L. Foerster, City Attorney




Montgomery City Council
AGENDA REPORT

Meecting Date: March 27, 2018 Budgeted Amount:

Prepared By: Jack Yates
City Administrator Exhibits:
Date Prepared: March 22, 2018

This is a report regarding Buffalo Springs Bridge.

Description
The construction is according to schedule, even with the two days added to the
contract because of wet weather. The City Engineer will explain more at the
meeting,

Recommendation

Make comments as you feel appropriate.,

Approved By

City Administrator | Jack Yates Date: March 22, 2018




Montgomery City Council
AGENDA REPORT

Meeting Date: March 27, 2018 Budgeted Amount:

Prepared By: Jack Yates
City Administrator Exhibits: email from Dr. Rees

Date Prepared: March 22, 2018

This is a report regarding reckless driving by high school students.

The Police Department continues their enforcement along Old Plantersville
Road.

An email from Dr. Rees states that is ready to move forward in this spring,
with:

1) suspending parking privileges for any student who is arrested for
reckless driving between the hours of 7 AM to 3 PM or during a school
sponsored event with the suspension to last for six weeks.any
subsequent ticket for a moving violation will result in an additional six
week suspension. A third ticket results in parking privileges being
removed for the remainder of that school year.

2) Suspending parking privileges for any student who is ticketed for
speeding two or more times in a six month period in and around the high
school between the hours of 7 AM 3 PM. With the suspension lasting
for six weeks. A subsequent ticket for any reason will result in parking
privileges being removed for the remainder of that school year.

3) Montgomery PD will coordinate with MISD PD and provide the names
of any high school student who receives a reckless driving ticket or
speeding tickets. Starting with a clean slate, so past offenses will not be
counted against the student.




Montgomery City Council
AGENDA REPORT

Recommendation

Make comments as you feel appropriate.

Approved By

City Administrator i Jack Yates Date: March 22, 2018




3/22/2018 The City of Montgomery Mail - Monday

Yates, Jack <jyates@ci.montgomery.tx.us>

Monday

1 message

Rees, Beau <Beau.Rees@misd.org> Mon, Mar 19, 2018 at 4:22 PM
To: "Napolitano, James" <jnapolitano@ci.montgomery.tx.us>, "jyates@ci.montgomery.tx.us" <jyates@ci.montgomery.tx.us>

Gentlemen:

Thank you again for breakfast a week ago. | enjoyed our conversation. As | stated in our
meeting, Montgomery ISD wants to help the City and Montgomery Police Department in anyway
possible to help educate our students to be responsible and safe drivers and citizens. | want to
clarify the school district's position regarding helping the City and Police Department "crack down
on student speeding"”.

Here is what we are prepared to move forward on this spring:

Removal of Parking Privileges:

« Suspending parking privileges for any student who is ARRESTED for reckless driving in or
around the high school between the hours of 7 a.m. and 3 p.m. or during any school
sponsored event. The suspension will last for 6 weeks. Any subsequent ticket for any
moving violation in or around high school, during school hours, or during a school sponsored
activity in the evening will result in an additional 6 week suspension. A third ticket (same
parameters) results in parking privileges being removed for the remainder of that school year.

+ Suspending parking privileges for any student who is ticketed for speeding 2 or more times in
a 8 month period in or around the high school between the hours of 7 a.m. and 3 p.m. or
during any school sponsored event. The suspension will last for 6 weeks. Any subsequent
ticket for any reason will result in parking privileges being removed for the remainder of that
school year.

+ Montgomery PD will coordinate with MISD PD and provide the names of any HS student who
receives a reckless driving ticket or speeding tickets. We are starting with a clean slate. So,
a kid may have 5 tickets already but unless they received 2 since school started this
morning--they are okay.

Finally, after discussions with our Police Department and MHS Administration, Montgomery ISD
WILL NOT be able to park students in the athletic football complex across HWY 105 from MHS.
This is too dangerous and too much liability. There are no sidewalks anywhere. We have already
had students hit crossing 105 and we are not going to take on this liability. This problem will be
alleviated in less than 3 months anyway due to the opening of the new LCHS. This will allow
sophomores to park on campus. Again, we are not going to allow students to park in the athletic
complex parking lot for school parking.

As far as road additions and expansions and other capital outlay projects, MISD will consider those
improvements in future bond elections.

Hope this clarifies what MISD is willing to do to partner with the City and Montgomery Police

Department to deter reckless driving in and around MHS before and after school hours or during
events.

https:/fmail.google.com!maifl?ui=2&ik=c96535b633&j5ver=~9j_g?9i2Ak.en.&view:pt&q=jnapotitano%400i.montgomery.tx.us&qs=true&5earch=query&$h=162402_4S




3/22/2018 The City of Montgomery Mail - Monday

If you have any questions or concerns or would like to discuss the matter in greater detail, please
do not hesitate to email me.

Sincerely,

Beau Rees
Superintendent of Schools
Montgomery ISD

13159 Walden Road
Montgomery, TX 77356
(936)-276-2010

https:/.'maii.google.comlmaii/?ui=2&ik=096585b633&j5ver=-9}_g?9i2Ak.en.&view=pt&q=jnapolitan0%400i.monlgomery.tx.us&qs=true&search:query&lh=16240245




	AGENDA - CITY COUNCIL 032718
	ITEM #1 - APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	ITEM #2 - HILLS OF TOWN CREEK SEC. 2
	ITEM #3 - RECEIVE ANNUAL AUDIT FOR YEAR ENDING 093017
	ITEM #4A - CITY ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT
	City Administrator's Report
	CITY ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT PART 2
	CITY ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT PART 3
	CITY ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT PART 4

	ITEM #4B - PUBLIC WORKS REPORT FEB 2018
	ITEM #4C - POLICE REPORT FEB 2018
	ITEM #4D - COURT REPORT FEB 2018
	Feb. Report Doc 1
	Feb. Report Doc 2

	ITEM #4E - UTILITY REPORT FEB 2018
	ITEM #4F - WATER REPORT FEB 2018
	ITEM #4G - ENGINEER'S REPORT FEB 2018
	ITEM #4H - FINANCE REPORT FEB 2018
	FINANCE SUMMARY REPORT FEB 2018
	FINANCE REPORT FEB 2018

	ITEM #5 - ENCROACHMENT AGREEMENT WITH MONTGOMERY 105 ASSOC. LLC.
	ITEM #5 - ENCROACHMENT AGREEMENT WITH MONTGOMERY 105 ASSOC. LLC.
	ITEM #5 - EXHIBIT A MAP
	ITEM #5 - EXHIBIT C

	ITEM #6 - ENCROACHMENT AGREEMENT WITH BLUE WAVE EXPRESS CAR WASH
	ITEM #6 - ENCROACHMENT AGREEMENT WITH BLUE WAVE EXPRESS CAR WASH
	ITEM #6 - MAP

	ITEM #7 - VARIANCE REQUEST BY SAMDANA INVESTMENT, L.P.
	ITEM #7 - VARIANCE REQUEST BY SAMDANA INVESTMENT, L.P.
	ITEM #7 - PHOTOS

	ITEM #8 - MEDC FUNDING APPROVAL FOR SIDEWALK PROJECT
	ITEM #8 - MEDC FUNDING APPROVAL FOR SIDEWALK PROJECT
	ITEM #8 - PHOTO

	ITEM #9 - VARIANCE REQUEST FOR 610 LIBERTY STREET
	ITEM #9 - VARIANCE REQUEST FOR 610 LIBERTY STREET
	ITEM #9 - PART B DRAWING
	ITEM #9 - PART C MEMO & CORRESPONDENCE
	ITEM #9 - PART D PHOTOS
	ITEM #9 - PART E EMAIL

	ITEM #10 - IMPACT FEE ORDINANCE
	ITEM #11 - BUFFALO SPRINGS BRIDGE REPORT
	ITEM #12 - RECKLESS DRIVING REPORT



